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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO TIM MEMBERS OF GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Goswami Infratech Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as "the Group") and its associate, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2025,the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statement of subsidiaries and associate, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31,

2025, and its consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising loss and other comprehensive income),

consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)

specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant

to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the

Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and by other auditors in terms of their
report referred to in sub paragraph of other matters below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on consolidated financial statement.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 42 of the consolidated financial statement. During the year, Holding Company has

sold its 15,44,68,205 equity share investment in Afcons Infrastructure Limited. The Holding Company has

accounted total current tax liability of Rs. 47,745.63Iakhs during the current financial year. However, Holding

Company has not paid advance tax installment for the quarter ended 15th December 2024 and 15th March2025.

Further, till the date of audit report, Holding Company has not paid any income tax for financial year 2024-25.

As per information, explanation and representation received from the management of the Holding Company, the

above tax liability is substantial and as the Holding Company does not have sufficient cash flow to make the

payment immediately, there has been delay in payment of the tax liability. The Holding Company has also

represented that the above mentioned tax liability will be paid at the time of filing of return of income for the

financial year 2024-25 along with the requisite interest on the delayed payment.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter

We draw your attention to the following emphasis of matters included by the auditors of the following

companies in their respective audit report on the:

a) Consolidated financial statements of Afcons Infrastructure Limited ("AIL") , a subsidiary upto 3'd

November 2024 and associate w.e.f. 4th November 2024, issued by an independent firm of chartered

Accountants vide their audit report dated 23d May 2025, which is reproduced as under :

l) "We draw attention to Note no. 40 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the

uncertainties relating to the outcome of the proceedings in arbitration and High Court in respect of
variations recognised by the Company in terms of the provisions of the contract with the client, on

account of matters stated therein. Based on the Management's assessment and technical evaluation

of the recoverability of the aforesaid claims, in terms of the provisions of the contract, which is

supported by a legal opinion, as stated in the said Note 40, the management of the Company is of
the view that the amounts recognised as amount due from customers under construction contracts,

are considered as good and fully recoverable and no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

However, considering that, the proceedings in arbitration and High Court are ongoing, the duration

and outcome is uncertain. "

Note 40 as described above is reproduced as Note 14.3.15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2) Audit report on the Financial Statements of Transtonnelstroy Afcons Joint Venture (a joint operation

included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group) includes an emphasis of matter as

under:

"We draw attention to Note 32 to the Financial Statements, which describes uncertainties

relating to the outcome of the negotiation, proceedings

Court and Supreme Court in respect of variations recognised by the joint
in terms of the provisions of the contract with the client, on account of
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Based on the Management's assessment and technical evaluation of the recoverability of the
aforesaid claims, in terms of the provisions of the contract, which is supported by legal opinion, the
management is of the view that the amounts recognised as amount due from customers under
construction contracts and trade receivable including interest on trade receivables as per arbitration
award, are considered as good and fully recoverable and no provision is considered necessary at this
stage.

However, considering that the negotiation, proceedings in arbitration, High Court and Supreme
Court are ongoing, the duration and outcome is uncertain

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter."

Note 32 as described above is reproduced as Note 14.3.16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Audit report on the Financial Statements of Afcons Gunanusa Joint Venture (a joint operation
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group) includes an emphasis of matter as

under:

"We draw attention to Note 26 to the Financial Statements, which describes the uncertainties
relating to the outcome.of the arbitration proceedings in respect of claims recognized by the joint
operation in the earlier years, on account ofchange orders.

Based on the Management's estimates and technical evaluation of the recoverability in terms of the
provisions of the contract, which is supported by legal opinion, the management is of the view that
the amounts recognized as amount due from customers under construction contract are considered
as good and fully recoverable and no provision is considered necessary at this stage. However,
considering that the arbitration proceedings are ongoing, the duration and outcome is uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter"

Note 26 as described above is reproduced as Note 14.3.17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

4. Audit report on the Financial Statements of Dahej Standby Jetty Project Undertaking (a
joint operation included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group) includes
an emphasis of matter as under:

"We draw attention Io Note no. 23 to the Financial Statement, which describes the

uncertainties relating to the outcome of the Hon'ble High Court Delhi, proceedings,

where the joint operation has filed appeal to set aside an unfavourable award granted

in Arbitration, towards claims of liquidated damages for delay in completion of works
by joint operation.
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Based on the Management's assessment and technical evaluation of the recoverability

of the aforesaid client claims which are already encashed and claims filed by the joint

operation against the client, in terms of the provisions of the contract, which is

supported by a legal opinion, as stated in the said Note 23, the management is of the

view that the amounts recognised as amount due from customers under construction

contracts and other receivable, are considered as good and fully recoverable and no

provision is considered necessary at this stage. However, considering that the

proceedings in High Court are ongoing, the duration and outcome is uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter"

Note 23 as described above is reproduced as Note 14.3.18 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Material Uncertainty on Going Concern

The Group has incurred losses amounting to Rs. 2,97,407.40lakhs for the year ended 3l't March 2025 and as of

that date, has accumulated losses of Rs. 46,7 12.02 lakhs. Further, there has been significant delay in payment of
advance tax for financial year 2024-25 as reported in emphasis of matter paragraph. These factors indicate that

events or conditions exist, which may cast significant uncertainty on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concem. Further, the Shareholders of the Holding Company has provided an intent, though not a commitment,

to financially support the Holding Company through a support letter. Additionally, for the debentures issued by

the Holding Company, Cyrus Investments Private Limited, has provided a credit support undertaking and a third

party collateral of shares held by Cyrus Investments Private Limited in Tata Sons Private Limited. This provides

more than adequate security cover for the debentures issued by the Holding Company. The balance shares of

Afcons Infrastructure Limited held by the Holding Company are also of significant value and is substantially

more in value than the liabilities of the Holding Company other than in relation the debentures issued by it.

Further, the Holding Company plans to undertake a program to continue to monitor the Group's ongoing

working capital requirements, take steps to strengthen its liquidity position and initiate cost restructuring

exercise. Based on the aforementioned factors, the management believes that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in context

audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexures to Board's Report but does not

include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The board report is expected to be

made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information, compare with the financial statement of subsidiaries and associate company audited by the other

auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of other auditor

and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appqrs to be materially misstated. Other information so far

as it relates to the subsidiaries and associate company is traced from their financial statements audited by the

other auditors.

If based on the work we performed and the reports of the other auditor as furnished to us (refer other matters

below) we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to

those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and

regulations. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act,2073 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the

Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible

for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding

the assets ofthe Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively

for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation

statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the

Group and its associate companies to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other

entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other

auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of holding company and such other entities included in

the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of 4 subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Financial Statements,

whose financial statements reflect the total assets of Rs. 67,931.50 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 37,907.31 lakhs as

at 3l,tMarch 2OZ5,total revenue from operations of Rs. Nil total net profit after tax Rs. 244.34lakhs and total

comprehensive loss (comprising profit after tax and other comprehensive profit) of Rs. 730.76lakhs for the year

ended 31.tMarch 2025 and net cash inflows of Rs.47.11 lakhs for the year ended 3l't March 2025, as

considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Further, the Consolidated Financial Statements includes

F(s.22,702lakhs total net profit after tax from discontinued operations and total comprehensive loss (comprising

profit after tax and other comprehensive proflt) of Rs. 350lakhs for the year ended 3l't March 2025.We did not

audit the financial statements of I associates whose financial statements includes the Group's share of total

comprehensive income (comprising of loss and othercomprehensive income/ (loss)) of Rs. 6,710.54lakhs for

the year ended March 31, 2025 as considered in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial

statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose

reports have been furnished to us by the Management/other auditors and our opinion on Consolidated Financial

Statements, in so far it relates to the amount and disclosure included in these subsidiaries and associate

company, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors and the procedures performed by us.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above matters with

respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and the consideration of reports of other auditors

on the separate financial statements of subsidiaries and associates referred to in the other matters section above,

to the extent applicable we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the pulposes of our audit of aforesaid consolidated financial statement.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the group relating to preparation

of aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept, based on our verification of books and

reports of other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included

the Group and its associate are responsible for assessing ability of group and of its associate to continue as a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the group's financial reporting process of

the Group, its subsidiaries and its associate.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible

foi expressing our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal financial controls system in

place with reference to consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of aicounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the ability of group and of its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion' Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern'

(tr
Kaushal Manish & Co (a Partnership Firm) converted intg Kaushal Manish & Co LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLPIN ACL-2010)

with effect from 0'lst January, 2025. Post its conversion to Kaushal Manish & Co LLP, its lCAl firm registration number is '125710WM101055

(lCAlfirm registration number before conversion was 125710W).

MEMBERSHIP
No. 116819

MUMBAI.64.

future



ck- Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

!NDIA
Continuation sheet

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 3l
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the

statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31

March, 2025 frombeing appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(0 The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected herewith, is as stated

in paragraph (b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report ttAnnexure A"
which is based on auditors' report of holding company, subsidiary companies and associate company

incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of those

companies.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us the remuneration paid by the Afcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary

upto 3d November 2024 and associate w.e.f. 46 November 2024, to their respective directors during the

year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

Further, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and

based on the auditor's reports of subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India other

than Afcons Infrastructure Limited, the said subsidiary companies being private companies, section I97 of

the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated financial'statement disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated

financial position of the Group and its associate Refer Note 34 and Note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.
(ii) provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law

or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. Further Group

did not have any material foreseeable losses long term contracts including derivative Contracts.

(iii)There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Afcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary of the group..

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

by the holding company, subsidiary companies and associate company
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(a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate company

which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the

Act have represented to us and the other auditors of its subsidiaries and associate company

respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either

individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries and associate company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the Intermediary shall, tlirectly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and

associate company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate company

which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the

Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate company

respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either

individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Holding Company or any of such

subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Funding Parties"), with

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of

such subsidiaries and associate company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and

associate company which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been

audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the

other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1(e) contain

any material misstatement.

(v) The preference and equity dividend of the previous year, declared and paid by the Afcons Infrastructure

Limited ("AIL"), u ,rbridi*y of the Group upto 3'd November 2024 and associate w.e.f. 4th November

Zoz4,during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

The Board of Directors of by the AIL have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the

approval of the members of the AIL at the ensuing respective Annual General Meetings. Such dividend

proposed is in accordance with section I23 of the Act, as applicable.

The holding company and subsidiary companies which are companies whose

financial statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or

year and have not final dividend the year.
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(vi) Based on our examination 
'which included test checks and based on the other auditors report of its

subsidiary and associate company which are incorporated in India and whose financial statements have

been audited under the Act, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate company have used

accounting software for maintaining their books of account for the year ended March 31,2025 which

have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated for all relevant

transactions recorded in the software'

Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective other auditors, whose reports have been

furnished to us by the management of Holding company, have not come across any instance of the audit

trail feature being tampered with, in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the

audit trail feature was operating.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Holding Company, subsidiaries and associated

company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

(vii) With respect to the matters.specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies

(Auditor's Report) Order; 2020 ("CARO"/ "the Order) issued by the Central Government in terms of

Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the

CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the financial statements

to Which reporting under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the holding , we

give Annexure B for qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of

the said companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. I25710W V101055

CH

Chulawala
Partner
Membership No. I16819
UDIN: 25 1 168 1 9BMKSZE3I64

Place:Mumbai
Date:07th July,2025
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c&- Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

INDIA
615, 6th Floor, Palm Spring Centre, Near lnfinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 064.

Email : manish@kauman.in / kaushal@kauman.in

Annexure (B'to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph (i)(vii) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Goswami

Infratech Private Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2025

As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020, we report that there are unfavorable remarks given by

statutory auditors in their CARO report on the standalone financial statements of the respective companies

included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its associate which are as follows:-

Sr
No.

Name of the Company Holding Company I
Subsidiary Company/
Associate Company

Clause of no. of
CARO which is
unfavorable

I Goswami Infratech Private Limited Holding Company Clause 3(iii) (aXB)

2 Goswami Infratech Private Limited Holdine Company Clause 3(iiix0
J Goswami Infratech Private Limited Holding Company Clause 3(vii)&)
4 Goswami Infratech Private Limited Holdine Company Clause 3(xvii)

5 Hermes Commerce Private Limited Subsidiary Company Clause 3(iiiXc)

6 Renaissance Commerce Private Limited Subsidiary Company Clause 3(iii)(c)

For Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 1257l0W V10I055

Kaushal Chulawala
Partner
Membership No. 116819

UDIN: 25 I I 68 I 9BMKSZE3164

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07th July,2025

MEMBERSHIP
N0.116819
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ck- Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

INDIA
6'15, 6th Floor, Palm Spring Centre, Near lnfinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 064.

Email : manish@kauman.in / kaushal@kauman.in

Annexure 6A' to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our report of even date to

the members of GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRMTE LIMITED on the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended March 31,2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GOSWAMI INFRATECH

PRMTE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding

Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") and its associate company, which are

companies incorporated in India, as of 3lst March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company,

to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is applicable, which are companies

incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the holding company's internal financial controls with reference

to consolidated financial statements of holding company, subsidiary companies and associate company, which

are incorporated in India based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the

Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2073, to the extent

applicable to an audit ofinternal hnhncial controls, both applicable to an audit ofinternal financial controls and

Uoitr issueO by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

*

internal
and if such
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Chartered Accountants
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system with reference to cdnsolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit

of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud

or elTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in

terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Group and its associate internal financial controls system with reference to

consolidated fi nancial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A group's internal financial control.with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The

Group,s and its associate internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes

those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company

are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud.may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the

risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are

companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial

consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025,

over consolidated hnancial reporting criteria established by the Company

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

to
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to four

subsidiary companies, one associate company which are companies incorporated in India' is based on the

corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. our opinion is not qualified in

respect of this matter.

For Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. I 257 10WW10 1055

CH

Kaushal Chulawala
Partner
Membership No. 116819

UDIN: 25 1 168 I 9BMKSZE3I64

Place: Mumbai
Date:07th Jdy,2025
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL20I2PT C241323
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2025

tn

Note As at As at
PARTICULARS No. 3lst-Mar-2025 3lst-Mar-2024

12,63,583.77
t,299.00

455.20

84.30

L13

8,35,995.48
l,l 58.00

20,813.70

84.30

0.27

12,65,423.40 8,58,051.75

394.20
12,812.68

2,919.30
142.36

6,606.67

162.00

1,666.82

0.78
142.37

6,585.69
29,62.366.00

22,875,21 29,70,923.66

)

I.

I

lassn'rs

I

I Non-current assets

lProp.ny, Plant and Equipmenr

llnvestment property
I Goodwill on consolidation
lFinancial assets

I Investments

I Loans

Other financial assets

Income Tax Assets

Totat non-current assets

Current assets

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial asset

Income Tax Assets

Other current assets

Asset classified as held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0
ll
t2
l3

t4.l

12,88,298.61 38,28,975.41
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL20I2PT C2 41323

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3IST MARCH 2025

As per our report of even date attached

For Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

No: 0125710W/W101055

Kaushal Chulawala
Parlner
Membership No. 116819

UDrN No: 25l I 6g lq Btht<sZe3\ 6 \

PIacel Mumbai
Date: 07th Jul,2025

crruro\rszo9Dl2o I 2 PT c24 t323N JJ&-
Medardz\tto Amogh Patkar
Director \ Additional Director
(DrN-09178734) (DIN-09667256)

'W

For and on BehalfofBoard
For Goswami [nfratech Private Limited

Yugal Pravin Pathariya
Company Secretary
(Membership Number: A7 6771

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07th Jul,2025

ln

As at As atNote
31st-Mar-2024No. 31st-Mar-2025PARTICULARS

1.00

11,632.90

2.59.834.26

1.00

11,632.90

(43,l l 1.57)
(61,477.671 2,71,468.16

992.1t 4,30,221.29
(30.48s.56) 7,01,689.45

8,57,592.12
1,68,047.66

65,588.85

14,06,097.22

21,562.10

2,55,915.74

10,91,228.63 16,83,575.06

1,80,030.00

5.24

l0l.l9

47,403.31

15.80

1,80,030.00

4.41

38.61

14.32

10.56

12,63,613.00

2,27,555,54 14,43,710.90

31,27,285.9613,18,784.17

12,88,298.61 38,28,975.41

t7

l5
15.6

l6

r8
l9
20

2t
22

23

24

14.2

II.

A

B
I

a

Equity
Equity share capital
Instrument entirely equity in nature

Other equity
Equity atrributable to the owners of the Company
Non controlling interest
Total Equity

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Trade payables

i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises;

and

ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Current tax liabilities (net)

Other current liabilities
Liabilities pertaining to assets classified as held for sale

Total current Iiabilities

Material accounting Policies and accompanying notes are an integral part

of these Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total liabilities

Total equity & liabilities

Liabilities
Non Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non current liabilities

MUM8A.64

MEMBERSHIP
No 1i5819 -!

s
*
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL20I2PT C241323

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3IST MARCH 2025

tn

Year ended Year ended

Note 31st-Mar-2025 31st-Mar-2024
PARTICULARS

25

26

1,839.52

18.03

9,534.03
'744.58

Continuing Operations
Revenue from operations

Other income

1,8s7.s5 10,278.61Total Income (I + II)

27
28

2&3
29

3,57,634.55

32.1 8

0.22
80.35

22.48
2.06

750.29

3,32,715.81
Expenses:

Finance costs

Employee benefi t expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

3.57,741.30 3.33.490.65Total expenses

Loss bcfore exceptional items, share of net profits of investments accounted for
using equity method and tax from continuing operations (III - ry)

(3,ss,889.7s) (3,23,212.04)

7,071.21 (8e.01)
Share ofnet Loss olassociates and joint venture accounted for using the equity method

Loss before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (V + VD (3,48,8r8.s4) (3,23,301.0s)

4t 1,13,701.59 (1,1 83.66)Exceptional items

Loss bofore tax (VII - VIII) (4,62,520.131 Q,22,117.391

Tax expense:

(l ) Current tax
(2) Defened tax
(3) (Short) / Excess provision for income tax

30 (47,828. l 3)
t,90,239.25

0.39

(143.20)

I 33.98

(3.20.109.40) 6,22.394.57\Loss for the year from continuing operations (IX - X)

32,613.00
(9.911.00) (6. I 78.00)

20,668.00
Discontinued Operations (Refer Note 14.3.12)

Profit before tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year from discontinucd operations 22,702.00 14,490.00

(2.97 ,407.40\ (3.07.904.57)Loss for the year (XI + XII)

VIIL

x.

x

XII.

XIII

XL

L

It

III.

IV.

v.

vL

VII

!q
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL20I2PT C241323

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3IST MARCH 2025

As per our ofevcn date attached
For Kaushal Manish & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

No: 0125710W4il101055

Kaushal Chulawala
Partner
Membership N[. rl68l9
uDrN No: 25 \,1 69 \1 B fnt<S ZE 3 \61

Place: Mumbal
Date: 07th Jul,2025

C

tn

For and on BehalfofBoard
For Goswami Infratech Private Limited

Direclot Adtlitional Director
(DrN-096672s6)

ffi""
Yugal Pravin Pathariya
Company Secretary
(Membership Number: 476771

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07th Jul,2025

tLz

Year ended Year ended

Note 31st-Mar-2025 3lst-Mar-2024
PARTICULARS

Other tomprehensive income

Items that rvill not be reclasssified to profit or loss

Changes in Fair Value of Equity Investmets designated at FVTOCI

Deferred Tax Liability on Fair Value of Equity Investment Designated at FVTOCI

Remea$urements of defined benefi t plans

Deferred Tax on Remeasurements ofdefined benefit plans

Share ofnet Loss ofassociates and joint venture accounted for using the equity method

Items that may be reclasssilied to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating the financial statements ofa foreign operation

Share ofnet Loss ofassociates and joint venture accounted for using the equity method

30

483.00

(240.90)

438.72

87.64

(210.00)

53.00
(ile.77)

2,t8,476.78

(49,067.00)

(1,347.00)

(36.00)

8.00

49r.69 1,68,034.78Total other contprehensive income

(2,96,915.71\ 0,39,869.79)Total comprehensive Ioss for the year (XIII+XIV)

xIv
A
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

B
(i)

(ii)

xv

xvr

ProfiU (Loss) for the year attributable to :

Ownerg ofthe Company

Non Cdntrolling interest of the Company

Other comprehensive incomc

Owners ofthe Company

Non Controlling interest of the Company

Total !ther comprehensive income

OwnerJ ofthe Company

Non Controlling interest of the Company

Earniqgs per equity share:

A - Coptinuing Operations
(1 ) Basfc earing per share

(2) Diluted earing per share

B - Discontinued Operations
( I ) Basic earing per share

(2) Dil$ted earing per share

C - Coptinuing and Discontinued Operations
( I ) Bas[c earing per share

(2) Diluted earing per share

Material accounting policies & notes to accounts

3l

(3,03,143.06)

5,735.67

(3,02,945.81)

6,030.1 l

(32,01,080.10)
(32,01 ,080. l0)

(30,31,430.60)

(30,3 r,430.60)

197.25

294.44

1,69,U9.50
t,69,649.s0

(3,1 1,s02.4s)
3,597.89

1,68,199.50

(164.73)

(1,43,302.95)

3,433.t6

(32,23,308.30)
(32,23,308.30)

(3 1,1 5,024.s0)
(3 1,1 s,024.s0)

1,08,283.80

1,08,283.80

0c +
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GOSWAMI PR]VATf, LIMITED
CIN:
Consolidated Cash Statement for the yesr ended 3lst March 2025

ln
For the yeer ended

3lst-Mar-2024PARTICULARS
For the year ended

31st-Mar-2025

(4,29,907.13'

0.22

3,s7,634.55

I,13,70 1.59

(7,071.21)

(1,642.51)

(0.04)

483.00

(3,0r,449.3e)

2.06

3,32,7ts.8t
(1,1 83.66)

3t7.25

89.01

(9, l 38.35)
(325.68)

(2.44)
(731.74)

(1,347.00)

17,421.94

(1,t3,734.52)
(232.20)

63.41

1.1 2.1 84.00

5.24

33,198.47

(5,478.76)

53,686.00

28.34
(20.72)

(48,898.00)

208.25

18,945.87

7,52,j25,77

48,906.34

48,466.86

(8,01

18,470.98

ll

( 1.08)

(27,822.83)

82,241.90

7,15,093.59
(1 8,684.38)

1,639.57
(147.50)

6.50

(8,43,574.48)

33,46 1.50

0.94

325.68

2,181. l5
(3,58 1.85)

9,627.99

(A)

(B)

Cash from Op
Net Loss befor(

Adjustments F(

Add:
Depreciation
Finance Cost

Exceptional Ite
Sundry balance
Share ofnet Lo

method

Less :

Inleresl income

Dividend
Interest on IT F

Unclaimed lail
Reversal oflm;
Effect ofexcha

Operating pro

Adjustments F

(lncrease) / De<

(lncrease) / De<

(lncrease) / De<

Increase / (Decr

Increase / (Dec

Increase / (Dect

Cash generatei

Income taxes pt

Net Cash Flow

Cash FIow frol
Dividend recei

Purchase ofPn
Perpectual Loa

Perpectual Loa

Proceeds from
IPO expenses

Interest receivt
[,oan given
Proceeds from

Net Cash FIov

frating Activities:
r Taxation (from continuing and discontinued operations)

tr:

ms

written off
ss ofassociates andjoint venture accounted for using the equity

difference in translating foreign operations

fit/loss before working capital changes

'or Working Capital Changes
lrease in Non Current and Current Assets

lrease in Asset classified as held for sale

lreme in Trade Reeivables
fease) in Trade Payables

rease) in Liabilities pertaining to assets classified as held for sale

rease) in Non Current and Cunent Liabilities

m Investing Activities
red

rperty Plant and Equipment and Investment Property

r given

r given received back

nles ofinvestment in subsidiary

nge

.efund

)ility, Written Back
rairment Provision

d

oan given received back

from Investing Activities (B)

d(utilised) from Operations
rid net ofRefunds
from Operating Activities (A)

\6((r MUMBA-6q
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PARTICULARS

( r,703.68)

(7,61,3s7.77)

42,992.82

(2,1 r,148.99)

For the year ended

3lst-l\Iar-2025

As at
31st March,2025

7,946.03

4,866.42
0.23

As at
3lst lllarch,2024

8,11,555.21

105.25

1,561.23

0.34

2t

For th€ year ended

31st-lUar-2024

(3,78,723.11)
132.10

(2,9oo.oo)

14,30,858.04

310.00

(23,e02.78)

1,462,94

23,423.00

(34,795.00)

I,803.96

(c) Cssh FIow from Financing Activities
Finance cost palid

Funds received from Non controlling interest holders

Funds received,(repaid) to Non controlling interest holders

Proceeds from issue ofdebentures (including premium)

Proceeds from Non cunent borrowings

Debenture issuQ expense

Dividend paid

Repayment of frerpectual Ioan

Proceeds from lunent borrowings (Net)

Redemption of Debentures

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase i1 Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash & Cash Dquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equiv&lents rcquired on acquisition ofsubsidiary
Cash and Cas{ equivalents acquired on disposal ofsubsidiary
Cash & Cash {quivalents at the end ofthe year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statements
Balances with Banks
- in current aJcount
- in deposit acfount (with original maturity upto 3 months)
Cash on hanrl

Cash and cash equivalents included under asset held for sale
Total

GOSWAMI PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:
Consolidated Cash StBtement for the ye&r ended 3lst Merch 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
Notes
1 The above Cch 

4low 
Statement hs been prepare.d mder the 'Indirect Method' stout in Indim Accouting Standud - 7 on Statemcnt of Cch Flows.

2 Previous year figr]res have been regrouped/ reclcsified" wherever nrcessuy to @nfom to cuent year clrsification.

As per our report of even date attached

ln

For Kaushal lltanish & Co LLP
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GOSWAMI INTRATECH PRIVATE LIMTTED
CIN ! U45209D1r012PIC21t323
Consolidatcd Statcmcnt ofChmg6 in Equity for the yerr cndcd 3l!t M.rch,2025

P.rticul.6 Amount

Bslence ta lst April,2023 t.00

Chage in Equity Shue Capital duc r prior period ems
Rauted Lalace at dre begiming of tlrc cunmr repofting period

Chmgqlq qq!q$ it l during thc ye{
Bdrne .t 3lst Mafth, 2024 1.00

Chmgc in Equity Shuc Capital due to prior period ercn
R6tared balo@ at lhe begiming of drc cunot rcporting period

Chmgs in equity shue capital during drc yu
B.lmc..t 3lst M.rch, 2025 t.00

A! pcr our rcport of.vcn dat. rllrch.d

For Kaushal Muish & Co LLP
Charlend Accountrnts
Firm Registretion No: 012571ow/W101055

For Gosrmirnfnteh Privrtc Limitcd
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1.
Place: Mumbri
Date: 07ih Jul, 2025

Other f,ouitv
Iosltumcnt

ctrtirly cquity
in nrturc

Non-
Contmlling

lotcrcst

Totd Oahcr Equity
(ircludin! oth.r cquity

of Non Contrclling
lnt Bt)

P.rticula6
S..urity

Prcmium
R.taincd
E.ming

Reilc for Equity
lNtrumcna ahrcugh Othcr

Comprchcnsivc Incomc

Fonign curenqr
annslatiotr rcsaNG

B.l0cc rt lst April,2023 34,795.00 (3.4S.617.65) 7.47l,8{.21 3-s67-50 a-lo-629 -12
Profit / (Ics) for rhe yw /1 il 50? 45\ 3.59? 89 (3.07-904-361

Other Comprehemive Income for lhe yes (20.92\ t.69.221.04 {t-006 6l) fi64 73\ l-68-034-78
Totd comprchensivc incomc for thc year (].rr523J7) 1.69.227.04 Ir.006-6r ) 3-433.t6 4t39.a69-?8)
Addition during dle yed to Instument otirely equity in nature I 1,632.90 I r.632-90
R.paymilt duing lhe y@ to Instrumat atircly cquity in nmre (34,795.00) (34.795.00)

hcree in NCI o amut of bwincs ombinatim 4,26,120.63 426.120.63
D@re6e in NCl o a@uil of bsins @mbination (r32.10) fl32.10)
Fuds rei\rd from N@ qtrolling intcEt holdcG 132.10 t32.10

(2,900.00) (2.9fl).00)
Arcut reeiwd m issumce of dcbatua6 858 04 t56.04
Trmfer to retained emings 9,14,516.37 (9,14,516.31)

Other adjustments t7 s4 12.54
B.ls...t 3lsa Mrrh, 2024 I l -632-90 858-04 a-\1-447.49 2,534.94 n.006.61) 430.221.29 7.01.688-45
Profit / (Iass) for the yea (3.03.t43.06) 43.03-143-061

Other Comprehemive Inome for the yea (230.84) 308.04 120.05 6 030 l0 6-227 35
Total comprhensive income for the year a3-o1-173 St 30t.04 120.05 6.030_r0 (2-95-9t5^71)

Trmfer from Rcerue for Equity lrEtrumat lhrough Other Comprehmive [nome md

(785 0l) (14t d5t t.t27.47
Dsre6e in NCI m rc@uni of b6in6s @mbination (4.33.555.60) (433555.60t
Dividod paid (l 703 68) Il -703-58t
Balancc rt 3lst March.2025

I t-632-m 858-04 t46-7 ta n2\ 2501.52 240.91 992-tt (30-486-56)

Place: Mumb.i
Dr(e: 07th Jul,2025
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: 1323

I Notes to e Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

A. Corporate Information:
Goswami lprfratech Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on 30th August, 2012 as Goswami Infratech Private Limited in

India undei the Companies Act, 1956 ('Act) as a private company with liability limited by shares and its registered office at at Flat No.

706 and f]lat 207 to 7l2,7th Floor, Kanchanjunga Building, 18 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - ll000l. The Company and its
subsidiarieb are refened as "the Group".

B. Material Accounting Policies:

I Statement of Compliance

The financial statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3lst March, 2025,the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3 I st March, 2025, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as "Consolidated financial statements") have been prepared in
accordancg with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read together with
Companie! (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.Presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule III to the Companies Act,2013, "as amended", as applicable to the Consolidated Financial Statements have been followed.

Consllidated Financial Statements have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'), including the
r notifibd under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

II Basis ofPreparation and Presentation ofConsolidated Financial Statements:
i) The Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared on the Historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities

which havd been measured at fair value amount.
. Certain finfncial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair value;

Historical (ost is generally based on the fair value ofthe consideration given in exchane for goods and services.

ii) Opertaing cycle
Based on lhe nature of products/activities. of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation [n cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as l2 months for the purpose ofclassification ofits
assets and liabilities as current and non current .

iii) Current aId non-current classification:
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any ofthe following criteria:
. it is expe$ted to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the normal operating cycle;
. it is held frimarily for the purpose of being traded;
. it is expedted to be realised within l2 months after the reporting date; or
. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the

reporting dpte.

All other a{sets are classified as non-current.

A liability 
fs 

classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
. it is expeCted to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle;
. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
. it is due tP be settled within l2 months after the reporting date; or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilit), for at least l2 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement pl the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
All other Iihbilities are classified as non-current

iv) Recent Acpounting Pronoucement

Ministry o[ Corporut. Aflairs ("MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (lndian

Accountin$ Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31,2025, MCA has notified new standards or

amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company as follows:.

The ,

rules
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GOSW INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: 1323

I Notes to e Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

New and amended standards

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On August 12,2024 and September 09,2024, MCA issued the Companies

(lndian Acgounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024

introducinpl following changes:

i) Ind AS il7, Inrur*.r Contracts was introduced and Ind AS 104: Insurance Contracts was withdrawn. This was accompanied with
consequent amendments in other standards.

ii) The amendments clariry accounting treatment for a seller-lessee involved in sale and leaseback transactions, and introduced some

related illuftrative examples. The above amendments have been considered by the Group in preparation of the Financial Statements. The

amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the

curent or drture periods.

New and amended standards issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated 7th May 2025, has issued amendments to the Companies (lndian
Accountin$ Standards) Rules,2015. These amendments primarily relate to Ind AS 2l -The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange

Rates and lnd AS l0l - First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after I April 2025.

These changes provide guidance on assessing currency exchangeability, estimating spot exchange rates when currencies are not
exchangeable, and related disclosures.

The Group is evaluating the impact of these amendments. Based on initial assessment, no material impact is expected.

v) Presentation of fi nancial statements
These cons]olidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (Rs..), which is the functional currency of the Group. All financial
informatiori presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest' in lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

vi) Business combinations:
Acquisitioris of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transfered in a business combination is
measured ft fair value, which is calculated as the sum ofthe acquisition-date fair values ofthe assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquired business and the equity interests issued by the Group and fair value of any

asseU liabifity resulting from contingent consideration arrangement in exchange ofcontrol ofthe acquired business. Acquisition-related

costs are g$nerally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acq{isition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:
. defened tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordancg with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS l9 Employee Benefits respectively;
. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group fntered into to replace share-based payment arangements ofthe acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-

based Payrhent at the acquisition date ; and
. assets (or; disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinu[d Operations are measured in aicordance with that Standard.

III Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and entities controlled by the Group and its
subsidiarieN. Control is achieved when the Group:

. has powel over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the a\ility to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elpments ofcontrol listed above

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are

suflicient tf give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities ofthe investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts

and circunlstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

<t
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INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:

I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

. the size ofthe Group's holding ofvoting rights relative to the size and dispersion ofholdings ofthe other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

. rights ari{ing from other contractual arrangements; and

. any addiiional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the cunent ability to direct the relevant

activities ai the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders'meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the

subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated

statement Jf profit and loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or l(ss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling

interests. Tjotal comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When nec{ssary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's adcounting policies. Accordingly, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of all Subsidiares for the purpose of
Consolidation. All intra Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between members

of the Gro{p are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Equity Melhod

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group's

share ofthp net assets ofthe associate orjoint venture, since the acquistion date. On acquisition ofthe investment in an associate or a
joint ventufe, any excess ofthe cost ofthe investment over the Group's share ofthe net fair value ofthe identiable assets and liabilities of
investee is recognised as Goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value ofthe identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost ofthe investment is recognised in equity as Capital reserve, in the

period in t{ni.n tn. investment is acquired.

The Consdlidated Statement ofProfit and Loss reflects the Group's share ofthe results ofoperations ofthe associate orjoint venture.

Any change in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is presented as part of the Group's OCI. In addition, when there has been a change

recognised directly in the equity ofthe associate orjoint venture, the Group recognises its share ofthat changes, when applicable, in the

Consolidaled Statement of Changes in Equity. Unrealised gains or losses, resulting from transactions between the Group and the

associate or.ioint venture, are eliminated to the extent ofthe interest in the associate orjoint venture.

When the proup's share oflosses ofan associate or ajoint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that associate orjoint venture (which

includes aty long-term interests that, in substance, form part ofthe Group's net investment in the associate orjoint venture), the Group

discontinues recognising its share offurther losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal

or construdtive obligations or made payments on behalfofthe associate orjoint venture. Ifthe associate orjoint venture subsequently

reports prdfits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profit equals the share of losses not

recognised.

The carryiirg amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note C(i)

below.

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are

accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to

reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests

are adjustdd and the fair value ofthe consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners ofthe Group.
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GOSW INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: t323

I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

When the loses control ofa subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any r€tainod interest and (ii) the previous carrying

assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previouslyamount of
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as ifthe Group had directly disposed ofthe
related or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as

by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is
initial

as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on

ofan investment in an associate or ajoint venture.

The statements ofthe Group, its subsidiaries, its associates and itsjoint ventures given in the below table are consolidated.

The list of which are included in the consolidation and the Group's holdings therein are as under:

3lst March 2025 31st March 2024Name of Subsidiary
7o Holding % Holdine

Afcons Infiastructure Limited Group (w.e.f. l3th January, 2024 upto 03rd November,
2024\ 74.73

lWs. G.S E ntemrises 50.00 50.00
Hermes Co mmerce Private Limited r 00.00 100.00

Renaissanc e Commerce Private Limited 100.00 100.00

Hazarat anr I Company Private Limited 74.73

Afcons Cor rosion Protection Private Limited 74.73

Afcons Hy, lrocarbons Engineering Private Limited 74.73

Afcons Oil & Gas Services Private Limited* 74.73

Afcons Infi astructures Kuwait for Buildine, Road and Marine Contracting WLL* 36.62

Afcons Cor rstruction Mideast LLC* 74.73

Afcons Gu f Intemational Proiects Services FZE # 74.73

Afcons Ma :ritius Infrastructure Limited 74.73

Afcons Ovr :rseas Singapore Pte Limited 74.73

Afcons Infi a Proiects Kazakhstan LLP o/o 74.73

3lst March 2025

74.73

3lst March 2024

Afcons Gabon SARL %

Name of Joint Operation
7o Holdine 7o Holdine

Dahei Stan Jby Jetty Proiect Undertaking 74.73

Afcons Gu ranusa Joint Venture 74.73

Afcons Par ling Joint Venture 74.73

Afcons Sib most Joint Venture 74.73

Afcons Vii :ta PES Joint Venture 74.73

Afcons SM C Joint Venture 74.73

Afcons - V iieta Joint Venture 74.73

Afcons JAI , Joint Venture 74.73

Transtonne lstroy Afcons Joint Venture 73.98

Afcons KP tL Joint Venture 38.11

36.62Afcons Ser er LNG Construction Pro.lects Private Limited
35.12Ircon Afco rs Joint Venture
29.89Strabag A( Afcons Joint Venture
74.73Afcons Infi astructure Ltd and Vijeta Projects and Infrastructures Ltd Joint Venture
7 4.73Afcons - V ieta Joint Venture
74.73Afcons - H ndustan Joint Venture
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INFRATECH PRIYATE LIMITED
CIN: 1323

I Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternent for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

The list of which are included in the consolidation and the therein are as under:

AIL has less than a majority pf the voting rights of the investee, it has power over the investee as the voting rights are

give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities ofthe investee unilateraly.

^"During ,year AIL has acquired balance 26% shares of Afcons Oil & Gas Services Private Limited
previous year AIL has acquired balance 5l% shares of Afcons Construction Mideast LLC
of Afcons Mauritius Infrastructure Limited.
ofAfcons Overseas Singapore Pte Ltd.

C. Other accounting policies:

i) Impai of Assets:

The values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of
exists.

If the amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The

loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement ofProfit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which

case any

asset.

loss ofthe revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that

amount is the greater ofthe net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future

to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor

sufficient

*l

#

*During

o/o

The

c

E
*
C

3Ist March 2025 3lst March 2024

7o Holdins % Holdins
Name of Subsidiary

27.22Afcons Inf astructure Limited Group (w.e.f. 04th November,2024)
27.22 74.73I Company Private LimitedHazarat an

27.22 74.73Afcons Co: 'rosion Protection Private Limited
lrocarbons Engineering Private Limited 27.22 74.73Afcons Hy

Afcons Oil & Gas Services Private Limited- 27.22 74.73

13.34 36.62Afcons Inf 'astructures Kuwait for Building, Road and Marine Contracting WLL+
27.22 74.73Afcons Co rstruction Mideast LLC*
27.22 74.73Afcons Gu f Intemational Projects Services FZE #

27.22 74.73Afcons Ma uritius Infrastructure Limited
:rseas Singapore Pte Limited 27.22 74.73Afcons Ov

Afcons Inf a Proiects Kazakhstan LLP % 27.22 74.73

27

31st March 2025

74.73

3lst March 2024

Afcons ect Gabon SARL %

Name of Joint Operation
7o Holdine 7o Holding

Dahei Stan Jby Jetty Proiect Undertaking 27.22 74.73

Afcons Gu ranusa Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

Afcons Par Lling Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

Afcons Sit most Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

Afcons Vii eta PES Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

Afcons Slv C Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

Afcons - V iieta Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

Afcons JA , Joint Venture 27.22 74.73

73.98I ranstonn( lstroy Afcons Joint Venture 26.95

Afcons KP IL Joint Venture 13.88 38.r I

Afcons Ser ,er LNG Construction Proiects Private Limited 13.34 36.62

t2.79 35.12Ircon Afco rs Joint Venture
10.89 29.89Strabag A( iAfcons Joint Venture
27.22 74.73Afcons Inf 'astructure Ltd and Viieta Proiects and Infrastructures Ltd Joint Venture
27.22 74.73Afcons - V iieta Joint Venture

Afcons - H industan Joint Venture 27.22 74.73
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
clN : ulsf oe DL2ot2PT c241323

I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

When therd is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no

longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal ofimpairment loss is recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss, to the extent the

amount waf previously charged to the Statement ofProfit and Loss. In case ofrevalued assets, such reversal is not recognised.

ii) Foreign Currency Transactions / Translations:

i) Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date oftransaction or at rates that closely

approximaie the rate at the date ofthe transaction.

ii) Monetaly assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the

exchange rfte at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency

are translatpd at the exchange rate at the date ofthe transaction.

iii) Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at

which the! were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous Consolidated financial statements are recognized in the

Statement ff Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

iv) For each entity (branches, subsidiaries and Jointly controlled operations and associate), the Group determines the functional currency

and items iircluded in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional culrency.

In preparin]g these consolidated financial statements, the Group has applied following policies

A) Foreigq Branches ofthe Group (outside India with functional currency other than presentation currency):

(a) IncomN and expense items are translated at the exchange rates at the dates ofthe transactions and all resulting exchange differences

are recognlsed in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

(b) Non-mpnetary assets and liabilities are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies and are not translated at the rates

prevailing [t the reporting period. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.

Exchange diff.r.n..r on translations are recognised in the Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss.

B) Joint Operations and subsidiaries outside India with functional curency other than presentation curency:

(a) Assets {nd liabilities, both monetary and nonmonetary are translated at the rates prevailing at the end ofeach reporting period.

(b) Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during tha{ period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (and attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

(v) Foreig4 currency transactions and balances

In preparirfg the consolidated financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's

functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates ofexchange prevailing at the dates ofthe transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-

monetary i[ems canied at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the

fair value r1[,as determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign curency are not retranslated.

Exchanse d

. Exchangd

ifferences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for:

differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and
. Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor

likely to fccur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other

compreherfsive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

On the diqposal ofa foreign operation (i.e. a disposal ofthe Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
control ov[r a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a

financial afset), all ofthe exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect ofthat operation attributable to the owners ofthe Group

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In additio{r, in relation to a partial disposal of a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control over the foreign

operation, the proportionate share ofaccumulated exchange differences is re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised

in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals ofassociates orjoint amangements that do not result in the Group

losing sigrfificant
loss.

Goodwill lrd aO

influence orjoint control), the proportionate share ofthe accumulated exchange differences is reclassifred to profit or

value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed operation are

foreign operation and translated at the rate oftreated
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
ctN : ulsbos DL2ol2PTC24r323

I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

iii) Financial

Financial apsets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions ofthe instruments.

Financial {ssets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of financial assets and'financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss are immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level l, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to

the fair vatue measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described Js follows:

. Level I input are quoted prices (unadjused) in active markets for identical aseets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurment

date;

. Level 2 indut are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level l, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly dnd

. Level 3 inquts are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Financial hssets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the fi nancial assets.

Classification:
Instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contiactual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principhl amount outstanding.

All other flnancial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Investmenfis in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

On initial 
j..ognition, 

the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent

changes in] fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These

elected inrjestments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains

and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve for 'equity

instrumentp through other comprehensive income'.

Effective interest method
The effecti]ve interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the

relevant R(riod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and amounts

that form dn integral part ofthe effective in[erest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life ofthe
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is lecognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest

income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the "Other income" line item.

Investmerits in equity instruments at fair value through statement of prolit and loss (FVTPL)
Financial hssets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on

remezsurement recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

incorporatfs any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the

Company'[ right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to

the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
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I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, loan

commitmelts, trade receivables, financial guarantees not designated as FVTPL and other contractual rights to receive cash or other

financial a3set.

For trade rbceivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the

scope of Ind AS I 15 Revenue Recognition, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit

losses.

Further, fof the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss ('ECL') allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a

practical e*pedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

For recogrfition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, l2-month ECL is used to
provide foJ impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. It, in a subsequent period, credit
quality oft[re instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to rfcognising impairment loss allowance based on l2-month ECL.

Lifetime EpL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The

l2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within l2 months after the reporting

date.

offinancial assets

A asset is derecognised only when
-The has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

contractual rights to receive the cash flows ofthe financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to
recipients.

-retains

Where the has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards ofownership
ofthe financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.

Foreign exfhange gains and losses

The fair va]lue offinancial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate

at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency denominated hnancial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the

exchange are recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

Financial ities and equity instruments

as debt or equity
Debt and instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity ments

An equity is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets ofan entity after deducting all ofits liabilities. Equity
instrumentE issued by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net ofdirect issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financful liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. Borowings are

intially recognised at fair value, net oftransaction costs incurred.

Financial fiabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are

determined based on the effective interest method.

DerecogniIion of fi nancial liabilities
The Grouf derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange f.t*r.n with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the

original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial

liability (rlhether or not attributable to the financial difliculty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original

financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecogni$d and the consideration paid orpayable is recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.
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GOSWAN,TI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
crN : ulsf ol DL2ot2PT c241323

I Notes to tle Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

Offsetting fi nancial instruments
Financial apsets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to

offset the r[cognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The legallf enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course ofbusiness and in the

event ofdefault, insolvency or bankuptcy ofthe Group or the counterparty.

iv) Income ta{:

Income tax expense comprises current and defened tax. It is recognised in Statement ofprofit and loss except to the extent that it relates

items reco$nised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tdx
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax

payable or feceivable in respect ofprevious years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current ta:l assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:

i) has a leg[lly enforceable right to set offthe recognised amounts; and

ii) intends fitner to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tpx
Deferred tfx is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting fu.po..r and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred t4x assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable t{at future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting

date and a{e reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed

when the phobability of future taxable profits improves.

Defened t{x liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted

for if it ari]ses from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the

transactionl affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tpx liabilities are not recognized for temporary diflerences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in

subsidiariep, branches and interest in joint arrangements where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary

difference! and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Defened Fx assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in

subsidiari$, branches and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future

and taxabl$ profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Unrecogniped deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future

taxable prdfits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred il.o*. tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end ofthe reporting

period are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the

reporting

Defened

to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

i) the

assets and liabilities are offset only if:
has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

ii) the

entity.

tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
crN : ulsbos DL2ot2PT c241323

I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

v) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is measured at the fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. Income from other services is recognised as and when

the serviceg are performed as per the terms bf agreement with the respective parties.

Rendering Pf services

Revenue fr[m providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Invoices arb issued according to contractual terms and are usually payable as per the credit period agreed with the customer.

Construction contracts

The Group recognises revenue from engineering, procurement and construction contracts ('EPC') over the period oftime, as performance

obligationf are satisfied over time due to continuous transfer of control to the customer. EPC contracts are generally accounted for as a

single perfdrmance obligation as it involves complex integration of goods and services.

The obligations are satisfied over time as the work progresses. The Group recognises revenue using input method (i.e.

method), based primarily on contract cost incurred to date compared to total estimated contract costs. Changes

to total contract costs, ifany, are recognised in the period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level. Ifthe
in the contract includes price variation clause or there are amendments in contracts, the Group estimates the amount of
to which it will be entitled in exchange for work performed.

Due to nature of the work required to be performed on the performance obligations, the estimation of total revenue and cost at

is complex, subject to many variables and requires significant judgment. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily

due to damages, price variation clauses, changes in scope, incentives, discounts, if any. The Group considers its experience

with simil4r transactions and expectations regarding the contract in estimating the amount of variable consideration to which it will be

entitled anf determining whether the estimated variable consideration should be constrained. The Group includes estimated amounts in

the transaltion price to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the

uncertainql associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The estimates of variable consideration are based largely on an

assessmen! of anticipated performance and all information (historical, current and forecasted) that is reasonably available. Various

agreement$ are entered with customers wherein the Group pays a certain portion ofthe ftnance cost to the funding agencies ofthe project.

In practicef these payments are considered as payment on behalfofthe customer. These payments are not related to a distinct service or

product by customer. An estimated amount to be paid over the lifecycle ofthe project is calculated and accordingly the same is accounted

for as a reduction ofcontract revenue.

Progress bfllings are generally issued upon completion of certain phases of the work as stipulated in the contract. Billing terms of the

over-time tontracts vary but are generally based on achieving specified milestones. The difference between the timing of revenue

recognised and customer billings result in changes to contract assets and contract liabilities. Payment is generally due upon receipt ofthe

invoice, p{yable within 90 days or less. Contractual retention amounts billed to the customers are generally due upon expiration of the

contract plriod or any other conditions as mentioned in the contract.

The contr4cts generally result in revenue recognised in excess of billings which are presented as contract assets on the statement of
financial Rlsition. Amounts billed and due from customers are classified as receivables on the statement of financial position. The portion

of the payinents retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not considered a significant financing component since it is
usually intpnded to provide customer with a form of security for Group's remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is

consistent with the industry practice. Contract liabilities represent amounts billed to customers in excess ofrevenue recognised till date.

A liability is recognised for advance payments and it is not considered as a significant financing component since it is used to meet

working cdpital requirements at the time df project mobilization stage. The same is presented as contract liability in the statement of
financial fosition. Amounts received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as contract liability and

termed as *Advances from customer".

Estimates !f revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or

decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the

revision bdcome known by management.

For constrtuction

completio{ of the

loss is recdgnised

contracts the control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised based on the extent of progress towards

performance obligations. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected

as an expense immediately. The percentage of completion is based primarily on contract cost incurred to date compared

contract in order to reflect the effective completion of the project. This percentage of completion

or as per the contractual terms specified. A construction contract is considered completed when

which occurs upon contractual transfer ofownership ofthe asset.

to total estimated contract cost for each

could be hased on technical milestones

the last telhnical milestone is achieved,
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vii) P

INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U 1323

I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

Dividend interest income

Interest from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount

of income be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective

interest applicable.

Dividend
probable

from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is

the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Other lncome

Income export incentives is recognised on cash basis to the extent the ultimate realisation is reasonably certain.

vi) Employee

benefit costs and termination benefits

Employee

and leave

Payments

include provident fund, superannuation fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences

defined contribution retiremerit benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling

them to contributions.

The or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit

the end ofthe reporting period less fair value ofplan assets.obligation

For retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial

valuations carried out at the end ofeach annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the eflect

of the to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the

balance with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement

in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past

servlce is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at

the ofthe period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

costs are categorised as follows:
(including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

expense or income; and

Defined
.Service
.Net

The

The
yields at

The

Group's
available

A liability
benefit

presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits expense'.

gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market

end of the reporting period on lovemment bonds.

benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated financial statements represents the actual deficit or surplus in the

benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits

the form ofrefunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination

when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs

and other long-term employee benefits

A liability
period the

is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries, wages and other short term employee benefits in the

service is rendered at the undiscounted amount ofthe benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Provision leave benelits to employees is based on actuarial valuation done by projected accrued benefit method at the reporting date.

A is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of
resources be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If effect of the time value of money

The

is provisions are discounted using an appropriate discount rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability

recognised as a provision is the best estimate ofthe consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end ofthe

When is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage oftime is recognised in Statement ofprofit and loss.

reporting taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash

flows to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows of the time

value of is material).

When or all ofthe economic benefits required to settle a provision are ls

L1UMEA.64q
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liabilities are disclosed in the Notes liab

and Contingent Liabilities:

as an asset if it is virtually certain



GOSWAYI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL2012PTC241323

I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

-possible fbligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group, or

-present o$ligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation

or a reliabld estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

A contingept asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occunence or non

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

viii) Borrowin! costs:

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with

reference t{ the effective interest rate (EIR) applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifoing assets, which are assets that necessarily

take a subdtantial period oftime to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost ofthose assets, until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest in(ome eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualiffing assets is deducted

from the b$rrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other bbrrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period which they are incurred.

ix) Earnings fer share:

Basic Earnfings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders ofthe

Group by tire weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted ea4nings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination ofbasic eamings per share to take into account

-the after i[come tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

+he weigfrted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive

potential e{uity shares.

x) Segment rpporting:

An operati]ng segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur

expenses, rlvhose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's chiefoperating decision maker in order to effectively allocate the

Group's resources and assess performance.

The Holdirfg Company operates in one reportable business segment i.e. "Real Estate & Other Activities realted to il'.

In case of ,flfcons Infrasturcture Limited, a subsidiary of the holding company refer note 14.3.14 for segment information.

xi) Cash and pash equivatents:
For the pufpor. ofpresentation in the Statement ofCash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call

with finanfial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily

convertibl{ to known amounts ofcash and which are subject to an insignificant risk ofchanages in value, bank overdrafts and balance

with bank. Bank overdrafts are shown within bonowings in cunent liabilities in the Balance Sheet.
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
crN : ulsfol DL2ot2PTc24t323

1 Notes to thle Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

xii) Property, flant and equipment and Intangible assets

A) Proper(y, plant and equiPment
property, piant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of property, plant

and equipnlent comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those

recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,

other expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition ofqualifiing fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready

use. It also includes initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is

located. cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised if replacement meets the recognition criteria.

Carrying of items replaced is derecognised. Cost of major inspections is recognised in the carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment a replacement, if recognition criteria are satisfied and any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous inspection is

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be

irregular
relevant

capitalised (if they meet the asset recognition criteria) and depreciated over the useful life of the principal item of the

Subsequent expenditure on property plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalised only if such

expenditurN results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard ofperformance.

Estimated Lrseful lives of the assets are as follows:
Buildings
Fumiture

60 years

fixtures - l0 years

Vehicles - 0 years

Office - 5 years

Laptop- 3

Freehold is not depreciated

assets estimated useful life is different than the useful life prescribed in schedule II to the Companies Act,2013 and has

on technical advice, taking into account the nature ofthe asset, the estimated usage ofthe asset, the operating conditions of
history ofreplacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

been

the asset,

Plant & (except Tunnel Boring Machines) which includes Cranes < 100 mt., Concreting, Crushing, Piling, Road making,

& Welding Equipment, Floating Equipment - 20 Years.

Machines - Length ofthe tunnel bored over life ofthe construction project for where it is used.

materials, issued to jobs, is charged offequally over a period of 4 years.

An item property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from

the use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is

as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Capital
and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental

attributable interest.

B) Inta assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and

method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a

basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated

losses. Useful life is as below:

Computer

For

for its

Tunnel

Cost of

Property,

expenses

An
from

- 5 years

is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses

of an intangible asset, measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
clx : ulslos DL2otzPTc24t323

I Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

xiii) Investmenf PropertV

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for such

purposes). lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs and where applicable borrowing cost.

Subsequeni to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS l6's requirements for cost model.

property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future

economlc are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition ofthe property (calculated as the difference

between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in

which the is derecognised.

on Investment Property

amount for assets is the cost ofan asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.

investment properties of the Group has been provided on the written-down method as per the useful life prescribed in

An

Schedule

xiv) Goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill
associate

Goodwill
Goodwill

to the Act.

Consolidation

the portion of a purchase price for an acquisition that exceeds the Group's share of the identifiable assets, with

for liabilities, calculated on the date ofacquisition.

from the acquisition of associate companies and joint ventures is included in the value of the Group's holdings in the

joint ventures.

deemed to have an indefinite useful life and is reported at acquisition value with deduction for accumulated impairments.

tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount of a cash

is less than its carrying amount based on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flows

and conditions. The recoverable amount ofcash generating units is determined based on higher ofvalue-in-use and fair value

less cost sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash generating unit or groups of cash-generating units

which are from the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for

internal purposes.

Market information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management has

based its,
operating

of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated

Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent management's best estimate about future

Any loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss, and is not reversed in

periods. On disposal ofthe relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount ofgoodwill is included in the determination

ofthe Statement Profit and Loss on disposal.

xv) ts in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates:

Su

are all entities over which the Company has control, including through its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company
ability to

power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the

its power to affect its returns.

in subsidiaries are accounted at cost less provision for impairment.

An is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control. Significant influence is the

power to in the financial and operating policy decisions ofthe investee but is not control orjoint control over those policies.

in associates are accounted at cost less provision for impairment.
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INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U t323

I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

Jointly Controlled Operations
Afcons Infrastructure Limited (AIL), AIL enters into Joint Venture arrangement with other parties for execution of
arrangements for which an unincorporated vehicle is formed having an independent legal status for the tax purpose i.e.

of person/Body of individual etc. Such arangement (also called as jointly controlled operations) is considered as extension

if in accordance with the terms of the arrangement, AIL acts as a principal and remains solely liable for the executing the

entire on its own, funding or contributing assets and is also responsible for all the liabilities in the unincorporated vehicle.

, all the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses pertaining to such unincorporated vehicle is consolidated in the separate

financial of the AIL.

Similarly, case the AIL is acting as an agent in such kind of arrangements, where the other party to the arrangement is solely liable for

the the entire project on its own, funding or contributing assets and is also responsible for all the liabilities in the

vehicle. Accordingly, the AIL recognises its share of profits/fees as determined in the arrangement in the separate

financial of the AIL.

When the [,lL enters into a joint venture (JV) arrangement with other parties and an unincorporated vehicle is formed which has a

separate st{tus for tax purposes (i.e. Association of person/Body of individual etc.) and if as per the terms of agreement, the AIL remains

liable for dtt tt. tiuUititi.s ofthe unincorporated vehicle and is also responsible for funding or contributing assets to the unincorporated

vehicle fo{ construction activity, this unincorporated vehicle (also considered and called as Jointly controlled operation) has been

considered as an extension ofthe AIL from accounting point ofview and assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are consolidated on the

basis ofits share in the operations in the separate financial statement ofthe AIL.

xvi) of Cash Flow:
Statement

Cash flow
i. changes

Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities.

operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables, transactions of a non-cash nature;

iii. all
items such as depreciation, proiisions, and unrealised foreign curency gains and losses etc.; and

items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

For the of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call

with institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily

to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank

overdrafts shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

xvii) Inventori(s:
Inventorie$ are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for

inventoried less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted

average

xviii) Leases:

The as Iessee:

Interests in
L case ofl

constructiofr

of

Leases

group.
recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the

may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group has elected not to separate lease and non-lease

and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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borrow
similar

or that triggers the payment occurs. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in

the ofthe liability. The lease payments are discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate (since the interest rate

implicit in lease cannot be easily determined). Incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to

a similar term, and a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a

environment.

Lear" payrl,ents are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as

to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-uIe assets

Right-of-u$e assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, lease payments made before

the commefrcement date, any initial direct costs and restorations cost.

Right-of-u$e assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straighhline basis. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulatld depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

Extension fnd termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term the management considers all facts

and circulstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.

Defened t{x on the deductible temporary difference and taxable temporary differences in respect of carrying value of right of use assets

and lease lfability and their respective tax bases are recognised on a net basis.

Short terJ teases and leases of low value assets

Payments {ssociated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an

expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise assets having

value less than Rs 3.50 Lakhs.

xix) Governmdnt grants, subsidies and export incentives

Govemmeht grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and tfrat the grants will be received.

Govemmeht grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the

related colts for which the grants are intended to compensate.

D. Critical Alcounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainity

In the ap$lication of the accounting policies, which are described in note l.B, the directors of the Group are required to make

judgement!, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Tfre estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual resirlts may differ from these estimates.

The estim{tes and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the

period in i"ti.tr tt. estimate is revised ifthe revision affects only that period, or in the period ofthe revision and future periods ifthe

revision adfects both current and future periods.

I Provision and contingencies

In the norlnal course of business, contingent liabilities arise from litigations and claims. Potential liabilities that are possible but not

probable Qf crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such contingent liabilities are

disclosed [n the notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither recognized nor disclosed as contingent

liability. Tfh. ,*ug.r.nt decides whether the matters needs to be classified as 'remote,' 'possible' or 'probable' based on expeft advice'

pastjudgeinents, terms ofthe contract, regulatory provisions etc.
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Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March' 2025

Lease

Assets and arising from a lease initially measured on include net present value ofpresent value basis. Lease liabilities the

The lease payments include fixed payments ln less lease incentives(including substance fixed payments) any

lease payments initially measured using the index or a rate at the commencemont date and amounts expectedthat are

residual value guarantees. payments also include the exerclse of optionThe lease price purchase reasonably certain to

the lease

recoiYablo,

to be paid

be by Group ofpenalties terminating lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising optionthe and payments for the the to

terminate. lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate tue recognised as expenses ln the period tn which the event
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GOSWAYI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209 DL20I2PT C241323

I Notes to thl Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

2 Taxes

The Croup calculates income tax expenses based on reported income. Deferred income tax expenses is calculated based on the

difference fetween the carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and their respective tax basis that are

considered ]temporary nature, Valuation ofdefened tax assets is dependent assessment offuture recoverability ofthe deferred tax benefit.

Economic donditions may change and lead to a different conclusion about recoverability.

The Group lis subject to tax in a number ofjurisdictions and judgement required in the worldwide provision for income taxes.

3 Revenue rdcognition
The Group]s revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note l.C.v, is central to how the Group values the work it has carried out in

each financ[al year.

These polifies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of long-term construction services, which require assessments and

judgement! to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

Across conftruction services there are several long-term and complex projects where the Croup has incorporated significantjudgements

over contr{ctual entitlements. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to underlying

profitabilitj, and cash flow.
Estimates also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects ofthe contract.

of stage of completion;
of project completion date;

for foreseeable losses; and
.Estimated revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations.

These are at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Revenue costs in respect of construction contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at

the end of reporting period, measured based on the proportion ofcontract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the

contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work,
claims and payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When it probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense

4 Useful ofproperty, plant and equipment
As at note above, the Group revi6ws the estimated useful lives ofproperty, plant and equipment and residual values at the end

of each period. There was no change in the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment as compared to

previous

5 Impairmerft of trade receivables and contract assets

The recovefability oftrade receivables is regularly reviewed in the light ofthe available economic information specific to each receivable

and specifif provisions are recognised for balances considered to be irrecoverable.

The impairfnent provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk ofdefault and expected loss rates. The Group uses

judgement 
[n making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group's past history, credit risk,

existing m{rket conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. The expected credit loss allowance

for trade rgceivables is made based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and

adjusted flr forward-looking information. Where the actual cash shortfalls vary from those estimated, these could impact the level of
profit or lofs recognised by the Group. The same policies are followed for contract assets.

6 Retirement benelit obligations
Details of lhe Croup's defined benefit pension schemes are set out in Note above, including tables showing the sensitivity of the pension

scheme obiigations and assets to different actuarial assumptions.

The preseqt value ofdefined benefit obligations is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market

yields at th[ end of reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

7 Arbitratioh claims

The forecapt profit on contracts includes keyjudgements over the expected recovery ofcosts arising from the following: variations to the

contract refiuested by the customer, compensation events, and claims made by the Group for delays or other additional costs for which

the custompr is liable. These claims could result in disputes that get settled through an arbitration process wherein the outcome of these

awards indluding the timing and the amount (including interest thereon) requires a reasonable degree of estimation. The inclusion of
level ofprofit or loss recognized by the Group.

..+.'-'-']-

A\vA

rlE' MBERSHIP

\"-ltOgl 
q

UM8A.64

*
\\* N

M

Y)

requires estimation of their recoverability and could impact the

,tr



INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U 1323

I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March' 2025

of Joint Arrangement as a Jointly Controlled Operation /Joint Venture

Operation is a joint affangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the

igations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangements. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an

which exist only when decisicins about the relevant activities require unanimous consent ofthe parties sharing control.

8

A Jointly

assets and

When an

operation

9

10 Critical J
Afcons In

undertakes its activities underjoint operations, the Group as ajoint operator recognises in relation to its interest in ajoint

a)Its including its share ofany assets heldjointly;
b)Its including its share ofany liabilities incurredjointly;

ofthe contractual arrangements entered into between the

irrespective of the legal form.parties to tftejoint zurangements for execution ofthe project

Critical Jr]dgement for treatment of M/s G.S. Enterprises

In case of fiifference of opinion Goswami Infratech Private
as'Subsidiary'
Limited ('Holding Company') is authorized to decide on the matters and its

decision be final and binding on the partner/s indicating that Goswami Infratech Private Limited has control on matters of IWs

G.S. thus it is treated as subsidiary of Goswami Infratech Private Limited (Holding company).

for Potential Voting Rights in 250,000,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (Afcons CCPS) of
re Limited (Afcons) held by the Company

The Company has invested in 25,00,00,000 0.01% Fully and compulsorily convertible non cumulative, non participatory

preferance of Rs. l0/- issued by AIL.

According to terms and conditions, which were approved by the equity shareholders ofAIL via special resolution on l7 July 2020, the

preferance share had early conversion period at any time on or after 3 I st July 2020 ("Early conversion date") prior to l3th January 2024,

( "Mandato[y Conversion Date").

The terms [nd conditions of compulsory convertible preference shares held by the holding company were amended in 2022 by varying /
defening he Early Conversion date'on or after 3lst January 2023' from 'any date on or after 3lst July 2020' via passing a special

resolution. Accordingly the preference shares were carrying rights of automatically and mandatorily be converted into equity shares on

l3th Janulry, 2024 ("mandatory conversion date") or any early date ofconversion at the instruction ofthe Preference shareholder ("early

conversior| date").

During thd previous year, on mandatory conversion date, pursuant to the resolution passed by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee

of the AId on l3th January 2024 ,the said preference shares were converted into equity shares of the AIL and the holding company,

preferencd shareholder of AIL were allotted 24,65,40,258 equity shares of Rs. l0/- each against the conversion of 25,00,00'000

preferenc! shares ofRs.l0/- each held by the holding company. Accordingly, the preference shares held by the holding company stands

extinguishtd. Resultantly, the equity shareholding of the holding company as on 3lst March 2024 was24,65,40,258 equity shares of face

value ofRh. l0/- each.

AIL has fifed Draft Red Hearing Prospects (DRHP) with Sebi on 28th March 2024. As per DRHP filed by AIL, the holding company has

offered to lale share worth Rs. 57,500 Million.
During th{ previous year assets and liabilities of AIL is shown as Assets/Liabilities classified as held for sale in consolidated financial

statement.

During thg current year the company has sold 15,44,68,205 of equity shares of AIL.
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from the sale ofthe output arising from thejoint operation;

d)lts share revenue from the sale ofthe output by thejoint operation and

e)lts including its of any incurred jointly.share expenses

the Group has evaluated all its joint arrangements on the basis



GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL20I2PTC24L323
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

2 Property, Plant and Equipment

ln
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block

Balance as at
01st April, 2024

Additions/
(Disposals)

Balance as at 31st
March,2025

Balance as at
0lst April,2024

Depreciation
charge for the

Year

On
disposals

Balance as at 31st
March,2025

Balance as at 31st
March,2024

Balance as at 31st
March,2025

Property, Plant and
Equipment

1.67 0.32

Tangible Assets

Office equipment:-
Laptop 0.59 r.08 0.22 0.54 0.27 l.l3

0.s9 1.08 1.67 0.32 0.2231st March,2025 0.54 0.27 1.13
31st March, 2024 0.59 0.59 0. t2 0.20 0.32 0.47 0.27
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GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45209DL20

Notes to the

3

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

tn

tn

As at As at
3lst March,20243lst March,2025

Particulars

,t in Sterling Bay CHS Ltd.Ownership Flr

Juhu Property

Garage at Juhr I

ice premises at MumbaiOwnership of

Juhu Property Carage at Juhu Ownership office
premises at

Mumbai

(KS, rn LaKns,

Investment in
Property Total

Ownership Flat in
Sterling Bay CHS

Total

Particulars

t24.1896.68 27.85 0.20 0.05Balance as al 0lst Arrril,2023

(96.68) (27.8s) (0.20) (0.0s) (t24.78)

Additions
Disposals

Deletion on count ofbusiness combination (refer note 37)

Balance as at 3lst March,2024

;count ofbusiness combination (refer note 37)

Additions
Disposals

Deletion on ar

Bahnce as al 3lst March,2025

Accumulate d deoreciation and imoairment
0.18 0.04 95.65Balance as al 0lst April.2023 83.38 12.05

(0.18) (0.01) (8{.97)

1.86

(12.s4)
Depreciation for the year

Rectification fntry on account of Prior Period Change*

Elimination on Disposal of asset

Deletion on adcount ofbusiness combination (refer note 37)

l.t2
(r2.s4)

(71.961

0.74

(12.79)

3lst March.2024Balance as al
Depreciation br the year

3lst I\{arch.2025Balance as a

Carrving Am ount

Balance as a 31st March,2024
3lst March.2025Balance as a

2c
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Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

As at As at
31st-Mar-20243lst-Mar-2025

Particulars

Cost or Deem :d Cost

Imoairmcnt lr rSSeS

Total

(Rs. in Lakhs)Particulars

Cost or deemr d cost
9,911.67Balance as at 3lst March,2023

count ofbusiness combination (refer note 37) (9,911.671Deletion on ar

Balance as al 3lst March,2024
Deletion on ar count of business combination (refer note 37)

Balance as al 3lst March.2025

Accumulated impairment
Balance as al 3lst March.2023
Impairment lo lses recognised during the year

Balance as al 3lst March. 2024

Impairment lo ises recognised during the year

Balance as el 31st March,2025

Carrvins Am )unt
Balance as at

Balance as at 3lst March,2025
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PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial Strtement for the Year Ended 3lst lUgrch,2025

5 tn

As st
3lst-Mar-2025

As at
31st-Mar-2024

Amount Units Amount
Particulars

Units

10,01,54,642

21,00,000

I 1,25,000

4,8 1,980. I 6

179.55

722.t3 I I,25,000

5,61,600

2l,00,000

722.t4

369.03

195.30

fments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

lments in Others - Quoted
y Shares of SPS Finquest Limited ofRs. l0 each

uity Shares ofshapoorji Pallonji Enerry (Gujarat) Private Limited

l0 each

ied at cost less impairment
tments itr Others - Unquoted
y Shares ofShapooqji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Ltd. ofRs. l0 each

note 5.5)

(A)
(i)

(ii)

accounted using equity method

in Associates - Quoted
Infrastructure Limited ofRs. l0 each

Inves

Inves
Equit

(ii) Eq

ofRs.

(iiD Carrl
Inve!
Equitl

(Refef

Total (A) 4,82,881.8.{ 1,286,47

15,20,00,000

6,64,50,000

15,200.00

9,808.02

15,20,00,000

6,64,50,000

15,200.00

9,396.03

(B) Inver
(i) Inver

15,20.

Cumu

Infras

(iD
Inves

Inves

0%R
Forber

Itment in Preference shares
tments Measured rt Cost less impairment
p0,000 (Previous Year 15,20,00,000) 2% Compulsorily Convertible

[ative Preference shares of Rs.l0 each of Shapoorji Pallonji

tructure Capital Company Private Limited (Refer Note 5.4)

tments at Fair Value tbrough Other Comprehensive Income

tment in Preference Shares - Unquoted

edeemable Preference shares ofRs. l0 each ofShapoorji Pallonji

i Shipping Ltd.(Refer Note 5.3)

25,008.02 24,596.03Total (B)

42,53 1.8 I
33,955.80

224.00

t,61,124.49
I,7 s,417 .14

400.00
3,26,024.74

67,220.00

3,215.00

btual Loan

lvine Realty and Construction Private Limited

[h Point Properties Private Limited
chaic Properties Private Limited
ndock Investment Private Limited
Imperial Star Private Limited

arus Steel Products Private Limited
ildglobe Infrastructure Private Limited
CPLShapoorji Pallonji Qatar WLL (JV)
atranl Properties Private Limited
apoorii Pallonii Infrastructure Capital Company Private Limited
:ppe Developers Private Limited
chaic Properties Private Limited
and Agencies Private Limited
ildbazaar Technologies India Private Limited
pespan Investment Private Limited
rteast Investment Private Limited
apoorii Pallonji Development Mangers Private Limited

42,s31.81

33,949.30
224.00

1,82,333.01

96,717.14

400.00
3,26,024.74

67,220.00

169.40

212.21

3,343.00
70.00

800.00

I,600.00
24.30
75.00

Pern
De

Hi
Ar
Su

SP

Sh

Br,

SP

Sh

Sh

SN

Ar
Ar
Bu

Ca

Pq

sri

(c)

7.5s.693.91 8,r0,112.98Total Investment in Perpetual Loan (C)

As at
3lst-lllar-2025

As at
31st-Mar-2024

TOTAL INVf,STMf,NTS

8.10.1 12.98

25,51t,47

369.03

369.03

4,81,980.16

4,87,102.10

25,909.70

7,55,693.91

Aggregate amr

Market Value
Aggregale am(

Perpetual Loar

unt of Quoted Investments

rfQuoted Investments

unt of Unquoted Investments

r
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5.2 Out of the

5.4 The 2o/o

preference

(a) Reduction
shares having

transfened and

Company as on

PRWATE LMITED

Financial Ststement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

were

ing,20,T2,053equitysharesofAfconsInfrastructureLimited, T,35,58,600equitysharesarelrck-inforlSmonthsandthebalancel,85,l3,453equity

lock-in for 6 months from the date of listing i.e. 04th November 2024, on O6thMay 2025 the balance 1,85, I 3,453 equity shares are pledged.

40,24,619 and 40,54,970 equity shares ofAfcons Infrastructure Limiled held by subsidiary ofthe Group are also pledged.

5.3 The terms for of 0% Redeemable preference shares of Shapoorji Paltonji Forbes Shipping Pvt. Ltd. are not specified . As per the provisions of section 55 of the

Companies Acl, (corresponds to section g0 ofCompanies Act, 1956) such instruments are redeemable at par not later than 20 years from the date ofissue.

compulsorily into Equity shares of the company at a predetermined price on or before l5 years from the date of first allotment.

5.5 Pursuant to the of Section 230 lo 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules and regulations made

thereunder, a of Arrangement between Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Private Limited
filed with Hon. National

(Transferor Company) and Shapoorji Pallonji Infrastructure Capital Company

Private Limited

May,2025 and

The Transfbror

Company) and their respective shareholders Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) is approved by NCLT vide its Order dt 2nd

copy ofthe Order is received by the respective companies on 9th May, 2025 i.e. after the Balance Sheet Date, sanctioning the Scheme ofArrangement.

and the Transferee Company's Board ofDirectors have accepted the Order and they are in the process of filing of Form INC-28 with MCA and making

the scheme The sanctioned Scheme inter alia provides the following:

capital and reorganization of reserves of Transferor Company in the manner set out in this Scheme which provide inter alia that 6,64,50,000 preference

value of INR l0/- each, constituting 750lo ofthe preference share capital held by SPCPL jointly with GIPL (beneficial interest held by IWs. G.S. Enterprises, a

partnership as on the Effective Date ofthe scheme shall stand extinguished and cancelled through capital reduction. In lieu of such cancellation of preference shares, the

Transferor shall issue 6,64,50,000 0% Perpetual Unlisted, Unsecured, Redeemable, NonConvertible Debentures (the "NCDs") offace value INR l0 each to the firm;

(b) and vesting of business of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company as a going concern and all assets and liabilities shall stand

vested in the Transferee Company. ln consideration thereof, the transferee company shall issue and allot to all the equity shareholders of the Transferor

convertible cumulative preference shares (fulty paid up) ofshapoorji Pallonji Infrastructure capital company Private Limited carry a right for cumulative

w.e.f Financial year 2O2O-2l and onwards as per the rerms modified / amended in FY 2020-21. As per the terms of the offer, the said preference shares are

Date 6,817 Equity Shares ofRs l0/- each at par for every 100 shares held in Transferor company.

(c) The date is 3rd April,2022.
On the Scheme effective, the effect thereofshall be given in the books ofaccounts ofthe firm.

In Respect of in the Capital ofPartnership Firm, the Name ofthe Pa(ners, Share ofeach Partner and Capital ofthe Firm is as under;

The Fixed Cunent Capital and Total Capital ofeach partner is stated at the value appearing in the respective periods Financial Statements ofthe partnership firm lWs

G.S.Enterprises under in accordance with the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act,20l3 (the Act) read logether with

Companies Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended from time to time.

5.7 Disclosure of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments:

Equity & Preference Shares designated at FV,TOCI

have been designated on initial recognition to be measured at FVTOCI as these are long term investment are not intended for sale.

5.8 Category-wise - as per Ind AS 109 classification

These

e

As at 3lst l\Iarch,2024As at 3lst luarch,2025GSof
Shapoorji Pallonji

and Company
Private Limited

Shapoorji Pallonji and
Company Private

Limited

Goswami Infratech
Private Limited

Goswami Infratech
Private Limited

50%
5.00

20.760.00

50%
5.00

30.00

50%
5.00

20.760.00

5lYo
5.00

20,760.00

Prrtn".s Share bf Profit/Loss
Fixed Capital
Current Canitai

As at 3lst lllarch'
2025

As at 31st March'
2024Particulars

722.14

8.10.1 12.98

24,596.03

369.03

195.30

722.13

7,ss,693.91

4,81,980. t 6

t79.55
25,008.02

8,35,995.4812,63,581.77

Inveslments ac

Financial asset

Equity shares (t
Perpetual Loan

Financial asset

Equity Shares (l

Equity Shares (l

Preference Shar

; carried at fair value through other comprehensive Income

)uoted)
Inquoted)
:s (Unquoted)

Total

:ounted using Equity Method
r carried at cost less impairment
'nquoted)

MUM8A.64

MEMBERSHIP
No 1168'19

.r_

I
J r{\( **

CHtJ

5.6

Particulars



CIN:

6

GOSWAMI INFRATECH LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidatcd Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

+ The Group has unsecured loan carqring interest at the rate of7.00% to 8.00olo per amun. (Previous year 7.00%0 to 8.00olo per annun)

Particulare
As at

Slst-Mar-2025
As at

3lst-Mar-2024

610.00
3.00

60.00

2.00
3.s0

t00.00
14.00

1.50

2.00
120.00

241.00
1.00

Unsecrred- Conside

Loans and advances

Shapoorji Pallonj

Abhipreet Tradinl

Gossip Properties

West Star Finms
Floral Finance Pr
Shapoorji Data Pr

Trendsetter Realt
Shapoorji Pallon

Shapoorji Pallon

Shapoorji Pallon

SP Advanced En

Blue fubbon Finr

Glittering Gold I

led Good

!o related parties

I Energy (Cujara0 Private Limited

I Private Lirnited
Private I-imiled

I & Investrnents Private Limited
vate Limited
'ocessing Private Limited

/ Private Limited
i Projects Private Limited
i Defence & Mrine Engineering Private Limited
i Infrastructure Capital Compmy Private Limited
gineering Materials Private Limited
mce & lnvestments Private Limited
inmce Private Limited

610.00

60.00

5.50
122.00

20.00

2.00
120.00

357.50
1.00

1.00

1,299.00 I,158.00I otal

bc\r MEMBERSHIP
No 116819
MUM8A-64.

CH

',{

*

P

(
+_



CIN:
GOSWAMI INFRATECH TE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Statement for the Year Ended 3lst ll{arch, 2025

Disclosure of 8nd advances to promot€rs, Directors, KMPs and the relaterl parties that are Repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

As at
3 lst-Ntar-202,1

As at
3lst-Mar-2025

Percentage to the

total Loans and

Advances in the
nature of loans

Percentage to the total
Loans and Advances in
the nature ofloans

Amount of loan or
advance in th€ nature
of loan outstanding

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding

Type of Borrower

r.158.00 100.00%1.299.00 100.00%
t00.00%,299.00 I 00.00% , I 58.00

100.00%1.299.00 100.00% l. I 58.00

a) amount repayablt
Promoters
Directors
KMPs
Related Padies

b) Without speci&iI
Promoters
Directors
KMPs
Related Parties

rg any terms or period ofrepayment

on demand

Bt
{-

MUM8A.64

MEMBERSHIP
No.11eE19 *

clt (./ 
,

*
l(
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Notes to
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8

INFRATf,CH PRIVATE LIMITED
2PTC241323

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

tn

ln

As at
3lsFMar-2025

As at
3lst-Mar-2024

Particulars

20.413.92

25.00

374.78
ecovery Fund with Bombay stock exchange

terest receivable

eceivables from related parties towards sale ofNon Current Investment

i.efer note 35)

25.00

430,20

4ss.20

As at
3lst-Mar-2025

70

As at
31st-ll{ar-2024

Particulars

vance Income tax Net of Provision) 84.30 84.30

84.30 81.30'l otal

l(

6r
''-i- MUM84-64

MEMBERSHIP
No.11681q*

CH

f'
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9

9.1

GOS1VAMI INFRATECH ATE LIMITED

Notes to thc Consolidated

In detennining the

reporting period

Statemcnt for the Year Ended 3lst March' 2025

ln

ofa trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality ofthe trade receivable frorn the date credit was initially ganted up to the end ofthe

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
3lstMar-2025

As at
3lsGIIlar-2024Particulare

394.20 162.00
Unsecured. Conside

Cunent trade receiv

ed Good

Lbles

162.0039,t.20Total

TotalUndisputed Trade
ReceiYables - considered

doubtful

Disputed Trade
Receivables -

considered good

Disputed Trade
Receivables -

considered doubtful

Undisputed Trade
Receivables -

considered good

Particulars

232.20

75.60
37.80
48.60

232.20

75.60

37.80
48.60

394.20391.20

Not due

Less dran 6 months

6Mondrs-IYear
l-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Disputed Trade
Receivables -

considered doubtful

TotalUndisputed Trade
Receivables -

considered good

Undisputeil Trade
Receivables - considered

doubtful

Disputed Trade
Receivables -

consider€d good

Particulars

75.60

37.80
48.60

75.60

37.80
48.60

162.00162.00

Not due
Less than 6 months

6Months-IYear
l-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

I

Jir
MUM8A64.

MEMBERSHIP
No. 1'16819

CH

,<(
\(
* *
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INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidatcd Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March' 2025

TN

As at
3lst-Mar-2025

As at
3lsFMar-2024Particulars

105.25

1,561.23

0.34

7,946.03

4,866.42

0.23

alances with Banks

in current account

in deposit account (with original maturity upto 3 months)

ash on hand
12.812.68 1,666.82'l otal

(

e
MUM8A.64.

MEMBERSHIP
No. i16819

CH

*$
*



GOS\Y
CIN:
Notes to

ll

l2

l3

INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst ll{arch' 2025

ln

ln

\)
CH

MEIv{BERSHIPE
* *.Nc 1168rc)

MUM8A-64

As at
3lst-Mar-2025

As at
3lst-l\{ar-2024Particulars

86

3.72

490.72

0.78Receivable on Fixed Deposit with Bank

Receivables

As at
3lst-Mar-2024

As at
3lst-lMar-2025Particulars

142.36 142.37Income tax of

As at
3lst-Mar-2024

As at
3lst-Mar-2025Particulars

ll

5.50
6,580.08

30.57

6,s76.07
0.03

Expenses

with govemment authorities

(\ar
{-

6-6fi6-61 6.s8s.69I otal



GOSWAMI
CIN
Notes to the

,TECH PRIVATE LIMITED
1323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

t4.l Classified As Held For Sale

, previous year, Afcons Infrastructure Limited has filed Draft Red Hearing Prospects (DRHP) with Sebi on 28th March 2024. As per

filed by AIL, the holding company has offered to sale share worth Rs. 57,500 Million.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note

14.3.1

14.3.2

14.3. t 1

2,75,146.00
4,307.00
6,791.00

13,35,384.00

60.00

As at
31st-Mar-2025

As at
3lst-Mar-2024

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

plant and equipment
work-in-progress

assets

assets

assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) Other financial assets

(g)
(h)
(D

(a)
(b)

non-current assets

assets

assets

current tax assets (net)

non-current assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans

(v) Other financial assets

(c)
(d)

T current assets

assets

current assets

pertaining to assets classified as held for sale

liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) LeaseLiabilities
(iii) Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities
liabilities

tax liabilities (net)

non-current liabilities

(a) liabilities
(i) Borowings
(ii) Lease Liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial liabilities
liabilities

(c)

(e) current liabilities
tax liabitities (net)

14.3.3

14.3.4

'17.00

49,920.00

41,799.00

1,27, t 01.00
5,364.00
9.088.00

18,65,037.00

1,62,656.00

3.12,099.00

41,326.00

25,300.00
6,183.00

50,134.00

3,95,439.00

1.04.192.00

10.97.329.00

29.62.366.00

s9,769.00
3,515.00

- 2,121.00
- 40,779.00

- 12,653.00

- 1,45,129.00

- 931.00

- 10,367.00

1,85,732.00

3,308.00

19,845.00

4,12,717.00
26,98s.00

2,99,816.00
22,722.00

8,389.00

8.635.00

9.88.149.00

14.3.3

14.3.6

14.3.4

14.3.5

14.2

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

14.3.7

14.3.1 I
14.3.8

t4.3.9

14.3.7

14.3.1 I

14.3.8

MEMBERSHiP
No.116819
MUM8A.64,

*

CF,U

{Y
*

\

curent liabilities

14.3.9

13.00



GOSlVATII
CIN:
Notes to the

t4.3.1

14.3 Notes

i Freehold land carrylng

PRIVATE LIMITED

L Financial Statement for the Year f,nded 31st IlIarch,2025

to Assets and Liabilities held for sale

amount ofRs. 20,300 La\hs has been secured by equitable mortgage with consortium banks.

equitable mortgage with consortium banks.
a

ii Buildings
iii Plant and

amount ofRs. 2,1 Lakhs has been secured by

vehicles, office equipments, floating equipments, laboratory equipments and and attachments with

has been by way ofhypothecation in favour ofterm lenders and consortium banks have been secured through indenture of mortgage.

14.3.2 Capital - Ageing Schedule

14.3.3 Trade

i Movement in for bad and doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)

ii Trade ageing schedule

14.3.4 Contract

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

carrying amount ofRs. 2,25,032a Lakhs

As et
3ls! lt4ers!,?!24_

Partilculars Net Carrying
Amount

24.079.00Freehold land
2,955.00luildinss

1.83.1 8 1.00)mentPlant and Equi
5,028.00Fumiture and I ixtures
3,284.00Vehicles
1.972.00Office Eouion ints

26,457.00Floatins Equir nents
258.00[.aboratow Eor Dments

15,43 t.00Shutterins mal :rials
Accessories ar attachments 12,501.00

2,75,146.00

CWIP for a

More than 3 vears

Total

I - 2 years 2 - 3 years
CWIP As at 31s March,2024

kss than I year
4,307.004.307.00Froiect in pro$,ss

Proiects temodrarily suspended

Non CurrentCurrentParticulars
Balance as at st April.2023

8,579.00on account ofbusiness combination
1,602.00uring theAdd: Created r

10,181.00Balanc€ as at llst March,2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

2-3 yeam Morc than 3 ycan6monahs-ly€ar l-2 yearsLcss than 6 months
Particulars

uted Trade Receivables
28.531.00 .0039.525.00 17,403.001.44.564.00 39,467.00(i) Considerec

o significant increase in credit(ii) Which har

risk (Cunent)
9.302.008,943.00r 30.00 229.00(iii) Considere

'e significant increase in credit

en0

(iv) Which ha
risk (Non-Cur

ted Trade ReceivablesDispu
2.291.00 17,462.0014,165.005.1 13.00 3,578.00(i) Considered

(ii) Which hat

risk (Cunent)
e significant increase in credit

40.618.0014.1 89.00 25,826.00603.00
10,181.0010,18 r.00

(iv) Which ha

risk (Non-Cur

,e significant increase in credit

€n0
3.72.200.0033.883.00 90,943.0053,919.001.50.280.00 43,175.00Total

(l0.181.00) 00.18l.00)
Less: Provisio r for ECL

3.62.019.0080,762.0053,919.00 33,883.001.50.280.00 43,175.00eivablesTrade

As at 31st
Non CurrentCurrent

Particulars

7,200.00-Z:-
(trCH po\ (862.00)

6,338.00lr' , --ill--\\ -

Opening bala

Add: On accr

Add: loss all

Closine bala

rce for loss allowance

unt of Business Combination

lwance assessed for the current period (net of reversal)

rce for loss allowance

MEMBERSHIP
No.1168io
MUM84.64

*

J
CH

f
*

accessories

Ilndisr
rood (Current)

I sood (Non-Curent)

onnd /(-rrrent\

sood (Non-Current)

nrch.2024

6-J \



CIN:
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GOSWAIUI INFRA PRIVATE LIMITEI)

14.3 Notes

14.3.5 Other assets

i Other

securities

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st NIarch' 2025

to Assets and Liabilities held for sale

assets includes share issue exp€nse recoverable ofRs. 796.00 lakhs incurred towards proposed Initial Public Offer, which will be partly set offagainst

L on completion oflpO (proportion offresh issue to total issue size) and partly recoverable from the Promoter Selling Shareholders (proportion ofOffer for

sale to total size). Further this amount includes Rs. 239.00 Lakhs payable to the joint statutory auditors ofAfcons Group.

14.3.6 Current

i lncludes
demand.

ii Includes

Ventur€

Rs

Rsl

annum, SBM
of India Loan

Lakhs being loan given to S P Engineering Service Pte Ltd as Interest bearing loan at SOFR + 2olo towards working capital requiremenl repayable on

takhs being interest free loan given to Transtonnelstroy-Afcons Joint Venture, Afcons Sener LNG Construction Projects Pvt. Ltd & Afcons KPTL Joint

working capital requirement repayable on demand.

iii Details andadvancesinthenatureofloansgrantedtopromoters,directors,keymanagerialpersonnelandrelatedparties (asdefinedunderCompaniesAct,20l3):

14.3.7 Non Current

i Details of of repayment of long-term borrowings from banks and security provided in respect thereof:

ii Secured by pari passu charge plant & machinery. The rupee loan of HSBC Limited cafiy interest @ 9.75% per annum,

carry interest @ 10. 5o/o per annum, lndian Bank Loan No. carry interest @ 9..60%, Indian

carry interest @ 10.007o per annurp, Export Import Bank of India Loan

9.65Yo per

repayment

830% 8.95%Baroda carry interest the range of to

ofthe loans are as follows:

As at 3l st 2024

State Bank
Loan No. carD, interest @ 9.85% Export Import

Punjab National Bank carry interest @

of India carD, interest @ .30% per9.

Bank
No. carry interest @ .O5Yo per annum,

Bank

2 0.

Bank of per and Union Bank of lndia carry interest ln the range of to 5%. The9.05% 9.

* I'l o
U

68 ttq

(M

t)

As at 3lst Itlarch,2024Particulars
Amount Outstanding 7o lo the total loans

and advances in the

nature of loans
navahle on demanda) Amounts re

0%- Promoters
0%- Directors
0%ial oersonnel- Key managet

6, I 83.00 100%- Other relatec party

As at 3lst lllarch,Terms ofsecurity

Secured

Particulars

Total -

Indian

Rupee

HSBC

Union

Bank

State

SBM

State

Refer note ii

Refer note iii

oflndia

from banks

oflndia
and advances

625.00

4,000.00
555.00

10,043.00

22,965.00
I 1,998.00

s,622.00

Import Bank of India
National Bank

oflndia
loan

Loan amount
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Repayment schcduleNaturc Bank name

installment of Rs. 625.00HSBC Bank 625.00

Semi annual lakhs 202s-264,000.00State Bank of India
555.00 Semi annual instalhnent ofRs. 555.00 lakhs upto 2025-26SBM Bank

Reoavabte in 20 Equal quarterly installment for both loanslndian Bank 10,043.00

..
Each monthly installment ofRs. 370.00 lakhs upto 2026-27 for

Loan I and Rs. 303.00 lakhs for Loan 2 upto 2029-30
Export Import Bank oflndia A

Each Quarterly Installment ofRs. 1,000.00 lakhs upto 2027-28h\g%nu,Punjab National Bank /,/ .;'/

installments of
5,6t2001

r26sb.Q0
Baroda

Bank of

Rupee I

\
I't BA-64

t

2

ln annum

57 equaGonthlv installments (EMI Basis) ,/,-.-il

ran



GOSWANII

Notes to the
CIN: U45209DL201

14.3 Notes

iii Secured by

basis. AIL's
fund based

schedule of

PRIVATE LII}IITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst lllarch, 2025

to Assets rnd Liabilities held for sale

charge by way of equitable mortgage on the immovable properties of lhe Afcons Infrastructure I-imited (AIL) situated at Andheri, Mumbai pari passu

of construction material, stores, Book debt ls further secured under toM and first charge on movable plant & machinery of the AIL upto 50% theof

with other term lenders on pari passu basis and also by goods covered under letters ofcredit. The loans carry interest @ 4.73% per annum. The repayment

loans are as follows.

As at 3lst 2024

14.3.8 Trade

i Trade'

14.3.9 Provisions

Provisions r

ageing schedule

provision for foreseeable losses for onerous contracts amounting to Rs. 7,71 8 Lakhs

Provision for

{
I MEMFERSHIP
* No. 1i'JB1g

MUM8A.64,
*

Loan amount
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Repayment scheduleBank nameNature

Repayment in 2025-26I,081.00Buvers Credil state Bank of India

Outstandins for following period from due date of paym94!
More than 3 vears

Total

Less than 1 vear l-2 vears 2-3 vearsNot due
Particulars

outed trade navablesUndi
21,979.002.430.00 I,55 1.00 I,509.005.944.00 10,545.00(i) Micro and ;mall enterprises

20.504.00 I 3,464.00 4,53,298.002.1 1.149.00 34,623.00I,73,558.00(ii) Others

uted trade navablesDis;
105.00 I 87.00100 8l .00;mall enterprises(i) Micro and

198.00195.00(ii) Olhers 3.00

As at 3lst March.202,1
Non CurrentCurrent

Particulars

Onenins Ilala nce
1,903.00nt of business combinationAdd: On accot
6,017.00Add: Addition i made during the year
(20r.00); made durins the vearLess: Reversal

0.00)Add: Exchans : differences
7,718.00Closins Balar ce

J-(

on

WIP,

CH

\a(t-



GOSWAMI
CIN:
Notes to the

14.3.10

a.

(D

TECHPRIVATE LIMITED
t2PTC24t323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

Benefit disclosure

contribution plan

fund
fund(ii)

(iii)

The

b.

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in

benelit plans

defi ned contribution plans

fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the regional provident fund commissioner and the

fund is administered by the Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). Under the schemes, the Group is required to

a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.

service for a period of 4 years and 240 days are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on

is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary

for the number of years of service without any ceiling limit as given under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

on death of an employee the amount of gratuity payable is amount equivalent to one month salary, payable for each

year of service or part thereof in excess of six months in terms of Gratuity scheme of the Group or as per payment of
the Act, whichever is higher.

The

The

A

The

gratuity plan of the Group is funded and the Group accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an

external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using Projected Unit Credit Method.

risk
value ofthe defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to

yields at the end ofthe reporting period on government bonds.

risk
in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability
risk

value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan

both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the

liability
risk

The

The relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an

insurance company.

value ofthe defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries ofplan participants. As

an increase in the salary ofthe plan participants will increase the plan's liability

No post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

In ofthe plan, the most recent actuarial valuation ofthe present value ofthe defined benefit obligation were carried out

AS 3l't March, 2024by an actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost

and seryicc cost, wero measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

c.D ofdefined benefit plan - Gratuity
used for the of actuarial valuation for the

31"Particulars
7.23o/oExp :cted Return on Plan Assets

7.23%Rati of Discounting
8.00%Ratt ofSalary Increase

For service 4 years and below 8.00% p.a.

For service 5 years and above 4.00% p.a.3l't March,2024Ratt ofEmployee Turnover

}8l't March,2024
Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14p7ffiNcHt/,Rate During Employment*

IIUMtsA-6q

MEMBERSIIIP
No.11681o

tr'



GOSWAMI
CIN: U
Notes to the

The

and
(Rs.

TECHPRIVATE LIMITED
l2PTC24t323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality.

ofrate ofescalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion

relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.

lakhs)

et in the Balance Sheet

(v) Analysis
actuarial assumptions for the determination ofthe defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective

occurring at the end ofthe reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

l) the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by t 628.00 lakhs

by t 792.00 lakhs)

2)

(vi)
The

the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by l%o,the defined benefit obligation would increase by t 778.00 lakhs

analysis method

analysis presented above may not be representative ofthe actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is

by { 683.00 lakhs)

3) the employee turnover increases (decreases) by one year, the defined benefit obligation would decrease by { 67.00 lakhs

by t 73.00 lakhs)

that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation has been calculated

the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the

benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

duration of the benefit obligation at 3l't March, 2024 is 12 years

expects to make a contribution of { 1,200 lakhs to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year'

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

benefits in future from the date of

Absencesd.

The

pri

The

the

Group makes provision for compensated absences based on an actuarial valuation carried out at the end ofthe year using

leave

Compensated

IS presented

for absences (non-tunded) as at year end ls t s'767 lakhs the Group's liability for sick and.00 covers

and AS current liabilities, slnce the Group not have an unconditional right to defer the

of any of these obligations.

Unit Credit Method

disclosure is presented to the extent information

The

The

The

For the year ended

31't March,2024
Particulars

(9,053.00)

6,385.00
Pres

Fair

lnt value ofdefined benefit obligation

value ofplan asset
(2.668.00)Net liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

3lst March,2024
(Rs. In lakhs);+*^

820.00T;Ftllo*irgY.ui
656.007nd Follo*ine Yeut
783.003rd Following Year
778.004th Following Year
988.005thmlt"*trs Yru

3,462.00Srt ofY.uo A fo tO
I1,939.00Suilof Y.urs I I and above

tY
* (
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Financial Statement for the Year f,nded 31st March,2025

t4.3.1 1

Disclosure pursuant Ind AS ll6 Leases.

The Group leases and buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of I to 3 years, but may have extension options as described in (v) below

Amounts in the balance sheet (Rs. In lakhs)

Lia

(ii) Amounts in the statement of profit and loss (included in Profit before tax from discontinued operations)

(iii) 14x1u.;1;.. liabilities as at 3l"t 2024 In

(iv) Total cash for leases for the year ended 31" March, 2024
In

(v) Extension

Extension

termination options

termination options are number of Land, Officeincluded a Premises, Houses and Godowns leases across the group. These are used to maxlmlse

options held are exercisable only by
operational in of managingterms the assets used ln the Group's majority of extension and terminationoperation. The

the Group not by the respective lessor

(vi) Practical applied
In applying AS 16, the Group

- applying single discount portfol

for operating leases with
rate to to leasesof with

remaining less than months as at

practical expedients permitted by the standard:

reasonably similar characteristics
has used the following

a lease term of ) lst Aprit, 2021 as short-term leases

using tn determining the lease option extend or terminate the leaseterm where the contract contains to

initial direct costs for the measurement ofthe right-of-use asset at the date ofinitial application.

(vii) The lessee's of weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities for the entire group was 9.25%.

(viii) Lessor

The Group not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result ofthe adoption oflnd AS I 16'

As at

31" March,2024Particulars

2,975.00Land
3,816.00Building

As at

791.00

3l'3 2024
Particulars

Total

3,308.00Current
3,51 s.00Non-current
6,823.00Total

Year ended

31" March,2025Particulars

22t.00e liabilityInterest on lea
l,340.00Depreciation c uring the year

l-5

Total

IParticulars

(Ks. ln laKns)

Total5 and l\{ore

I 1.00

6,823.003,5 15.003,308.00Lease liabiliti€ s

As at

3l't March,2024Particulars

1,3 15.00Payment ofk ase Liabilities during the year

22t.00rid during the yearFinance cost p
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GOSWAMI INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED
1323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

The ofresults ofthe aforesaid discontinued operations, is as follows:

For the year
ended March 31,2025

For the year
ended March 31,2024

Particulars

6,11,405.00 3,63,643.00Revenue fror n operations
17,306.0018,900.00Other incom

6,30,305.00 3,80,949.00Total incom e

Expenses
1,67,533.00 1,23,235.00(a) Cost ofn aterial consumed
2,51,343.00 t,37,667.00(b) Cost ofc rnstruction

32,879.0069,989.00(c) Employe, r benefits expense
3 I ,075.00 17,560.00(d) Finance r osts

14,558.0025,000.00.ion and amortisation expense(e) Deprecia
34,382.0052,752.00(0 Other exr ENSCS

5,97,692.00 3,60,281.00iesTotal expen

20,668.0032,613.00e taxProfit befor
9,91 1.00 6,178.00Total tax ex1 renSe

14,490.0022,702.00Profit for tlr e year

\ae$- MEMBERSHIP
No.116819
MUM84.64.

J
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Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st NIarch' 2025

matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary ofthe holding company

which is as follows:

Joint VentureI "Afcons
change orders, the provisions of the contract. The Joint

AGJV submitted claims to ONGC, anslng on account of cost ovelTuns due to tn terms of

venture invoked arbitration ln respect ofihe aforesaid change orders. Claims against change orders and counter claims by ONGC aggregating to

approx.{ crores currently being discussed ln arbitration and cross examination of Claimant 's witness is being carried out ln arbitration.is
related to claims and counter

Based the assessment, historical experience ln similar circumstances and technical evaluation of the aforesaid matters

claims, out by Joint Venture's management, after considering the and proceedings ln arbitration as of date, which lscurrent facts status of

by legal opinion, management joint venture of the view that the "amount due from customer under construction contract" of { t24.05of
Crores on 3 lst March, 2024 appropriate and no provision IS required made as these have been considered AS good and fully by theto be

considering that the arbitration proceedings are ongolng, the duration and outcome uncertain.

Afcons Joint Venture (TAJV)

The Afcons Joint Venture ("the Jv) had submitted vanatrons to the cl ient for two projects (package UAA.O and package UAA-0s)

arising account ofcost overruns, due to unforeseen geological conditions, delays ln handing over ofland and change scope of work etc., in terms of

the

days "claim

of the contract with the Chennai Metro Rail Limited ("the client"), which the Management believes is attributable to the client.
of number of

During Year 202t-22, Arbitration Panel issued a unanimous award favour of Joint Venture granting extension of time ln terms

no. and 2"). The Arbitral Awards on Extension of Time matters (Claim No. &2) of Contract UAA-OI & UAA.O5 were challenged by

Single Judge challenged by TT,A JV before the

(AGJv)

2

High and succeeded- The order of the Ld. was then

.02 .2023. The said order of the Hon 'ble Division Bench was challenged before

registered Civil Appeal. The matter listed for hearing on 2th July, 2024.

the Arbitral but the procedural lapses on part ofAward on alleged

opportunity provided CMRL on account of two particular documents sought by the Tribunal from TTA JV) Further, the Ld.

Single ln its has granted liberty the Parties to go back to the existing Tribunal to get opportunity on the two documents. Also, theOrder also
parties remanding the matter to the same Tribunal. However, slnce

special power to direct the parties to go before samethe

CMRL the ingle Judge of Madras CourtLd.

Bench and the same was dismissed vide order dated

Supreme Court by TTA JV and the SLP was

Based the assessment, the orders not challenged by CMRL the Merits ofwere on

(i.e., no

proceed lngs related to claims for cost of extension of time

EOT
Civil ofthe SLP

related to release of withheld

s
Hon'ble
the Hon'

taking
In the

current

lodged

mainly

Trade

0

admitted and as

years, Joint enture had received favourable arbitration

Pending disposal ofthese matters

30.63 Crores (Rs 30.63 Crores

assets Interest on Trade Receivables as per Arbitration

is

the

Hon'ble bench after hearing prima has sought consent of onfacie case

CMRL not agree for consenting to the same and also the Hon 'ble bench does not have

the Hon'ble bench proceeded to hear the matter and pronounced the order'

granted in claim no. and and related2 cost l.e. Claim No. and 3A along with

beyond Arbitration Award and associated cost, forming part of Claim No

filed with Hon,'ble Supreme Court.

amount, release of retained amount, refund of amount encashed

certificate 8) currently being heard ln arbitration award.(the "claim no. are

against Bank Guarantees and issuance finalof

other matters. The Client has challenged these arbitration

has, upon submission of the bank guarantee by the

8 have been kept on hold and shall be initiated based on outcome

awards the High Madras.Hon' ble Court,

Joint deposited part of the award amount thewith Joint

hearing this curently process. The arbitration awardin

awards few of the

ln the court, client
pursuant interim order Hon''ble

(Rs Crores as on March J 2023 and interest on

High Court, Madras. The

Trade Receivables" and "Other non-

(Rs 79.28 Crores as

Liabilities- Advances from customers".

Venture, to an

amounting to Rs. 20.8 Crores 120.8

AS on March has been

stay from

award ofRs. 2023) recognized as "Non-current

respectively, and the amount of Rs 79.28 Crores

on 3 against has been recogn ized as "Other2023) received such award Non-current Liabil ities -Contract

there are counter claims submitted by CMRL

CMRL arose due to the alleged defective works

the contingencies that CMRL may have to tncur in

amounting 945.81 Crores (Rs 945.8Rs

the tunnelling l.e. excesslve and

future form of Rectification works, Loss of

Crores as on March 2023 The counterclaims

steps lips in the Tunnel Rings. The Counter claims are
3 ).

is

costs the design life due to the said alleged defects theintended tn

documents either or on Cost. TT.A
JV has submitted anon eft'ect

and lipping impact on either structural stability or onhas no

which is evident from the fact that the same was filed

201 and UAA 05 in June 20

waterproofing systems. The counterclaims of the

the

tunnelling works. In

expert report to the Arbitral

revenue and add itional maintenance

addition, Counterclaim was not substantiated by anythe
wherein states that the excessiveTribunal it

CMRL are made  S an

0l in 8, and both the

Based

claims

the assessment, historical experience in similar

out by Joint Venture

High Supreme Courts of date, which is supported by extemalCourt andln

duly
(Rs Crores on March 1, 2023) recognized

due from customer under construction contracts" recorded the books of

9

by CMRL only 2022, after lssuance of substantial taking over certificate for UAAln

packages commercially operative ln 201 (UAA 05 and ln 20 (UAAbecame

circumstances and technical evaluation of the aforesaid matters related to claims and counter

management, considering the current status of negotiatior/amicable settlement with the cl ient/ proceedingsafter
ofthe vlew that the

7 9 0 )

legal opinion, management of Joint Venture

Management joint venture confident of
accounts on cost

getting favourable order/ award and ls of that

claims ln Amounts due from

2023 towards the arbitration award

actually incurred and so claimed but not

opinion that amount of Rs 659.87 Crores

undercustomers construction contracts' AS
of is

as

assets, an amount of Rs. 120.8 Crores

and an amount Rs. 30.63of
assets Interest on Trade Receivables as

management anticipate any to bedoes not

towards such variations/
(Rs t20. Crores AS on March

3

8 3 recognized as 'Non-current

arbitration award "Other non-currentCrores (Rs 30.63 Crores as on March 3 2023) interest

per Arbitration Awards", appropriate

recognized contingent to beor

Supreme ongolng, the duration andCourt and

is

on

and the same is considered as good and fully recoverable. Joint

liability d isclosed at this stage. However. consideriing that the

w\
C-
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Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst NIarch,2025

matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary ofthe holding company

as follows:
' JETTY PROJECT UNDERTAKING (DJPU):

ofDahej Standby Jetty project Undertaking ("DJPU") has submitted variations towards the amount ofclaims in terms ofthe provisions of

which were not approved by the Petronet LNG Limited ("the client"). During the year 2018-19, management has invoked arbitration for

oftheir claims against the client.

During earlier year, an unfavourable award was granted Arbitration, towards claims of liquidated damages for delay in completion of works byin

Joint for 79 28 Crores (including interest of 20.45 Crores). Client has subsequently encashed the bank guarantees given by a Joint Venturer

Partner. Infrastructure Limited of { 79 .28 Crores and recovered the award amount. The amount of encashed Bank Guarantee has been recorded

by the Venture as Other Receivables from customer (Other non-current assets) and Payable to JV Partner (non-current borrowings). Thereafter, the

Joint has filed petition at Hon'ble High Court, Delhi for setting aside the unfavourable award and also submitted claims for additional cost

that the ls attributable to the client and ln terms of the contractual provisions. Thisincurred .r. extended stay and acceleration cost, considering delay

petition admitted by Hon'ble HiCh Court, Delhi and hearings currently ln process. The Hon 'ble High Court Delhi on 22nd N,ovember 2022 directedis

client to an undertaking signed by President (Finance client, effect that it shall restitute the entire amount in the event Joint Ventureof to the

ln its challenge to the award.

Based the assessment, historical expenence in similar circumstances and technical evaluation ofthe aforesaid matters related to claims, carried out by

Joint management, after considering the current facts and status ofproceedings tn High Court as of date, which supported legal opinion,by

79.28 Crores disclosed as 'Other

which is

3 DAHEJ

the

that the

4 1a; rhe

{

is

of Joint Venture of the view that the amount recoverable from the client of { Receivables' and the

from customer under constructioh contract' of { I I . l0 Crores as on 3lst March, 2024 is appropriate and no further provision for aforesaid

claims receivables is required to be made as these have been considered as good and fully recoverable by the Management. However, considering

in High Court are ongoing, the duration and outcome is uncertain.

is

has been legally advised that outstanding interest free advances aggregating to { 858. t4 crores (As at March,3 2023 852. 50

were

due to

{
crores) elimination towards financing unincorporated joint operations do not come under the purvlew oi Section 86 of Companies Act,made the

2013 as Company is in the business ofconstructing and developing infrastructure facilities.

ofnon-applicability ofsection 186 ofthe Companies Act,20l3, the detaits ofparticulars required to be made thereunder in the financial(b) In
are not applicable in relation to loan made, guarantee given or security provided.

5 Konkan Corporation Limited c'KRCL") had issued contract construction Steel Bridge river onfor of across Chenab 24th August 2004.a

The

vanous

various

In light
of stay,

terms the provlslons of the contract.

for the claims submitted

Company claims beyond

of the Company was

committee was appointed

to the recommendations

but not

Previously, Company had received unfavourable awardsthe

upto June 201J- The awards are challenged before Hon 'ble Bombay High

July 20 l3 are being adjudicated by the Standing Arbitral Tribunal

respect of its claim towards payment,

and the Design Basis Note ('DBN) submitted by Chenab Bridge Project Undertaking

with the tender terms, were revised in 2005 and subsequently 2006 and 201 by KRCL.

changes design basis note, arch span, finalization ofsuch  S in

etc. which the management firmly believes are attributable to the client.
which areabove, Company has raised claims in the arbitrationthe

categorization of excavation works, compensation due to loss of

C'CBPU) during the tender stage, which

The completion of project got delayed

specifications of

on account

ignment etc. in

0

respect,

slope stabilization, belated changes in the contract

towards reimbursement of additional expenses

productivity, expenses incurred due to change

(for the majority of claims) by Specialthe Arbitral

Court.
mutually appointed by the parties. the

due to lncrease ln structural steel quantities. In this

has glven recommendations in favour of the Company. However KRCL did

matter IS now refened for

contract" recorded ln the books of accounts
not
The

the

High are ongoing, the duration and outcome is uncertain.

implement

due

after

customer

considering

negotiating with KRCL in

by KRCL through Railway Board who

ofthe report and hence, the theadjudication by Standing Arbitral Tribunal.

amounting to t 92.92 Crores AS at lst March 2024,3from under constnrction

t I 15.00 Crores on account of increase in steel quantity due to change in design is based on cost actually incurred and so claimed with KRCL,

Based the assessment, historical experience in similar circumstances and technical evaluation ofthe aforesaid matters related to claims carried out by

the current facts and status of ln High of date, which IS supported legalproceedings arbitration and Court as by

the manaBement ls confident of getting a favourable judgement and recover all the aforementioned amount ol 92.92 Crores recorded in

books "amount from customer under construction contract" related to this project. However, considering that the proceedings in arbitration anddue

had executed project awarded by the Board ofTrustees port Mumbai (MbPr) for Modemization of the existing Marine oil Terminalofthe of

{

6 The

and Multi-cargo Marine oil Terminal of Jawahar Dweep based Mumbai Harbor. The hadproject completed ln June

projects was successful in getting an oftaward 96.02

challenged by MbPT u/s 34 of Arbitration and

the award and passed the in favor of MbPTorder

Bench. The appeal was admitted by the High

management's assessment, legal opinion obtained and facts ofthe matter,

2003.

Court hearing by

l2 and J3 at the

two bench Judge in the month of April Based on

had compensation extended stay related to andgone into arbitration with MbPT for forThe

The

the is confident ofwinning the case and recovering the entire amount from MbPT in future.

filed appeal

Crores interest till the date of award, its favour on November 20 However, the Award was

Act, to the Single Bench of Bombay High Court. The Single Bench had set aside996
an with the High Court of Mumbai for two bench Judge as against order of Singlea

a a

were

7 The had executed projects awarded by Uttar Pradesh Expressways Industrial Development Authority for Construction of SixJane green fietd

to Unnao Expressway (package IV) and Firozabad to Etavah (package il). During the execution of these projects the client issued vanous

change which required additional deployment of resources. The expressway was inaugurated and put to us9 December 20 6. These projects

Due to
royalty

various change orders, the ComPanY has raised various claims towards additional expenses on account ofchange ofscope, additional works,

etc. An amount of { 2l1.29 Crores is outstanding towards unbilled receivables and disclosed under note no.8 "Contract assets". The matter

to Arbitration. Considering the legal opinion obtained and facts ofthe matter, the ofwinning the case and recovering
is

amount from Uttar Pradesh Expressways lndustrial Development Authority z/t
J(
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Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary ofthe holding company

which is as follows:

8 (a) The has unbilled receivables towards various ongoing and completed projects disclosed under Note no. 8 'Contract assets'. This unbilled work

also variations on account ofcost overruns due to unforeseen geological conditions, delays in handling over land, change in scope ofwork, etc.

which under discussions at various levels including customer, in arbitration, Dispute Adjudication Board etc. Based on the discussions and merits of

the the management is confident about the recovery ofthese pending variations with respect to unbilled receivables disclosed under note no.8

assets"

(b) The has a total net receivable oft 1,455.03 crores (including interest on arbitration awards { 389.67 crores) which is a part ofTrade

shown under note 5 towards arbitration awards which are won by the Group in past, these arbitration awards have been further challenged

by the before the session court or.higher courts oflaw. Pending disposal ofthese matters in the courts, management has recognized the

amount per the arbitration award and part payment has been received by management under Niti Aayog Scheme upon submission ofa bank guarantee

by the which is disclosed as advances from customers in note no.l7'Contract Liability'. Management is confident about the recovery ofthe

in the pending matters at various levels.

9 In the years, the Company has from time to time advance aggregating to { 269.54 Crores to a Subcontractor viz Shapoorj Pallonji andpaid
. Private Limited in connection with undertaking the designing and interior work of the stations for elevated

Ahmedabad, and Kanpur awarded to it against the security ofLetter ofComfort provided by the subcontractor.

, since the subcontractor could not execute the work for the station work referred to above, the company got this station work done on its own.

As per ofLetter ofComfort, subcontractor was to refund this advance to the Company, however due to certain financial diflicutties subcontractor

able to refund advance given to it under the subcontract.

the fact that aforesaid projects is nearing completion, said advance has been classified as other current financial assets as advance to vendor

in cash.

is following up with the SPCPL for recovery ofthe aloresaid advance and as confirmed by SPCPL it is expected to be settled by September

30, failing which the company will charge interest @ lZVop.a.

l0 The Controlled Operations have mentioned in their financial statement that as per the terms of agreement parent is committed to provide

funds as may be required to meet the working capital requirements olsuch Jointly Controlled Operations.

be required to meet the working

metro projects Bangalore,at

has not

Basis and adequately source additional funds may

capital

ll Ason3 March,2024, an amount of { 558.62 Crores (excluding Jointly Controlled Operations) is receivable towards GST Input Credit which includes

credit ofinputs and input service on account ofinverted duty structure. The Company has a robust Order book position ofmore than <22,400

Crores India and there are several projects which are under the pipeline. Further, the Company has initiated Arbitration towards variations and

Time claims respect management expects favorable awards in these claims/ arbitration. Considering the facts aswith to vanous projects and

above, there no doubt about the utilization ofthe GST input credit balance against the future liabilities and the same ls considered good.

12 Going rclated assessments performed by various entities (including branches and jointly controlled operations) within the Group.

a) Sener LNG Constructions Projects Pvt. Ltd.
relateduncertainty to golng concern:

The of Jointly Controlled Operations 'Afcons Sener LNG Constructions Projects Limited" has given a note to accounts in financialPrivate

assessment, parent is committed to provide

of these Jointly Controlled Operation.

relating to going concem assumption used for preparation of financial

funding required ofthe mentioned Jointly Controlled Operations.

Oil and Gas Services Private Limited

L used for I

subsidiary

preparation financial statements. Basis the Company's assessmentof

uncertainty related to going concern

of subsid lary 'Afcons Overseas Project Gabon SARL' has grven a to

statements. Basis the Company's company can adequatelyassessment

source

b)

The

c)

The

d)

The

Gulf Internationrl Projects Services FZE

Overseas Project Gabon SARL

ofsubsidiary

subsidiary Plt. Limited has glven a note to accounts financial statement relating to going concem
uncertainty related to going concem:

of Afcons oil and Cas Services ln

L used for preparation offinancial statements. Basis the Company's assessment company can adequately source the funding required ofthe

subsidiary.

uncertainty related to gorng concern:

'Afcons Gulf Intemational Projects Services FZE' has given note to accounts financial statement relating goinga to concern

company can adequately funding required of thesource the

note accounts

financial statements. the Company's assessment company can adequatelyBasis

the Code on Social Security, which would impact contributions the2020 by Group towards Provident Fund and

2020 on November 2020, and has invited

in financial statement relating goingto concem
funding required of thesource the

13 The

L used for preparation of
subsidiary."

Parliament has approved

The has released

from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the impact evaluation once the subjectMinistry. The Group will assess the and its

notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to

Ministry of Labour and Employment draft rules for the Code on Social

LJ

*
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TECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary ofthe holding company

as follows:

March, 2024, Afcons Infrastructure Limited, a subsidiary of the holding company, has an outstanding receivables amounting to Rs. 9,277.00

SP Jammu Udhampur Highway Limited (SP Juhi) under the EPC contract for the Jammu Udhampur Road Project of NHAI. SP Jammu

Highway Limitod (SP Juhi) had assigned the same to Shapoorji Pallonji Solar Holdings Private Limited (SP Solar) vide deed of assignment

tuly,2022 between SP Juhi and SP Solar, which got subsequently merged with Shapoorji Pallonji Infrastructure Capital Co Private Limited.

15 Afcons Limited ("AIL"), a subsidiary of the holding company, was using accounting software i.e. 'SAP ECC' as is books of accounts till
20 2023. AIL has upgraded its accounting software to 'SAP S/4 Hana with rise'with eflect from November 21,2023. While SAP audit

logging been enabled throughout the year and captures all the changes made in the application system through an audit log, the same was not enabled

for SAP ECC database for the period 0l April 2023 to 20 November 2023. However, access to SAP ECC database was restricted solely to IT
for essential system maintenance tasks such as operating system and database upgrades as well as patch management. In SAP S/4HANA

with database is maintained on cloud with the service provider and hence the management ofAIL cannot make any changes at database level except

by way a ticket with SAP S/4Hana with rise accounting software.

bc\F
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to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 
' 

2025

Afcons Infrastructure Limited has one reportable segment viz Construction

Segment Assets As at 31st-Mar-2024

India
Other Countries

Intersegment eliminations

Unallocated

Investments
Non-current tax assets

Total assets as per balance sheet

26,91,109.00
4,79,754.00

31,70,863.00

(2,13,938.00)

77.00

5,364.00

29,62,366.00

Segment Liabilities As at 31st-Mar-2024

India

Other Countries

Intersegment eliminations

Unallocated

Current Borrowings
Non-Current Borrowings

Deferred Tax Liability
Current Tax Liability

Total liabilities as per balance sheet

7,83,101.00
3,06,016.00

10,89,117.00

(89,761.00)

1,85,732.00

59,769.00

10,367.00

8,389.00

12,63,613.00
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INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

The following matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement of Afcons lnfrastructure Umited, a

subsidiary of the holding company which is reproduced as follows:

Chenab Bridge Project Undertaking ("CBPU")

The Konkan Railway Corporation Limited (KRCL) issued a contract for the construction of a Steel Arch Bridge across

the Chenab River on 24th August 2004. The project has faced various delays due to revisions in the design basis note

(DBN), changes to the arch span, and delays in finalizing slope stabilization and various specifications related to

works. These changes were primarily initiated by KRCL, which the management believes are the root causes of the

delays and additional expenses incurred by the Company.

As a result of these delays and changes, the Companyhas raised claims for the period upto June 2013, in arbitration

proceedings, seeking reimbursement for additional expenses incurred, including loss of productivity, extended stay

costs, categorization of excavation works, change in alignment of the project. However, the majority of these claims

were dismissed unfavourably by the Special Arbitral Tribunal. These unfavourable awards are currently under

challenge in the Honble Bombay High Court.

Claims beyond July 2013 are curently being adjudicated by a Standing Arbitral Tribunal mutually appointed by both

parties (the Company and KRCL). The costs arising from the extended duration of the project caused by the delays

attributable to KRCL, which is one of the key claims under adjudication. Further, a key claim involves increased

quantities of structural steel due to changes in the design. In the process of negotiation with KRCL, a committee was

appointed by KRCL through the Railway Board has submitted recommendations that favor the Company. However,

KRCL has declined to implement these recommendations, and as a result, this matter has been referred to the

Standing Arbitral Tribunal for further adjudication

As of 3lst March 2025, the Company has recorded an amount of Rs. 192.92 crores (as at 31st March, 2024' Rs.

192.92 crores) as "Amount due from customer under construction contract" in its books. This includes 115.00 crores

related to the increase in steel quantities due to design changes. This amount reflects costs that have been incurred by

the Company but have not been compensated by KRCL. This amount is claimed by the Company based on costs

actually incurred, and despite the ongoing arbitration and legal proceedings, the Company is confident ofrecovering

the full amount.

The Company's management is optimistic about obtaining a favourabte judgment in the ongoing arbitration

proceedings, as well as the appeal in the Bombay High Court. This optimism is based on the historical experience in

similar contract disputes, legal opinion indicating a likely favourable outcome and the technical evaluation of the

claims, which suggests that the claims are reasonable and likely to be upheld.

However, given that the arbitration and High Court proceedings are still ongoing, the duration and outcome remain

uncertain. Therefore, the uttimate realization of the amount due from KRCL is subject to consequences associated

with the arbitration and legal processes.
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14.3.16

GOSW INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

following matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited, a

subsidiary of the holding company which is reproduced as follows:

Transtonnelstroy Afcons Joint Venture (TAJV)

The Transtonnelstroy Afcons Joint Venture ("the JV") had submitted variations to the client for two projects (package

UAA-OI and package UAA-05) arising on account ofcost overruns, due to unforeseen geological conditions, delays in

handing over of land and change in scope of work etc., in terms of the provisions of the contract with the Chennai

Metro Rail Limited ("the client"), which the Management believes is attributable to the client.

During Financial Year 2O2l-22, Arbitration Panel issued a unanimous award in favour of Joint Venture granting

extension of time in terms of number of days (the "claim no. I and 2"). The Arbitral Awards on Extension of Time

matters (Claim No. I and 2) of Contract UAA-OI and UAA-05 were challenged by CMRL before the k!. Single Judge

of Madras High Court and succeeded. The order of the kl. Single Judge was then challenged by TAJV before the

Honble Division Bench and the same was dismissed vide order dated 0lst February 2023. The said order of the

Honble Division Bench has been challenged before the Honble Supreme Court by TAJV. The Honble Supreme Court

was pleased to admit the SLP filed by TAJV and the same is registered as Civil Appeal. An early hearing application

is filed by TAJV to list the matters early. However, the Honble Supreme Court did not allow the said application.

Based on the assessment made, both the orders were not challenged by CMRL on the Merits of the Arbitral Award but

on the alleged procedural lapses on part of the Tribunal (i.e., no opportunity provided to CMRL on account of two

particular documents sought by the Tribunal from TAJV). Further. the Ld. Single Judge in its Order has also granted

liberty to the Parties to go back to the existing Tribunal to get oppurtunity on the two documents. Also, the Honble

Division bench after hearing prima facie case has sought consent of parties on remanding the matter to the same

Tribunal. However, since CMRL did not agree for consenting to the same and also the Honble bench does not have

special power to direct the parties to go before the same Tribunal, the Honble bench proceeded to hear the matter and

pronounced the order.

fubitration proceedings related to claims for cost of extension of time granted in claim no. 1 and 2 and related cost i.e.

Claim Na. 3 and 3A along with EOT claimed beyond Arbitration Award and associated cost, forming part of Claim No

8 have been kept on hold and shall be initiated based on outcome Civil Appeal of the SLP filed with Honble Supreme

Court. Disputes related torelease ofwithheld amount, release ofretained amount, refund ofamount encashed against

Bank Guarantees amounting to 25.77 crores (as at March 3l ,2024:25.77 crores) and issuance of final taking over

certificate (the "claim no. 80) were being heard before arbitration tribunal. Further, there are counter claims submitted

by CMRL amounting 1,945.81 crores. The counterclaims lodged by CMRL arose due to the alleged defective works in

the tunnelling i .e. excessive steps and lips in the Tunnel Rings. The Counter claims are mainly towards the

contingencies that CMRL may have to incur in future in the form of Rectification works, loss of revenue end

additional maintenance costs during the intended design life due to the said alleged defects in the tunnelling works.

On 2nd Aug2024 and l6th Aug2024 Arbitral Tribunal has passed unanimous award pertaining to the Project i.e.

UAA 01 and UAA 05 respectively where Claim no. 8 - counter claim of CMRL pertaining to package UAA 0l and

CLAA 05 to the tune of 1,945.81 crores. was rejected and also confirmed the effective date for issuance of Taking over

certificate and issuance of Performance certificate by CMRL.
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CIN:
Notes to

INFRATECH PRIYATE LIMITED

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

following matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited' a

of tho holding company which is reproduced as follows:

the earlier years, Joint Venture had received two favourabte arbitration awards, amounting 106.64 crores and 14.67

in few of the other matters. The Client has challenged these arbitration awards before the Honble High Court'

Madras. pending disposal ofthese matters in the court, client has, upon submission ofthe bank guarantee by the Joint

Venture. deposited part of the award amount with the Joint Venture, pursuant to an interim stay order from Honble

High Court, Madras.

The arbitration awards amounting to 120.81 crores (as at March 31,2024:120.81 crores) and interest on arbitration

award of 30.63 crores (as at March 3l ,2024:30.63 crores) has been recognized as "Non-current Trade Receivables",

',Other non-current financial assets - Interest on Trade Receivables as per Arbitration Awards" respectively, and the

amount of 79.28 crores (as at March 31, 2024:79.28 crores) received against such award has been recognized as

',Other Non- current Liabilities'-Contract Liabilities- Advances from customers". During the current year single bench

of High court has passed judgment on June 21,2024 and January 31.2025, setting aside the Arbitration Award of

106.64 crores and 14.67 crores respectively. TAJV made an appeal to Division Bench High Court against the Order

which is listed and posted for final hearing on 06th lwe 2025.

Based on the assessment, historical experience in similar circumstances and technical evaluation of the aforesaid

matters related to claims and counter claims , carried out by Joint Venture's management, after considering the current

facts and status of negotiation/amicable settlement with the client/ proceedings in arbitration High Court and Supreme

Court as of date, which is supported by legal opinion, management of Joint Venture is of the view that the "amount

due from customer under construction contracts" recorded in the books of accounts is based on cost actually incurred

and so claimed but not duly compensated. Management ofjoint venture is confident of getting favourable order/ award

and is ofthe opinion that amount of659.87 crores (as at March 31,2024:659.87 crores) recognized towards such

variations/ claims in 'Amounts due from customers under construction contracts'as non-current assets, an amount of

120.81 crores (as at March 31 2024:120.81 crores) towards the arbitration award recognized as Non-current Trade

Receivables', an amount of 30.63 crores (as at March 31,2024:30.63 crores) interest on arbitration award as "Other

non-current financial assets - Interest on Trade Receivables as per Arbitration Awards" and an amount of25.77 crores

(as at March 31,2024:25.77 irores)bank guarantee encashed byclient as "Other financial assets- non-current: Other

Receivables", is appropriate and the same is considered as good and fully recoverable. Joint Venture management

does not anticipate any loss to be recognized or contingent liability to be disclosed at this stage. However, considering

that the negotiation, proceedings in arbitration, High Court and Supreme Court are ongoing, the duration and outcome

is uncertain.
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coswAMf INFRATECH PRIYATE LIMITED
CIN
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

following matters have been included in the consoliddated financial statement ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited' a

subsidiary of the holding company which is reproduced as follows:

Afcons Gunanusa Joint Venture (AGJV)

AGJV had submitted claims to oNGC, arising on account of cost overruns due to change orders, in terms of the

provisions of the contract. The Joint venture has invoked arbitration in respect of the aforesaid change orders. Claims

against change orders and counter claims by ONGC aggregating to approxRs 400.00 crores is currently being

discussed in arbitration and cross examination of Claimant's witness is being caried out in arbitration.

Based on the assessment, historical experience in similar circumstances and technical evaluation of the aforesaid

matters related to claims and counter claims, carried out by Joint Venture's management, after considering the current

facts and status of proceedings in arbitration as of date, which is supported by legal opinion, management ofjoint

venture is of the view that the Uamount due from customer under construction contract" of 124.05 crores as on 31st

March, 2025 (as at 3lst March, 2024: Rs. 124.05 crores) is appropriate and no provision is required to be made as

these have bean considered as good and fully recoverable by the Management. However, considering that the

arbitration proceedings are ongoing, the duration and outcome is uncertain.

14.3.18 DAHEJ STANDBY JETTY PROJECT UNDERTAKING (DJPU)

Management of Dahej Standby Jerty Project Undertaking ("PJPU") has submitted variations towards the amount of

claims in terms of the provisions of the contract, which were not approved by the Petronet LNG Limited ("the client").

During the year 2018-19, management has invoked arbitration for settlement of their claims against the client.

During the earlier year, an unfavourable award was granted in Arbitration, towards claims of liquidated damages for

delay in completion of works by Joint Venture for 79.28 crores (including interest of 20.45 crores)' Client has

subsequently encashed the bank guarantees given by Joint Venturer Partner, Afcons lnfrastructure Limited of 79-28

crores and recovered the award amount. The amount of encashed Bank Guarantee has been recorded by the Joint

Venture as Other Receivables from customer (Other non-current assets) and Payable to JV Partner (non-cument

bonowings). Thereafter, the Joint Venture has filed petition at Honble High Court, Delhi for setting aside the

unfavaurable award and also submitted claims for additional cost incurred w.r.t extended stay and acceleration cost,

considering that the delay is attributable to the client and in terms of the contractual provisions. This petition is

admitted by Honble High Court, Delhi and hearings is currently in process.

The Honble High Court Delhi on 22nd November 2022 directed client to submit an undertaking signed by President

(Finance) of client, to the effect that it shall restitute the entire amount in the event Joint Venture succeeds in its

challenge to the award. The next hearing is scheduled on22ndluly,2025'

Based on the assessment, historical experience in similar circumstances and technical evaluation of the aforesaid

matters related to claims, carried out by Joint Venture's management, after considering the current facts and status of

proceedings in High Court as ofdate, which is supported bylegal opinion, management ofJoint Venture is ofthe view

that the amount recoverable from the client of 79.28 crores (as at 3lst March, 2024 : Rs. 79.28 crores) disclosed as

,Other Receivables'and the 'amount due from customer under construction contract'of I1.10 crores (as at 31 st March,

2024: Rs. ll.l0 crores) is appropriate and no further provision for aforesaid claims and receivables is required to be

made as these have been considered as good and fully recoverable by the Management. However, considering that the

proceedings in High Court are 
"iry$e,)*[r'a&(ffi1j 
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15.r

L5.2

TECHPRIVATE LIMITED
t2PTC24t323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

ln

has a right to receive dividend as may be proposed by the board and approved at the annual general meeting.

shares are not repayable except in the case ofbuy back, reduction ofcapital or winding up in terms ofthe provisions ofthe Act.
A
The

a ofhands, has one vote ifhe is present in person and on a poll shall have the right to vote in proportion to his share ofthe paid-up capital
Every of the Company holding equity shares has a right to attend the General Meeting of the Company and has a right to speak and on

of the

As at 31st-l\(ar-2024As at 31st-Mar-2025Particulars

Units AmountUnits Amount
1.00 10,000 1.0010,000

Author
Equity
(Previo

ised Share Capital:
lhares ofRs.l0 each

rs Year : I 0,000 Equity Shares ofRs. I 0 each)

1.0010,000 1.00 10,000Total

1.00 10,000 1.0010,000
Issued,

Equity

Subscribed and fully paid uP :

lhares of Rs. I 0 each

10,000 1.0010,000 1.00'I'otal

As at
3lst-Mar-2024

As at
3lst-Mar-2025rartic{urs

1 0,00010,000@oftheyear
Add: Shares issued during the period

Less: Shrares cancelled/bought back during this period
1 0,000 10,000Equitv shares at the end ofthis period'

MEMBERSHIP
No '1168'19
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15.4

15.6

As at 3lst-Mar-2025
t ofshareholders holdine more than 5y" shares No. of Shares

hcld
V" of

Sharcholdins
No. ofShares

held

o/o of
Shareholding

5,000 50 5,000 50lance Private Limited
inance and Investments Private Limited 5,000 50 5,000 50

As at 3lst-Mar-2025
Promoter Name No. of Shares

hcld
7o ofshareholding Change during

the year

DSPFi
ii) SC I

rance Private Limited
inance and Investments Private Limited

5,000

5,000

50

50

Total r0.000 100

lars
As at 3lst-Mar-

2025
As at 3lst-Mar-

2024
Particr

Openin 1 balance 11,632.90 34,795.00

Add: C, ranges during the year -23,162.10
Closinr balance I 1,632.90 lt,632.90

l5.J The ofShareholders holding more than 5 7o shares

pursuant to Note no. 6(D) (ih,ij,k,D of Part I of Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 is NIL

15.5 The of Promoters at the end of the

in Nature

which
Previous financial yew 2023-24, the Holding Company ("Bonower") has transeferred the balance loan amount ofRs. 11,632.90,

taken from Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Pvt Ltd ("Assignor") to Elfbridge Investment Private Limited ("Assignee") as per the

creditor accession deed executed on 12th July 2023.The loan assigned to the assignee is termed as unsecured perpetual loan as per

the sheet executed on l2th July 2023.
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l6.l

GOS\Y INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: tzPTC24t323
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

tn

to Section 1(4) of the Companies Act, read with Rule I 8(7)(a) Compan (Share Capital and Debentures) rle,201 of the ies Ru

4, the holding company required to create a Debenture purpose redemption of debentures, out ofls Redemption Reserve for the of

of the holding company available for the payment of dividend. However in accordance with the clarification generalvide Circular

9t2002 dated l8-04-2002 issued by Ministry of Law & Company Affairs read with Circular 04n0 3 dated l-02-20 l3 issuedNo.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in view of losses incurred by the holding company during this year, Debenture Redemption Reserve is

created.

t6.2 of nature and purpose of reserves

earnings
Thereserve represents the cumulative profits(loss) Group and the effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations.'of the

can be utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

for e quity instruments through oth er comprehensive tncome

reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value throughon the

comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained assets been disposed off.eamlngs when those have

premrum accoun
on those shares shall beCompany issued shares at a premium, sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium receiveda

Companies Act. This reserve is utilized per the

7

CH U to a "securities premium

of the Companies Act.

pccount" as per the provisions of applicable as

group's operations from their functionalof the resulls and net assets of the foreign

directly other comprehensive income and accumulated in the

profit when the net investment ls disposed-off.reclassified to or loss\\a

Jq
l< MEMBERSHIP
* No.116819

MUM8A-64

curren cy transla tion reserve:

differences relating to the translation

to Ihe group's presentation currency (i.e. Rs.) are recognised

currency translation reserve. The cumulative amount ls

As at
3lst-l\{ar-2024

As at
3lst-Mar-2025Particulars

2,57,447.89
(3,03,143.06)

(230.84)

(786.01)

(3,4s,6t7.6s)
(3, l 1,502.45)

(20.92)

9,14,576.37
12.54

alance as per last balance sheet

dd(Less): Loss for the year attributable to the owners ofthe Group

dd/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the owners of
re Group
dd(Less) Transfer from Reserve for Equity Instrument through Other

omprehensive Income and Foreign currency translation reserve

.dd/less: Other adiustments Change due to Prior Period Error-

Retained earnings

(46,712.02) 2,51,447.89Bnlance at end of the vear

(9,14,s76.37)

7,47,884.27

t,69,227.04

(34t.46)

2,534.94

308.04

, Reserve for Equity Instrument through Other
alance as per last balance sheet

.dd(Less) Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to the owners of
re Group

dd/(Less) Transfer to retained eamings

Comprehensive Income

2,501.52 2,534.94Balance at end of the

858.04

858.04

Security Premium

alance as per last balance sheet

.dd : On issuance ofdebentures
858.01858.04Bnlance at end ofthe verr

( 1,006.61)

(r,006.61)
1,127.47

120.05the

Foreign currency translation reserve

as per last balance sheet

Transfer to retained eamings

rate variationsEffect of
(1,006.61)240.91Balance at end of the

2.s9,834.26(43,1 1 I.57)Totnl

As at
3 I st-1\{ar-2024

As at
31st-l\{ar-2025Particulars

667.50

4,26,r20.63
3. l6

4,30,221.29
( 1,703.68)

(4,33,555.60)

10

1.29992. I I

Dividend

Derecognised on account of business combination

Increase on account ofbusiness combination (Refer note 37)

Share of NCI in Total Comprehensive Income

Balance

Bahnce

t7 (Rs. in Lakhs)

tn
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Notes to the

l8

18.1

GOSWAIUI INFRA PRIVATE LIIUITEI)

Financial Ststement for the Year Ended 3lst lllarch' 2025

ln

has used the borrowings for the specific purpose for which it was obtained.

Deed.

CtpL Charged Assets creafe.d by Cyrus lnvestments Private Limited in favour ofthe Debenture Truste u per the Debenture Trust Deed.

CIpL pledge Shues md the Collateral in relation to the CIPL Pledgc Shares crated by the Individual Pledgors md the Joint Pledgos in favou of the Debenture Trute tr per

the Debenture Deed.

Secrity over Pledged hnperial Star Private Lirniled (SPI) Secuities md the Collateral ln relation to the Pledged SPI Secuities held by ESP Diabolical Private Limited, C'ESPDPL the
SP

ESPDPL md the ESPDPL Designated Accomt Assets created by ESPDPL per the Debenture Trust Deed.

Secuity over SPI H',potheeted Assts by Debenture Trustee p€r the Debenture Deed.created sPt ln favou ofthe Trust

Security over the SP Port Maintenilce PriYate Limited CSPPM") Hypothecated Assets created by SPPM ln favour ofthe Debenture Trustee per the Debentue Trust Deed.

(i) Redemption

Repayment:

Note: l. The

Security

th€ Debenture

Security over r

S*uity over r

Security over

Security over

Secuity created the Holding Cornpmy in favou of the Debentue Trustee ovd the Cornpmy Chuged As*ts r pu the debenhre trust deed entered into between the Holding Compmy md

the Debenture (Debenture Trust Deed).

Srcurity ovu the CCpS (md upon onvmion the Afcons Equity Shrcs GIPL) and the related Collateral to bc crated by the Holding Compmy in favour of the Debmture Truste 6
per the Trust Deed.

Out ofthe 9,20,72,053 equity shres ofAfmns Infr6tructur€ Limited, 7,35,58,600 equity shues NE lock-in for l8 months md the balmce 1,85,13,453 equity shres were lock-

of 06rh 2025 balmce 1,85, 3,453 equity shues were pledged favour of the Debentue Trust* 6 per the
in for 6 months the date listing r.e. 04th November 2024, on May the

Debenture Trut
40,24,619 md equity shres of Afcons Itrfrstructure Limited held by subsidiuy ofthe Group also pledged.

Security Chrged Assets ild the Collateral Itr relation to the PHC Pledge Shues created by Cyrus Investrnents Private Lirnited (CIPL) ln favour of the Debenture Trustee s per

,)

pledged SppM Securities ud the Collateral in relation to the Pledged SPPM Secuities held by SPI in favou of the Debentue Trutee as per the Debentue Trust Dred.

pledged Cornpmy Shres md the Collateral in relation to the Pledged Compmy Shres held by SP Finmce Private Lirnited (SP Finilce) ild SC Finmce md lnveshnents

Private Limited Finmcc) in favour of the Debenture Trustee 6 per the Debentuc Trust D€ed.

Security over ple.dged ESpDpL Securities and the Collateral in r€lation to the Pledged ESPDPL Ssuities held by SP Finme md SC Finm€ in favour of the Debenture Trustw s per thc

Debenture Trust

As at 3lst-lUar-202,1As at 3lst-luar-2025
Current Maturities Non Current Current [IaturitiesNon Current

Particulars

14,06,097.228,57,592.12

ure3

Secured, Redeemable and Non-convertible

0,000 (Previous Year 14,30,000) of Rs. 1,00p00/-

Secured Debenr

Zero coupon'

Debentures
Debentures 14,i

each

t4,06,097.228,57,592,12'I otal

RcmarksPrincipal Amount
(' in Lakhs)

Premium on rcdemption at
sn carly termination datc

(' in Lskhs)

Particulan

7,t8,651.7214,30,000.00iste4 wued, ao mlrcI! redemable nontonvertible14,30,000 nto4
debmtures

25,000.00t23-24Paid duing FY 2

The trly tennination date is 28th Dec 2025 ud the

Final redemption date is 3Oth April,2026.

r,82,839.805,48,505. l0Paid during FY 2 t24-25
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Notes to

l9

INFRATf, CH PRIVATf, LIMITED
zPTC241323

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year [nded 31st March,2025

tn

As at
3lst-lt{ar-2024

As at
3lst-Mar-2025Pa rticula rs

1,68,047.66 2t,562.10

ccrued Premium on Zero coupon' Redeemable and Non-convertible

ebentures - Accrued but not due

isted
Debentures

21.562.10l,68,017.66Total

MUM84.64.
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2l

INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
1323

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March' 2025

loans are repayable on demand and carry interest rate in the range of Nil p.a. (Previous year7.00%oto20.75%op.a.)

in La

ln

\6((r

As at
3lst-l\{ar-2024

As at
3lst-Mar-2025Particulars

65,s88.85 2,ss,9t5.74
Tax Liabilities in Relation to:

at FVTOCIDesin Fair Value of
2,55,915.7465,588.85Total

(Rs. in Lakhs)articula rs
2,06,848.7,1alance as on 3lst March' 2023

8,916.00on business note
1.4s9.00ecognised in Profit and Loss account- Discontinued

49,059.00ecognised in Other conrprehensive income
2,66,282.74llance as on 3lst March' 2024

10.367.00held for saleas
2,55,915.14al:rnce as on 3lst N{arch,2024
1,90,326.89ecognised in Other comprehensive income

nce as on 3lst Marc 2025

As at
31st-l\{ar-2025

As at
3lst-N{ar-2024Particulars

1,80,000.00

30.00

I,80,000.00

30.00

nsecured loan from Related party
nsecured Ioans

Shapoorji Pallonji & Co. Pvt Ltd.

ccrued Premium onZero coupon' Secured, Redecmable and Non-convertible

ebentures - Accrued but not due

ebentures issued in FY 2023-2024

1.80.030.00 l,80,030.00Total

t\rEr,'IBERSHIP
No.116819

CH

5
x *

MUNIBA.il.
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11

COSWAMI INFRATECII

Notes to the Consolidated

22.1 Trade Payables schedule

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

LIMITED

Statem€nt for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

tn

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

\

Particularo
As at

3lst-lUar-2025
As at

3lst-Mar-2024
s.24

l0l. l9
4.4t

38.61
Micro and Small En

Others

erprises

I 06.43 43.O2Total

Disputed dues -

NISNIE

Disput€d dues -
Others

TotalNTSNTE 0thersParticulam

4.97
0.94

100.37
0.15

0.90
t00.14

0.1 5

4.97
0.04

0.23

106.43l0l.l95.2.1

Unbilled
Not due

Less than I Year

l-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Disputed dues -

J\TSI\If,

Disputed dues -
others

TotalMSNlE OthcrsParticulars

5.31

37.71

4.41 0.90

3'1 .71

43.024.;ll 38.61

Unbilled
Not due

Less thm I Year

l-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

MUM84-64.

MEMBERSHIP
No 1i6819

CH

**\a<.t-



GOSW,
CIN:
Notes to

23

24

INFRATECII PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst l\{arch' 2025

ln

As at
31st-Mar-2024

As at
31st-l\{ar-2025Pa rticulars

14.3247,403.31Tax

As at
31st-Mar-2024

As at
3lst-Mar-2025Particula rs

15.80 10.56

10.56I 5.80Total

fuultlBA-64

MEMBERSHIP
No 116,8" I *

CH

*

\

Dues

Ya\r-



CTNNO..

25

26

27

GOSWAMI TECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

ln

ln

For the year ended

3lst-Mar-2024
For the year ended

31st-Mar-2025Particulars

8,821.05
3 17.30

32s.68

70.00215.00

217.44
1,407.08

Sale Of Ser

Consultar

Other Ooer

Interest L

Interest L

Dividend

rices

Lcy Fees

rtine Revenues

rcome on loans and advances

rcome on deposit with banks

Income
9.534.031,839d2Total

For the year ended

31st-Mar-2024
For the year ended

31st-Mar-2025Particulars

Interest inc
3.20
0.03

7.18

2.44

731.73

0.04

17.99

Interest o

Interest o

Penalty /
Compensat

Unclaimed
Reversal ol

)me
n IT Refund

n current capital ofPartnership firm
Interest Income from Bank

ion for use of properties (Sterling bay premises)

Laibility, Written Back
'lmpairment Provision

744.5818.03

For the year ended

3lst-Mar-2024
For the year ended

3lst-Mar-2025Particulars

10,235.91

28.50
s2,137.00

2,70,314.40

63.35

26,337.73

3,31,233.47Accrued Pr

Debenturet

Interest on

Interest on

Other Borr

emium on Zero coupon, Redeemable

Loan

delayed payment ofstatutory dues

rwing Costs

and Non-convertible

3.32,715.813,57,634.55Total

MEMBERSHIP
No 116819
MUM8A-64.

*( *

CH

'rc-
Yr

tn

w
''-f

t
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28

29

GOSWAMI TECHPRIVATE LIMITED
t2PTC24t323

Notes to the Financial Statement for the Year f,nded 3lst March, 2025

ln

tn

For the year ended

3lst-Mar-2024
For the year ended

3lst-Mar-2025Particulars

32.07

0.1I
Salaries,Wa

StaffWelfa
ges and Other Contribution
,e

22.4832.18Total

For the year ended

3lst-Mar-2024
For the year ended

31st-Mar-2025Particulars

Legal & prr

Payment tr

61.04

5.21

0.32
0. l8

6.50
7.10

6.03

1.60

0. l0
5.54

25.00
6.00

317.25

5. l3
10.20

2r.52

351.92rfessional fees

rAuditors

rervices

& Stamping Charges

laintenance
agement Expense

mce written off
enalties

)us expenses

rges

As auditor

For other
Filing Fees

Repairs & I

Office Man

Donations
Sundry balr

Fines and p

Miscellane,

Society che
750.2980.3sTotal

MEMBERSHIP
No 116E1q

. MUIV1BA.64

{
*

CH U,

tTl

22.45

0.03

s'
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coswAr{I PRIVATE LIMITED

Not6 to thc Fitratrcial Statemcna for thc Ycar Ended 3lst Mrrch. 2025

30 INCOME

Tu

Dcferred trx Asscas:-

Deferred assets have rffognised respecl followingnot ben ln ofthe

NIL in

D.f.rred tu liabiliaies:-

' ol bolh cuten lw 6 vell 6 Previous yeu.

PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

probable that futur€ tuable profits will be available againstitems, because ls notrt

Ycrr coded
3lst-Ilar-2025

Ycar ctrded

3lst-lttar-202,1P{rliculen

slrtcmetra of rnd losrRecognised
143.204',t,E28.t3

Curent To
(0.39) I31.98

(Short) / Er
0.90.239.251

Defened Ta (

itr sartement ofother ItrCOmeRccognised

Current Tal

(1.42.499.t5) 49,3,14.1E
Totel incox

143.20
Curent tax ll3.9E
(Shon) /
Defened T

6.178.00
TuonD

6,455.1E

(3,22,111.39\
20,668.00

(3,0t,4{9.39)
(?8J76.E4)

E3,900.8S

283.92

(1,460.18)
I,148.64
1,0{1.9t

23.15
(17 4,99\

68.65

6,455.18

Total Lo$
ln@me

Effst
Effect
Effect
Effect
Effect
Effect

Eff4t
Effst of
Others

Loss

Profit

Grosi aDrounlGross amount

ln

tu

3lst-NIar-202{3lst-Mar-2025

(4,62,s20.

(4,29,901,

Expene @ 26Y. (Wqious YN @26Yo\

tu of Disconlinued Operations

ud Diuntinued Operatiou)

losss on which defened lil is not r@gniwd
disllowed in computation oftotal income

year losses offset on which defened tu was not rsgnised
period til

on Shtre in Profit (Loss) a@unted using equity method

in Tu Rate

42,1t0.92
0.20

I t,875.19
(24,481.23)

0.90

(76.12)
(54,329.6r)

(r.r3)

Unrccognilcd au
.Ifcct

Unrecognistd
tax effect

yor losses on which deferred tax is not recognised

that is not charg€ble to tax

54I 1.738.86 11,679.0045,149.48Tu Losser

Ycer coded
3lst-Iller-2024

Yet eildcd
3lst-Irtar-2025

ofProfit /

P.rticuh6

10.000.00 10,000.00
shares

132.01.080.10) (32.23,30E.30)
sharcBesic end

16.964.95 10,828.38

" 
D"r rt"t"*,t 

"f 
Pt"fit / (1"*) amribulqble lo equity shareNet Loss

10.000.00 10.000.00
weishted

1.69.6,19.50 1,08,283,80
Dilutcd carninss percquily shrrc (Rs,): D!!!q!!1!4I!4 imBasic nnd

r].03.143.06) (3.1 1.502.45)
Net Loss

10,000.00
Weishted the

Year cilded Year ended

3l

aild

Particules

6.03

1.60
A5

7.635.53Totnl

MEMBERSI-IIP
No. 11681c)
MUM8A.64.

CHU,

5
*

(
I

\
*

.-." -.^.;.;^n f^.;..^m. rrv

ro 067 00181 64

.-, :n rL- ^rrr,.nt u,qt

a1 g2A 13

(o

1r so 2']9
ggn oo

Particular

l

Nel Loss

10.000.00

5.21

o12

r4rc-
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(A)

GOSWAITII INFRA PRIVATFJ I,I1\IITEI)

Notc! ao thc Finrncial Saaaemena for thc Yeer f,nded 31st March, 2025

/ess inlWtnrenl.

$ Exlcudes RJ. 1,81,980. (Preri@s nelhodl6 Year iis dccounle.l Ju usiilg e.luiy @xl peqxlwl oJ llj. 7.55,693. 91 lakhs (Previois

(B) Fsir vrlue rtrd lucthod of Vduation

Except $ in the following rablq the Group considers that the errying amounts offinancial instruments recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair valu$.

Year .l?J 8, l0,t t2.98 lakhi

3lst-lUrr-202,13lst-lUer-2025

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised CostFYTPL FVTOCI Amortiscd Cost

Investmmt in €

Investm€nt in ,
Loans

Other financial

Trade Receivat

Cash ud qsh ,

Assas held for
Invs

TT

Cs

Or

L(

(l) Finrucirl

't22.t4

I5,200.00
l, I 58.00

20,8t4.48
t62.00

1,666.82

3,62,019.00

66,626.00

91,933.00

6.t83.00

564.33

9,396.03
179.55

9,808.02

NSet

les

quivalents ud Other Bank Bal0ces

lalg
rentr
rde Reivables
rh ed qsh equivalents atrd Oth€r Bsnk B8lan

rer finmcial aswt

ssets

luity instruments $

tference shares

5.66,484.44t0,037.369,987.57 33,802.51Total (I)

t4,06,097.22
21,562.10

t,80,030.00
43.02

59,769.00

12,653.00

1,85,712.00

4,75,662.00

26,985.00

6.823.00

8,57,592.t2
t,68,047.66
1,80,030.00

106.43

(II) Fitrrncid
Bonowings (lr

Other Finucia
Bonowings (C

Trade payabler

Liabilities held

B
o
B
Tr

o
l)

Liebiliti6
on - orent)
Liabiliiies (Non arenr)
urent)

for sle

'rowings 
(Non - curent)

her Fimncial Liabilities (Non orent)
rnowings (Cunent)

ade payabl*
her Iimcial liabilities (Cunent)

ase Liabilities
23,75.356.3412,05,776.21Total (

3lst-Ntar-2025

Level 3Level I Levcl 2ils Carning valuc

179.55

9,808.02

179.55

9,808.02

I\Ieasured al

Preferene sht

grylsd]ll
Unqouted inv
Energy (Gujat

stment in Equity Shaes ofShapoorji Pallonji

il) Private Limited

re ofShapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shippin8 Ltd.

awocl

-tu!!ueid)

9.981.579.98?.57Totxl

MUM8A-64

MEMBERSHIP
No.115819

CH

,{
\<
*

=

RAI.

!,,)- 1

03

77.00

722.t3

15,200.00

1,299.00

3,374.50

394.20

12,8t2.68

Yat
l-J-



CIN;
COSWAMI

Notes to ahc

PRIVATf, LINIITED

Fioetrcial Statemcnt for thc Y.ar Ended llsa Mrrch, 2025

3l st-Nlar-2024
tr Carnine valuc Level I livel 2 Level 3

lltperurrd ni I

I95.30

9,396.03

195.30

9,396.03

369.03

77.00

369.03

77.00

Unouot.d (all

Ouoacd (sll fu
Investment in I

Investment clil

Unqouted inve

Energy (Guju

Unquotcd inve

Preferenc sha

Forbes Shippin

lment in Equity Shares ofShapoorji Pallonji

t) Privste Limited

tment in f/o Redeemable

e ofShapoorji Pallonji

3 Ltd.

WI

fullv paid)

lv naid)

PS Finquest Limited
sified as held for sle

9.591,33t0.037,36 4{6.03Totnl

Equity Sh.r.t of
Shrpoorji Prllotrji
Encrgy (Gujrmt)
Priv.tc Limitcd

Iov.slm.ni in
Prcfcrencc Shrrc of

Afcoor Inftarlruclur.
Lrd.

Invcrlmctrt itr

P.af.rcnc. Shrrc of
Shapoorji Pellonji

Forbd Shipping Ltd.

Equily Shero of
Afcont Itrfmstructurc

Limitcd

Particulan

t0.0t-326.9? 9.030.56
33,0.t4.71 170.10

Closirg BahI cc rr ra 3lst trIrrch, 2023

25.20 1.1t.221 .14 365.4146,918.55Add: Gain rec rgnised in Comprehensive In@me (F.Y 2023-24)

(79-963.26\ 0 1.79.554.11)

sed on business combination (refer note 37)Less: Dere@!

9,396.03t95.30
Clositrg Bsler cc rt rt 3lst Mrrch' 2024

fi 5.?5) (9.396.03)Add: Gain rec rgnised in Comprehensive In@me (F.Y 2024-25)

179.55cc as 8t 3lst March,2025

SignilicrDt Obrenrblc
lnpul

Itloycfleot by 7. Incrcrsc/Decrcrsc (R!. in Lakhs)Vrlurtion TcchniqucItem!

SlsGMar-20243lst-lUar-2025

17.96Significmt inputs were

c6h ,low projections,

discount rate lo
compute present value

of future Bsh flows

50 basis points 0.90Etments

!s ofAfcoN lnfrastructure Limited (Subsidiary upto 3rd

,4)
es ofShaporji Pallonji Energy (Gujuat) Private Limited

n Prefsene Share ofAfcons lnfrdtructure Limited. (Subsidiary

mbe42024)
n Preferene Shuc ofShaporji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Limited

Discounted Cash Flow
Method

Unquoted lnv
L Equity Shar

November, 2(
2. Equity Shar

3. lnvstment
upto 3rd Novr

4. lnYcstment

Nota:
L 'There are transfers betwecn level I, level 2 and level 3 during the yer

Deaails of rnd liabiliti.s cotrsidcred undcr Lcvel 3 Claisificaliotr

Dcscription Signilicrnt obscneblc / unobsanrblc inputt lo vrlurtioos

16c\F MEMBERSHIP
No. 1 168'lg
MUM8A.64

*Y

C H(J

o.

+ tl

(

Closing Bala
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(iD

(i)

GOSWA]T{I

Notes to the

The

iTotal

#Debt

arises

risk is

its to ensure that

PRIVATf, LIT{ITf,D

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst ll{arch,2025

The manages capital

the

The

and

wishes to improve the ratio over the period oftime

equity balance. capitalThe

as detailed in Notes l0) and equity ofthe Group.

detemines the amount of capital required on the

will be able continue golng

struclure of the Group consists net debtof

basis of annual

concem while maximising the return to stakeholders thethrough optimisation of
(bonowings as detailed tn Notes & 2 and offset by cash cashand

as well as long term operating plans and other strategic investment plans. The

it

are mel through long-term /short-term bonowings. The Group monltors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and

profile ofthe overall debt portfolio ofthc Group.

includes all capital and reserves ofthe group that are managed as capital

defined as long term and short term borrowings including current maturities and accured interest(excluding derivative , financial guarantee contracts)

and

The

liabilities

of Group monitors and manages the financial risks to the operations of the group. These risks include market risk (including curency risk,

interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and Iiquidity risk

(a)

The is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. Ce(ain of the Group's equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading

(b)

(i) The below summarises the impact of increaseVdecreases of the index on the group's equity and profit for the period. The analysis is based on the

that the equity index had increased or decreased by 5Y. in2025 and2024 with all other variables held constant and that all the companies'equity

moved in line with the index.

ln

tUpon application of Ind AS 09, the Group has chosen to these instruments as at FVTOCI lhe directors believedesignate investments ln quoted equity

that provides a meaningful presentation for medium or long-term strategic investments, than reflecting changes ln fair value immediately profitln or

loss.

operates intemationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency lransactions in various countries. Foreign currency risk

future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional cunency (NR). The

through a forecast ofhighly probable foreign currency cash flows.

RA

(

The

ri\)

31st March,2025 31st March,2024Particulars
t2,05,669.78 16,07,689.32Debt#

2,45,501.00luded in Liability held for sale (Refer note 14. l)Debt inr

12.812.68 1,666.82Cash an I Cash equivalents
41,326.00Cash an I Cash equivalents included in asset held for sale (Refer note 14. l)

I 8.10,197.5011,92,857.10Net De[ t
2.71,168.16(31,477.67\Total E, ruiw+

6.67(37.90)N€t Del ,t to eouitv ratio

Impact on Other Components of
equity*Particulars

31st-Mar-202431st-Mar-2025

lncreasr 499.38 498.025%
(498.02)e 5o/o (499.38)

MEMBERSHIP

v)

**

CH

No.11581o
MUM,:A-6.i

as

6c$-
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GOSWAMI .Tf,CII PRTVATE LIMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Endcd 31st March,2025

The amounts ofthe Group's unhedged foreign cunency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end ofthe reporting period are as

follows:

The assets and liabilities denoted in foreign currency are included in asset and Liability classified as held for sale. (Refer note 37)

is mainly exposed to the currency of USD, EURO,KWD,GHS,ZMW,MUR, MZN, MRU and MVR

table details the Grouy's sensitivity to a 570 increase and decrease in the Indian Rupee against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity

when reporting foreign cunency risk intemally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible

outstanding on receivable and

The

The

rate

change foreign exchange rates. This mainly attributable to the exposure payables in the Group at the end of the reporting

period. sensilivitv analysis includes only outstanding foreign curencv denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation the period end for a 5%

change foreign cunency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in the profit or equity where the Indian Rupee strengthens 5% against the

currency. Fot a 5Yo weakening ofthe rupee against the relevant currency , there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances

below be negative. The impact of 5 % is also applicable on outstanding foreign currency loans as on the reporting date.

opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative ofthe inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end ofthe reporting period

does reflect the exposure during the year.

ls

In

ii( (

AssetsLiabilities
As at 2021As at 31" l\Iarch, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
Amount in foreign
currency (in lakhs)

(Rs, in lakhs)
Amount in

foreign currency
(in lakhs)

Particulars

50.0010.00 219.00 2.00

72.003.00 s{ 565 0063,400.00 48,926.00

192.00 300.00 300.00192 00

7.00

1.796.00 68.00 6,140.0020.00
7.00

I 5.362.00 3,418.00 21,720.002,43 t.00
20.352.00 199.00

649.001,178.00
6.675.0022.00 5,886.00 25.00

760.00 I,599.002. I 63.00 4,553.00
l5.148 004.1 t7.00 7.396.00 8,432.00

I 8.140.00 98.1 13.001 5,305.00 82,781.00

6.555.00 l2,ls8 00 16,027.004,973.00
4.00

56.00 1,281.00

2.00
599.00 t9.00t2,560.00 407.00

40.534.00865.00 72.181.00 486.00

2.30.254.00 3l.614.002.86,632.00 39,355.00
6.543.0050.972.00 6.998.00 47,655.00

27.00 90.002,4l5.00 8,053.00

AED CT

BDT Cu

BTN Cu

CHF Cu
EURO(
GBP Cu

GHS Cu

GNF Cu

JPY Ctu

KWDC
MRU CI

MURCI
MVRCI
MZN CI

oMR c]

aARCt
SAR Cd

rzs Cu]

USD CJ

xAF cq
xOF C'1

7,MW Cl

rency
rTency

rTency

rTency

)unency
rTency

rTency

rTency

rency

ulrency

rrency
rrTency

trrency
urency
llrency
Lrrency

nency
'rency

rency
rTency

rTency

urencv

Euro currency imDactUSD Currency ImDact
2024-2025 2023-20242024-2025 2023-2024Particulars

2024-2025 2023-2024

ImDact on profit or loss for the year
39.00217.00in exchanse rate bv 5% ( 1,582.00)

1rIUR,

82.00 t7

zt\tw
2023-20242024-202s 2023-2021 2024-2025202+2025 2023-2024

ln rate

Particulars

Imt)act on Drofit or loss for the year
3 88.00(398.00)in exchance rate bv 5olo 3 I 8.00Increas,

iuvR

I

MRU cu

398.00

2023-2024 2024-2025 2023-20242024-2025 2023-2024 202+2025

rate

Particulars

Impact on profit or loss for the year
767.00474.00 ( 148.00): in exchange rate bY 5ololncreas

148.00 (767.00)(474.00)Decrea ;e in exchange tuteby 5Yo

MEMBERSHIP$ **

CH

Nc 11681o
MUM8A-64

(n\

at

t)
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GOS\YAIIII TECH PRIVATE LI]TIITtrD

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst lVarch,2025

Credil arises when a counterparty defaults on its contraclual obligations to pay resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of

only

the is supported by low level ofpast default and hence the credit risk is perceived to be low.

with creditworthy counferparties and obtaining sufficient collatarel , where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from

Trade

credit

are generally unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers. On accounl ofadoption oflnd AS 109, the Group uses expected

model to the impaiment loss or gain. The Group uses a provision matrix and forward-looking information and an assessment of the credit riskassess

over expected life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit allowance for trade receivables. Historical expenence of collecting receivables ofloss

risk refers to insufficiency offunds to meet the Iinancial obligations. Liquidity risk management implies maintenance of sufficient cash and marketable

and the availability offunding through an adequate amount ofcommitted credit lines to meet obligations when due.

The

The

manages liquidity risk by banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of

assets and liabilities.
tables detail the Group remaining contractual maturity for its nonderivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have

been up based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both principal and interest cash flows.

ln

tn

The disclosure excluded financial liabilities included in Liability classified as held for sale

As at 31st

5 years & above TotalUpto I year I to 3 years 3 to 5 yearsIllaturi
Sheet d

ies of Financial Liabilities as at the Balance

rte
8.8t.494.908.81.494.90Bonow
1.68.047.66l.68.047.66Other F nancial Liabilities (Non-Current)
1,80,030.00I,80,030.00Bonow n,ts (Current)

106.43106.43Trade P ryables

Total

As at 3lst

I

Total1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years 5 years & aboveies of Financial Liabilities as at the Balance

rte
Upto I yearMaturi

Sheet d
14.30.000.0014,30,000.00Bonorv nss (Non-Cunent)

1.80.030.00I,80,030.00Bonow
43.0243.02Trade P ryables

21,562.t0nancial Liabilities (Current) 2t,s62.10Other F
I 6,31.635.1 214,51.s62.101,80,071.02Total

CH
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Y
*
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34

GOSWAMI ,TECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst l\{arch' 2025

liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

For liability relating to associate refer note 4 I

Notes to the

ln

ffiF

As at
3Ist March,2025

As at
3lst March,2024

Particulars

415.87

46.00

6,451 .00

9,857.00

4,764.87

8,307.00

44,476.00

48,364.00
3,754.00

3.00
14,814.00

1,708.00

liabilities
against the Group not acknowledged as debts (excluding claims where amounts are

with sub-contractors / vendors in regard to rates and quantity of materials.

Claims+

and restoration fees levied by Environmental Protection Agency, Government ofMaldives
damages

guarantee issued on behalf of Subsidiary

against thejoint operations not acknowledged as debts

tax and entry tax

demands raised by sales tax authorities in matters of:

oflabour and service charges, consumables etc.

on AS7 tumover
tax and,

and penalty etc. for which appeal is pending before various appellate authorities.

is confident that the cases will be successfully contested.

partial disallowance by West Bengal VAT Authorities for the year 2016-17. In matters

of subcontractor charges, labour charges, PF contribution, architectural charges, cost

cost ofestablishment, etc. for which appeal is pending before higher appellate authority,

is confident that the case will be successfully contested.

tax

demand confirmed by the CESTAT / Asst. commissioner of service tax for a) disallowance

credit, since abatement claimed by the Group, b) disallowance ofgeneral exemption ofprivate
terminals and c) taxability under "Commercial or Industrial Construction Service", etc. The

has appealed / in the process of appeal against the said order with commissioner of service tax
'AT / High court and is confident that the cases will be successfully contested. The Group

received the stay order for some case from the CESTAT. Amount disclosed does not include

in certain matters for which amount is unascertainable.

demand confirmed by GST Authorities for various dispute in relation to differential tax rate

for works contract, GST on tumover for adjustment of advance, on unbilled revenue, demand

confiscated, ITC not paid by the supplier, etc. and Interest and penalty for which appeal is

various GST authorities The Company is confident that the cases will be successfully contested

tax
raised by income tax department on account ofdisallowance ofexpenses and addition made in

of receipt of income. The Group has obtained stay order from tax department. The Group is

that the case will be successfully contested before concerned appellate authorities.

In respect of items mentioned under paragraphs (a), (c), (d), (e), (0, (g) and (h) above, till the

are finally decided, the financial effect cannot be ascertained and future cashflows in respect

in Contingent liabilities ofJoint Venture

amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
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CIN
INT'RATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

u4s209DL20l2PTC,,4,323
to the Consolideted Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st Mrrch, 2025

35 Related Party Disclosure:

(i) ListofRelatedParties:

Name of Entity Nature ofRelationship

SP Finance Private Limited Shareholder Company

SC Finance and Investment Private Limited

Honcho Prooerties Limited Associate Company
Afcons Infrastructure Limited (w.e. f. 4th November, 202!)
Joyous Housing Limited Joint Venture
Shapoorii & Co. (Partnership firm)
Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited

Shapoorji Pallonji Energy (Gujarat) Private Limited

Afcons Infrastructure Limited (upto 3rd Novembet,2024)
Floral Finance Private Limited
Shapoorji Data Processing Private Limited
Trend Setter Realty Private Limited
Abhipreet Trading Private Limited

Gossip Properties Private Limited
West Star Finance & Investment Private Limited

Individuals having control over the

company able to exercise significant
influence in entity

Galina Consultancy Services Private Limited
Relationship Properties Private [,imited
Makehome Reality and Construction Private Limited

Jaykali Developers Private Limited

Glitterins Gold Finance Private Limited
ESP Diabolical Private Limited
Bengal Shapoorji Intqsttr"ture Deuelop.
Cyrus Investment Private Limited

Cyrus Engineers Private Limited
Infrastructure Capital Private

Shapoorii Pallonii Real Estates Private Limited
Evangelos Ventures Private Limited

Shapoorii Pallonii Proiects Private Limited
SP Advanced Engineering Materials Private Limited

Ribbon Finance & Investments Private Limited

Meriland Estates Private Limited
Shapoorii Pallonii Development Managers Private Ltmited

Real Estates Private Limited

S P Engineering Service Pte Limited
Paikar Real Estates Private Limited
Meridian Entemrise

Afoons Sener LNG Construction Projects Private Limited
Transtonnelstrov-Afcons Joint Venture

Strabag-AG Afcons Joint Venture

Afcons - KPTL Joint Venture

Shapoorji Pallonji Pandoh Takoli Highway Private Limited

Simar Port Private Limited
Steooe Develooers Private Limited
Hishooint ProDerties Private Limited
Suora Warehousine Private Limited
Shaooorii Pallbnii Finance Private Limited
Archaic Properties Private Limited

Devine Realty and Construction Private Limited
S D Samata Samantha Realty Private Limited

Sundock Investment Private Limited

SP Inperial Star Private Limited
Sharus Steel Products Private Limited
Buildelobe Infrastructure Private Limited

SPCPL-Shapoorji Pallonji Qatar WLL (JV)

Elfbridge Investment Private Limited
Caoesoan Investment Private Limited
Suvita Real Estates Private Limited
Intellus Investment Private Limited
SP Oil and Gas Malaysia SDN BHD
Shatrani Prooerties Private Limited
Suora Warehousine Private Lirrited
Forvol Intemational Service Limited
Shaooorii Pallonii Oatar WLL
ESP Port Solutions Private Limited
Shapoorii Pallonji Defence & Marine Engineering Private Limited

Mr. Shapoor P Mistry Individuals having, directly or
indirectly, control or

significant influence over the

enterprise.
Mr. Cyrus P Mistry

MUMBA-6q

MEMBERSI.{IP
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GOSWAMI INFRA' PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN I

Notca to the

Noa. 35: Rclstcd disclosurci (Contd)

Finrncirl Strtemcnt for thc Ycer Ended 3lst Mrrch. 2025

TotalJoitraly Controlled Op.rraions/
Joioa Vcnaurc

K.y M.nagcment
Pemonnel

Entity conarolled / Joinlly
cotrtrolled by memben ofthc
Key Matrsgemcot Pc60[[cl

Nature ofTratrsrcaion

Apr-Mer 25 PY 2124Py 2t-24 Apr-Mrr 25 PY 2t-24 Apr-Mrr 25 PY 2124Aprl\ter 25

2.00 1.00 2.001.00

1.50 1.50Pallon S.Mistry

nivid.nd nn E6"ilv S hares
201-99 323. lr 201.99 323.18Afcons Infrasturcture l imited (uplill 3rd November, 2024)
404.46 40{.{6Floreat Investmenls Pr vate Limited

Inlerest Incoma
20.89 3E.75rstnrction Proiects Private Limited. 20.t9 3E.75Afcons Sener LNG Co

ll3.2l 224.50 I 13.21 224.50S P Ensineerins Servi( l Pte Limited
{8.80 4E.t0 48.80 4E.EOry (Guiarat) Private LimitedShaooorii Pallonii

0.20 0. l5 0.20 0.1 5Abhipreet Tradinc Prir rte Limited
0.32 0.21 0.32 0.2t,imited
4.20 4.20 4.20 4.20ossiD ProDenies Priv te Limited
0-07 0.05 0.07 0.05Iovestments Private LimitedBlue Ribbon Finance I

5.78 7.89 5.7t1.89Shaooorii Data Prores ins Privare Limited
0.10 0.t I0.10 0.t IShaomrii Pallonii Proi cts Private Limited
0.1{ 0.020.14 0.02nce & Marine Ensinrerinc Pl,t. Ltd.

9.609.60 9.60 9.60structure Capital Co. Private Limited
21.21 12.57 2t.2t 12.57

t.l2 0.E5 t.t2 0.t5vate Limited
0.13 0.14 0.13 0.I {

119,37 179.57alina Consultancy Se aices Private Limil€d
3,310.E6 3,310.t6Palchio Real Estates P ivate Limited
2,12E.69 2,12E.69itructure DeveloDment Private Limited

0.0.t 0.0{, Private Limiled
51.80 51.E0ooment Manasers Privat€ Limited
19.90 19.90,ate LimitedJaykali Developers Pr
2t.21 28.21:onsltuclion Private LimitedMake Home Realty &

l0-,t510.,15Paikar Real Estates Pr r'ate Limited
0.2{ 0.21eridian Entemrise

55.9^l 55.9{3state Private Limited
?0.3,1 70.3{d

Olher Inrome
2.00$ Joint V€nture 2.00

t9,t1 16.50ot Ventur€ t9.t1 16.50
400.00Afcons - SPCPL Joint enture 400.00

7.3J/enture 7.31Afcons - KPTL Joint '

Subcontrrat lilcoma
l.6l 0.501.6{ 0.50Transtonnelstroy-Afq ns Joint Venture

3.1t 1.39 19.629.003,t I 1.39 19,629.00raooorii Pallonii Pan loh Takoli Highway Private Limited
2,892.99 ll,00E.oo 2,892,99 11,00E.00raooorii Pallonii Infr structure Capital Co Private Limited

418.17 2,212.00 448.17 2,212.00mar Port Private L Ied

Jnconre from Eouinn ent Hire
3.00 3.06 3.003.06Simar Port Private Lir Lited

.1. 6fSnar..Arnl.r als/Asscls

Transtonnelstroy-Afq 0.13 t.000.13 t.00ns Joidt venture
2.51 2.002.51 2.00Afcons - KPTL Joint ' /enture

22.72vrus Enqineers Privi e Limited
5.001.0t5,001.0tShapoorii Pallonii & ( o Privatc Limited

I 50_00 150.00Steppe Develooers Pr vate Limited
,l8l-86481.86Shapoorii Pallonii Rq I Estate Private Limited
3l-0031.00s Pvt. Ltd.
3t.5038.50i Ltd.

8{.19 Et.l9,td.
0.70 0.70cDment Manasers Pvt. Ltd.
1.00 1.00HiuhDoint Prooerties 'v1. Ltd.
2.00 2.00

56.{5 56.,15Galina Consultancy S, ryices P!,t. Ltd.
32-00 32.00Relationship Propeni( r P!t. Ltd.

2.81 2.81{. Ltd.
20.3820.38structure Pvt. Ltd.
4J.5043.50Makehome Reality P\ Lrd.

30t.69304.69Meriland Estates Pvt. Ltd.
8.808.80cDment Manacers Pvt. Ltd.
1.001.00!1. Ltd.

2.00 2.00Palchin Real Estates vt. Ltd.
122.00 122.00vate Limitedsteppe Developers Pr

3.433.79 3,{33.79ate Limited .//-r-r

MEMBERSI-liP
No.116819

. MUM8A.64,
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GOSWAMI INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED
ctN:
Not€s to thc

Notc 35: Relrled disclosures (Cotrtd)

.elal.d

Fitrrncisl Sartcmena for the Year Etrdcd 3lst luarch' 2025

Entity coiltrolled / Joitrtly
cotrtrolled by membc6 ofthe
Key l\Ienag.nrent Pe6otrtrel

TotalJoinlly Cotrtrolled Opcrraiotrs/
Joint Vcoaurc

Key l\Iansgemeot
Pe6oooclNaturc ofTrans.caion

Apr-Mar 25 PY 23-24 Apr-Mar 25 PY 23-24Apr-lllar 25 PY 2}24 Apr-Mar 25 Py 23-24

.oonc onrl Arlvcnnr ( liven
2t.52 26.0021.52 26.00I Joint venture

180.00180.00Afcons nt Venture
38.33 27.0038.33 27.00rstruction Proiects Private Limited.

135.59 429.00135.59 429.00Afcons - KPTL Joint enture
2.500.00 2.499.99 2.500.002,499.99Shaooorii Pallonii Fim rce Private Limited

130_00 130.00. Pte Limited
1.00 1.00lte Limited

0.500.50BIue Ribbon Finance E
2-00 3.502.00 3.50.imited

2-002.00oe & Marine Encinering Pfi. Ltd.
25.0022.00 25.00 22,00Shaooorii Data Proces inc Private Limited

1.00 1.00tterinc Gold Financi Private Limited
17.00l 16.50 17.00 I t6.50SP Advaned Enginee

22,OO 3.00 22.00 3.00vate Limited
1,7t5.00 1.7t5.00ilina Consultancy S€ vices Priwte Limited

Palchin Real ivate Limited
65.00 65.00itructure Development Private Limited

lopment Manacers Private Limiled
399.E5 399.t5Javkali Develooers Pr 'ale Limited
530.00 530.00onstruction Private Limited
280.00 2t0.00Paikar Real Estates Pr r'ate Limited

5.00 5.00Meridian Enterprise

Estate Privat€ Limited
25.0025.00

Pernetuxl l,oan siven
221.00ate Limited 22{.00

,12.531.81Devine Realtv and Cor !trucrion Privale Limited 42,5J1.81

33.955.80High Point Propenies 'rivate Limited 33,955.80

RBhy Private Limited 59,201.78 59,20,1.78S D Samata Samantha

1.35,3EL2 1 1,35,381.21Sund@k Inv€stment P 'ivate Limited
1,75.{ 17.14 r,75,4t1.t4SP Imperial Star Priva e Limited

400.00 400.00Sharus Steel Products vr. Lld.
3-26.021.71Buildclobe Infrastruct re Pvl Ltd 3,26,021,11

rnii Qatar WLL (JV) 67,220.00 67.220.00SPCPL-Shapoorii Pall

vate Limited 3,215.00 3,215.00Shatrani Propenies Pr
1.600.00 1,600.00CaoesDan Investment 'rivate Limited

21,313.92 2 1,3 13.92Sundock lnvestment P 'ivate Limited
169..t0 169.40Shaooorii Pallonii Infr struclure CaDital ComDanv Private Limiled
427.21 421.21teDDe DeveloDers Pri iare Limited

3.343.00 3.3,13.00Archaic Propenies Pri
"te 

Limited
70.00 70.00Anand Agencies Priva e Limited

800.00 r00.00Buildbmr Technolot ies lndia Private Limiled
2{.30 2.1.30Porteast Investment vare Limited
75.00 75.00oDment Manacers Private Limted

,ed back
,1.0t9.s0105.,10 4,0{9.50 105.,10rivate Limited

6.50 6.50Iish Point ProDerties Private Limited
78.700.00 7t,700.00SP Imperial Star te Limiled

3.215.00 3.2 15.00Shatrani Propenies Pr vate Limited
215.00 215.00teDoe DeveloDers vate Limited

15,752.10 15.752. l0venqelous Ventures 'rivate l-imited

P.rna.r,l L6rn R.nl id
35,057.00 35,057.00venselous Venlures vate Limited

3.033.00 3.033.00)rivate LimitedEvengelous Ventures

Rorowinor + Inr"r. t (Assipnment)
I 1,632.90 I 1,632.90Shaooorii Pallonii anc Private Limited

Pernefurl loril lrAns
mit.dt.l^no uih Inf.r..t.trt.trndino rrrn.f.rre.ll
brrrd (Borrowinqs from Shapoorii Pallonii rnd

I t,632.90 I 1,632.90rridce lnvestment vate Limited

Perp.tual [,oan - tra nsfcrrcd to Sundock Invesament Privatc Limiacd bv

59,20.t.78 59,20{.?tD Samata Samanthd eahy Private Limited

nrfrr;rd frnm ( D Sohqto Samqilth, R.qlrv Pvi Lr.l hv :\
N^v.ti^n qo4.il.nt z \

__:ry 59.20{.7t//:V-. :\\
-59.40t.78

undock Investment ir ivate Limited

(

.Yt

E

Inw,.tmcnrc Pr;v,t. I imite.l

10 Mar.;.l. Pr;v,t. I imite.l



GOSWAIIII INFRA PRIVATE LIITIITED
CIN:
Notcs ao th.

Note 35: Rcletcd disclosures (Con1d)

Fitr.ncid Ststcmena for thc Ycer Ended 31st March, 2025

Etrtity cotrtrolled / Joirtly
controlled by m€mbers of tha
Key Mxtrrgement Personuel

TotalNaturc ofTrsnsaction
Joitraly Controlled Opcntions/

Joiilt Vcnture

Kcy Metr.Semelt
Penonnel

Apr-Mar 25 PY 2T24 Apr-lUar 25 PY 23-24 Apr-lltar 25 PY 23-24 Apr-lller 25 PY 23-24

P.rn.r,rl Locn rdiil, ted / reccived - CIPL bv Deed ofassisnment
3.202.00 3.202.00ivate LimitedSundock

P.rn.iil,l Loqn q.litr,

assiennrent

led / received - SP Port Maintainancc by Deed of

26,210.00 26,210.00ivate Limited

Lornr rnd Arlvcnte I eceived bnck
Transtonnelstroy-Afco 273a 20.00 27.38 20.00rs roint Venture

$truction Proists Privat€ Limited. 329.71 6,00 329.71 6.00Afcons Sener LNG Co

373.93 129-00 373.93 129.00Af@ns - KPTL Joint \ enture

rce Private Limited 2,500.00 5,000.00 2,500.00 5.000.00

180.00 180.00Strabag-AG Afcons Jc nt Venlure
2.00 2,00Floral Finane Private ,imited

lonstruction Private Limited 366.63 366.63Makc Home Realty &
36-50 36.50Paikar Real Estates Pr /ate Limiled

1.667.,15 1.667.45Shaooorii Pallonii Rq Estate Private Limhed
3.t93.53 3.193.53Galina Consultancy Se

2-123-91 2.123.94Benqal Shaooorii Infra itructure Development Private Limit€d
t-153-65 l.l 53.65Shaooorii Pallonii Dev lopment Managers Private Limited

Abhioreet Tradinc Prir ate Limited 3.00 3.00

Trend Setter Realtv vate Limited 16.00 16.00

,cts Private Limited I.50 1.50

West Star Finance & vestments Private Limited 2.00 2.00

SP Oil and Gas Malav a SDN BHD 0.t7 1.021.00 0.t7 1.021,00

Interesl ExDenses

l4l.l: 2.50 l4l.l 2.50

Cvtus Enaineers Priva e Limited 3.26 3.28

66.99 66.99C]rus lnveslment Pr [e Limited
Shapoorii Pallonii & C r Private Limited 456.6t 456.68

SteDDe DeveloDers Pri /ate Limited 5.89 5.89

Shapoorii Pallonii Rq Estate Private Limited 0.20 0.20

alina Consultancv Se vices Private Limited 3.95 3.95

P!1. Ltd. 0.93 0.93

upra Warehousinq Pr Lrd. 0.06 0.0(

2.32 2.32

0.70 0-?0Makehome Reality Pvt Ltd.
Meriland Estates P!,t. ,td. 1,36 1.36

Shaooorii Pallonii Der ,oDment Manaqers Ptl. Ltd. 0.33 0.33

Hishpoint Prooenies I !'t. Ltd. 0.03 0.01

Palchin Real Estates P d. Ltd. 0.05 0.05

AcccDtrnces-Vendor latrce
Shapoorii Pallonii Fin: nce Private Limited 2,500.00 2,500.00

Rent lnaone
35.90 35.90

3.59 3.59Mr. Cyrus P. Mistry

Rent ErDens€

Sharus Steel Products Private Limiled
71.00 30.00 7l.00 30.00

ees

Shapoorii Pallonii & ( o. Private Limited. (Strategic Support Seryi@s) 37.5.t 37.5.t

Shapoorii Pallonii Finr nce Private Limiled 47.00 47.00
ann."ltnn.v & .nnn )rt seruices

ShaDoorii Pallonii and ComDany Privale Limhed
El{bridqe Investment l 'rivate Limited 108-29 26.48 108.29 26.4t
Suora Warehousinq vale Limited
Intellus lnvestment Pr vate Limited 70.00 70.00

25.00 25.00Suvita Real Estates Pr vate Limited
40.00 40.00Capespan Investment )rivate Limited

t50.00 150.00

Snh.nnrr,.r tr'rn.nir s

ShaDoorii Pallonii Qat LT WLL
t-40t-76 t.,l0l.?6Sterling & Wilson Pri, ate Limited

t.950.008,950.00

Trrvellino trrnante<

Forvol Intemational S lruice Limited
998.35 469.00 99t.35 469.00

iterials/Assets -1- t-L N.
0.32 v1 -\\ 0.32

Afcons - KPTL Joint V enture 1.00 \r4\\ z 1.00

ExDeilsa Il) t \-v\ .Za \rEL'!\\
,r.x / \r //-.>'-/I

No 1 16819
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GOSIVA[fl
CIN:
Notei to lhc

Notc 35: Rclrted disclosuro (Contd)

PRIVATE LINIITED

Finencial Stetemcnt for thc Ycar Eoded 3lst Mrrch, 2025

Nrture ofTrrnsrctiotr
Jointly Cootrolled Opcrstiotrs/

Joirt Vetrtur.
Kcy Iurtrrgemcnt

Pcnonncl

Etraiay cotrtrolled / Joinaly
cotrtrolled by mcflbcn of ahc

Key Mxnagement Pcnonnel
Total

Apr-Mar 25 Apr-Mrr 25 Py 23-24 Apr-J\lar 25 PY 2'24 Apr-lttrr 25 Pv 2t21

25.00 25-00
Del2ik of Relrted Pnr y Oulsl^nding Bahrrces {s on 3l NIarch 2025

Outstandins Amouilt
Strabac-AC Afcons Jo nt Venture 26.955.00 26,955.00

s Joint Venture 1E0.00 180.00
Afcons Sener Lr-G Co struction Prciects Private Limited. ,180.00 4t0.00
Afcons - KPTL Joint \ ,nture 364_00 36,1.00

Pte Limited 899.00 899.00
rivate Limited ,1,260.00 4.260.00

Abhioreet Tradinp Priv ,te Limiled 30.00 30,00
Blue Nbbon Finane & Investments Private Limited 3.0( 3.00

imiled 1.00 t,00 1.00 1.00
Gossip Properties Priva e Limited 5.50 3.50 5-50 3.50
Glittering Gold Finance Private Limited 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00
Shapoorji Data Procest ns Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Shapoorii Pallonii Proir ;ts Private Limiled 122.00 100.00 122.00 100-00
Shapoorii Pallonii Defe rce & Marine Enqineerinc Pvt. Ltd. I.50 1.50
Shapoorii Pallonii lnfra rtructure Capital Co. Private Limited 2.00 2-00 2.00 2.00
Shapoorii Pallonii Ener ry (Guiaat) Private Limited 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00
SP Advanced Encineer ng Materials Private Limited 610.00 610.00 610.00 610.00
Trend Setter Realty Pri ,ale Limiled 357.S0 2{l-00 357.50 2,11.00
West Star Finance & Ir vestments Private Limited 20-00 14.00 20.00 14.00

2.00 2.00
In1...sr R...ivahl. 

^r Loan Given:
AbhiDreet Tradins Pri te Limited
Blue fubbon Finance nvestments Private Limited 0.t3 0.r3
Floral Fihance Private mhed 0.07 0.05 0.07 0.05

Private Limited 0.29 0.15 0.29 0.r5
Gossio Prooenies Priva e Limited 0.0.1 0.0.t
Shaooorii Data Procesr ng Privare Limited l5.t 11.66 l5.,ll 1t.66
Shaooorii Pallonii Pro ;ls Private Limited 7,to 5,20 7.1 0 5.20

rapoorii Pallonii Defe rce & Marine Enqineerinc Ptt. Ltd. 0.09 0.09
Shapoorii Pallonii Infra Co. 0. l3 0.02 0.ll 0.02
Shapoorji Pallonii Ener 25.99 17.35 2S.99 17.35
SP Advanced Engineer Materials 362.00 318.0E 362.00 318.08
Trend Se(er Realtv Pri I9.09 20,32 19.0! 20.32
West Star Finance & In /estments Private Limited 0.0,1 1.56 0.0, t.56

0.13 0.13

ce Private Limited

2.500.00 2,500.00
rble

Devine Realtv and C, ,nstruction Private Limiled
Hieh Point Prooenie Private Limited 42,531.81 42,531.81 42,531.81 42.531.81
Archaic Properlies vate Limited 33,9.19.10 33,9S5.80 33,9.19.30 33.955.80
Sundock Investment

SP lmperial Stu Pri
22{.00 221.00 77t.O0

tJrJ33-01
77t.OOPrivate Limited

ffi
Sharus St@l Producr r Private Limited 96,7t1.11 1,15.4t1.t4 96,7t1,14 t.15.417.14
Buildelobe Infrastrur ture Private Limited 400.00 ,100.00 400.00 400.00

rnii Qatu WLL (JV) 3,25,021.74 3,26,021,1t 3.26.021,11 3.26.021.74
ivate Limiled 57,220.00 67,220.00 67.220,00 67 -220_Otr

Capespan Investmen

Shapoorii Pallonii Inf Private
3,215.003,215.00

Steppe DeveloDers Pr vale Limiled 169.40 169.40
Archaic Propenies Pr vate Limited 212.21 2t2,2t
Arand Aqencies Privi te Limited 3.3,13.00 3,3{3.00
Buildbaar Tchnolc gies India Private Limiled 70.00 70.00
Poneast Investment vate Linlited 800.00 800.00
Shaooorii Pallonii De' elopment Mangers Private Limited 2.t.10 2.t.30

75.00 ?5.00
Parncrrrl I non Pova

Ellbridec Investment vate Limited

t1,632.90 I t,632.90 I t.632.90 11,632.90

MUM8A.64.

MEMBERSHIP
No 1i6819
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STEr

r\6r
\tr + 0a

Py 23-24

rnr( Ste.l Pr^d'r.1.

I l, 1f1 0l | 6t Itrrq l -61 -t 2d.d9



COSWAMI PRIVATf, LIMITED
CIN i
Not6 to ahc Finrncial Stelcmcnt for ahc Y.rr Eild.d 3lta NIrrch, 2025

Notc 35: Relatcd disclosures (Contd)

For investment and associates refer note 5

No mounts wcre o0back during thc yw in rcpecl ofmounts due from/to related parties.

Previous yw figur* written in italics.

CH

\
\3c$-

*
\q

*

ToaalJointly Conarolled Operations/
Joirt Venturc

Key Mroagemena
Personnel

Entity controlled / Join(ly
controlled by members of (he

Key lllailegcilenl Persontrel
Nature ofTransecliol

Pv 23-21PY 23-21 Apr-lllar 25 PY 23-24 Apr-lltar 25 PY 2J-2.1 Apr-NIar 25Apr-lUar 25

- Debto6
Transtonnelstrov-Afco rs Joint venture

396.00396.00
'. 

Private Limited.
26.00 26.00trabae-AG Afcons Jc nt Venture

2t3.00213.00Afcons - KPTL Joint enlure
26.0026.00itructure CaDital Co Private Limiled

20.507.0020,507.00oh Takoli Hiehwav Private Limited
32.436.0032,416.00rWLL

971.009?t.00mar Port Private Lift d
239.002J9.00P Port Solutions Pri rate Limited.

1.009.001,009.00,ridqe Investment P ivate Limited
37.t0 37.80 37,80 37.80Limiled
48.60 4E.60 48.60 48.60ate Limited
27.O0 27.00vate Limited

162.00 162.00r'ate LimitedSupra Warehousing Pr
75.60 75.60 75.60 15,60rate LimitedSuvita Real Estates Pr

43.2041.20

Limiled

ruice LimitedForyol International S(
120.00structure Capital Co Private Limiled t20.00

5,229.00 5,229.00Private Limited
255.00 255.00Simar Porl Private Litr ited
266.00 266.00SP Oil and Gas Malavr a SDN BHD
I 21.00 121,00Shaooorii Pallonii ). Private Limited.

0.87 6.929.00 0.t7 6,929.00Sharus Steel Products ivate Limited
9.00 9.00Strabas-AG Afcons Jo nt Venture

105.00105.00

IvIEMBERSHIP
No 116819
MUM8A.64
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GOSWAMI
CIN:
Notes to the

PRIVATE LIMITED
1323

tr'inancial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

36 Regulatory Information pursuant to Amendment in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

has not revalued Property, Plant and equipment, Intabgible assets and Right ofuse assets.

does not hold any Intangible Assets. Accordingly, reporting on revaluation oflntangible Assets is not applicable.

does not hold any Capital-work-in-progress. Accordingly, reporting on Capital Work-in-progress ageing and completion

is not applicable.

does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any

property.

e The has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly retums or

of current assets filed by the group with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

f The is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the current year and previous year,

with struck off companies
with Companies whose name is struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies

Act, I
The has transactions with the struck offunder 2013 or I 956.

The has following outstanding balances as on March 31 2024, with the companies struck off under Companies Act,20l3 or
Act, 1 956. However, no transactions have been entered during the year

a

b

c

The

The

The

d The

Name lf struck off company Nature of
transactions with
struck-off
cnm n, nv

Balance as on

3lst March, 2025
(Rs. in lakhs)

Balance as on

3lst March,2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

Relationship with
the struck off
company

Viradh za Infratech Private Limited Service 1.00 Not a Related Party
Bikran Construction Private Limited Service -2.00 Not a Related Party

Name lf struck off company Nature
transactions
struck-off
companY

of
with

Balance as on

3lst March,2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as on

3lst March, 2024
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Relationship with
the struck off
company

V.S.Prr rlects Pvt. Ltd. Service # Not a Related Party
Parmar Power System Pvt. Ltd. Service 1.00 Not a Related Party
Yasai l nfrastructure Private Limited Service # Not a Related Party
Kamle rh Proiects Private Limited Service 6.46 Not a Related Party
Hbc In lratech Pvt. Ltd. Service # Not a Related Party
Rump nspection & Enee Service # Not a Related Party
I Drear : Infratech Private Limited Service 2.4t Not a Related Party
Zoiros lnfratech Pvt Ltd Service t.54 Not a Related Party

Bulsar
Limite,

Construction & Consulting (Opc) Private Service 1.80 Not a Related Party

Pankas oorai Foundations Private Limited Service # Not a Related Party
Sokam Overseas Private Limited Service 1.32 Not a Related Party

Mm& Ay Infra Proiects Private Limited Service # Not a Related Party
Srianar rdam Infratech Private Limited Service # Not a Related Party

Shaurl a Protection And Detection Private Limited Service 0.72 Not a Related Party

Engicc n India Pvt Ltd Service Not a Related Party1.52

Hal W rter Vatika Pvt. Ltd. Supply 0.68 Not a Related Party

Emc2 ndia Pvt Ltd Service 3.63 Not a Related Party

Mac Ir ternational Infra Pvt Ltd. Service 1.04 Not a Related Party

Precisi :n Calibration And Services pvt Ltd Service # Not a Related Party

Anp C eo Infra Pvt. Ltd. Service 1.49 Not a Related Party

MUMBA-6q

MEMBERSHIP
No 11C81c)

CH(J,

*
{
)<
,*
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GOSWAMI
CIN:
Notes to the

I

J

TECH PRIVATE LIMITED
tzPTC24t323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

Note:- nt mentioned as "#" is below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

under Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements is not applicable to the Croup.

The has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or Company(ies), including foreign entities

with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

(a) or indirectly lend or invest'in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Group

beneficiaries) or
(b) any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries except as mentioned in note 35

has not received any fund from any person(s) or Company(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a)

(b)

The

or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe funding

beneficiaries) or

any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries'

does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books ofaccounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196l (such as, search or survey or any other relevant

provis of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

k The

m The

with

patrty

is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

n
o

on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Group.

The has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year.

p

,:. i

t

;rl

6tF MEMBERSHIP
No 11681q
lvlUMBA-64

CH

* *
?
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CIN
AMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

u 45209DL2012PT C2 4 1323

to the Consolidated Financial Statenrent for the Year Ended 3lst March' 2025

37

ll

Combination and disposal of subsidiary

year mandatory converslon ofthe due to

holding company has become the holding company of Afcons Infrastructure Limited w.e.

LD.l0)

value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as detailed belorv:

preference shares into equity shares Goswami Infratech Limited,Private

3tlr 2024. (Referf

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progress

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill
Goodwill on business combination

Intangible assets

Financial assets

Investrnents

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Contract assets

Non curent tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than above

Loans

Other financial assets

Contract assets

Other current assets

Total Assets

(Rs. in lakhs)

2,72,338.00

t4,932.00
3,028.00

14.00

I 3,35,370.00

61.00

78.00

6s,258.00
38,306.00

1,36, I 56.00

4,354.00

I 8,686.00

1.00

1,96,645.00

2,46,421.00

23,423.00

37,527.00

6,1 14.00

41,181.00

4.39.194.00

19.063.00

\

tuiuMeA-64.

TVIEMBERSHIP
t\c 1 16819

CH

q
}<
* *

January,

r 1,09,568.00
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CIN:
Notcs

INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Endcd Slst NIarch, 2025

Combination and disposal of subsidiary

liabilities
liabilities

Bonowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Contract liabilities

tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
liabilities

Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Contract liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

Other current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Fair value of Net Assets acquired

Fair value of non-controlling interest

Fair value oflnvestment rccognized as on date ofacquisition

37

@s. in lakhs)

59,94 t .00

1,349.00

49,095.00

13,453.00

l,86,s05.00
2,660.00

8,916.00

3,21,919.00

2,28,81 8.00

1,685.00

4,3 1,369.00

31,495.00

2,68,424.00

t6,202.00
6,81 I .00

5,788.00

16,85,638.00

4,26,120.63

12,59,517.37

\6 <-

$- (

9,90,592.00

------l!rl2's1!99-



GOSWAMI
CIN:
Notes to the

37

iii

TECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

Combination and disposal of subsidiary

the year the group has disposed investments in below subsidiary

assets and liabilities derecognized on disposal as on 30th September, 2024 ofabove subsidiary is as below:

CHU

ln

7
g (v

*

ACCv

Narne ofSubsidiaries Date of Disposal Consideration
received (Net)

Afr

l8th October, 2024
and 3rd November,
2024 6,96,085.05Infrastructure Limited

Par 'ticulars Afcons
Infrastructure

Limited

2,63,675.00
3,403.00
8,405.00

13,35,384.00

57.00

100.00

47,284.00
41,617.00

1,04,283.00

8,250.00
22,972.00

(e)
(h)
(i)

(b)

(i)

(v)
(c)
(d)

(d)
(e)

(0
(i)
(ii)

)
,c)

18,35,430.00

3,06,895.00
69,615.00

6,601 .00

5,535.00
59,1 13.00

5,47,868.00
1,15,426.00

1,57,792.00

12,68,845.00

r current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill
lntangible assets
rinancial assets

lnvestments

Irade receivables

Other financial assets

lontract assets

\on current tax assets (net)

)ther non-current assets

al non-current assets

Trade receivables

lc^n una cash equivalents

i 
A*k Uulun..s other than (ii) above

I Loans

Other financial assets

Contract assets

Other current assets

:al current assets

:al

'rent assets

nventories
linancial assets

31,04,275.00

MEMBERS]I.IIP
No. 'l 1'i81q
MUM8A.-6r

EC

*
I.\bt\l-



GOSWAMI
CIN:
Notes to the

PRIVATE LIMITED
t2PTC24t323

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst 2025

2,419.00
38,872.00
10,045.00

1,90,395.00

2,t73.00
7,077.00

59,337.00

5,013.00

3,15,331.00

2,80,884.00

3,267.00

19,2t7.00
4,30,73 1.00

26,60s.00
2,69,83 t.00

19,23 I .00

13,419.00

7,t92.00
10,70,377.00

13,85,708.00

17,18,567.00

4,33,555.60

12,85.011.40

6,96,085.05
4,75,269.62

r-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Lease Liabilities
Trade payables

Iotal outstanding due to micro and small enterprises

Iotal outstanding due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Other fi nancial liabilities
Contract liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

al non-current liabilities

[Financial liabilities

]Bo.ro*ing,
I Lease Liabilities

I Trade payables

ftotal outstanding due to micro and small enterprises

fotal outstanding due to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Contract liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

Other current liabilities
al current liabilities

'rent liabilities

Gain recognized as Exceptional ltem

: Consideration (net ofIPO expenses)

: value ofretained interest

:at

:Assets attributable to Owners

I (Perpectual Loan Classified as equity)

Assets attributable to Owners

I,13,656.73

e MUM8A.64.

MEI'iIBERSHIP
Nc. 1'1i,819

CH

*
q
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CIN;
Notcs

AMI INFRATECH PIUVATE LII\IITED
u 4 s20 9 DL2 0 t 2PT C2 4 t 323

the Consolidated Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2025

Combination and disposal of subsidiary

the previous year the group has disposed investments in below subsidiaries

assets and liabilities derecognized on disposal ofabove subsidiaries is as below

37

ln

Shapoorji & Company Shapoorji Pallonji
Private Limited (Gwalior) Private

Limited

(Rs. in lakhs)

Chinsha Properties
Private Limited

on Current Assets

Property

Financial Assets

tax assets (neO

Non Current Asset

urrent Assets

and cash equivalents

Financial Assets

Other Cunent Assets

Total Assets

Non Currcnt Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Cunent Borrowings

and other payables

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities

Total

NCI (Perpectual Loan Classified as equity)

Net Assets attributable to Owners

Sale Consideration (net)

Net Gain recognized as Exceptional Item

18.81

5,105.27

1.68

5,125.76

20.98

4,806.40

2.89 74.89

1,804.55

1,271.41

427.99 7.90

8.59

6,534.40 1,895.93

4.09 3,341.28
60,046.02

9,293.35

2.35

2.95

4.09 72,683.00 2.95

5,129.85 79,217.40 I,898.88

56.22

0.30

16.34

0.26

12,609.3s

75.22

428.20

5,273.86

1.56

73.12 13,1t2.17 5,275,42

73.12 76.00t 50 5.275.42

37.50 94.60

5,019.23 3.121.30 (3.376.54)

6,026.66 4,799.03 4.00

1,007.43 1,677.73 3,380.54

Consideration rcceived
(Net)

Name of Subsidiaries

lDate 

of DisRosal

Shapoorii & Company Private Limited l22ndMarch,2024 6,026.66

Shapoorii Pallonii (Gwalior) Private Limited l22nd March, 2024 4,799.03

Chinsha Properties Private Limited l27thFebru?I.l.2024 4.00

MUMBA-6c

MEMBERSHIP
No. '1 1{:81''

CHO

{
}<
*

v*
As

- 62,888.73

- 62,888.73
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GOSWAMI
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Notes to the

38

I

TECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

Item

Properties Private Limited, a l00o/o subsidiary of the Company, holds 37.50% stake in Joyous Housing Limited ("Joyous").
developing a real estate project in Mumbai. During the previous year, Joyous did not meet certain obligations mainly due to

delays arising out ofdisruption caused by COVID-I9 pandemic. Subsequent to the year end, the lender(s) ofJoyous
proceedings including e-auction of the project. Shareholders of Joyous are in talks with the lender(s) for an amicable

ofthe issue.

Asa of abundant caution, management of the holding company has provided an Impairment in financials

Joyous

project

have

Y1t

{-

Nature If Exceptional Item
3t/03t2025 3t/03t2024

0,r3.701.59)
6,065.70

(4,882.04)

ofsubsidiary (Refer note 37)
ofsubsidiary (Refer note 37)

(1,13,701.59) 1,183.66

{



CIN:
GOSWAMI INFRA' PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the

39 Non Controlling

Details of

Set out below is

eliminations.

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst NIarch, 2025

that has non-controlling interest

financial infomration for each subsidiary that has non - controlling interests. The amount disclosed for each subsidiary are before inler-company

interest calculated above, includes share ofminority shareholders fomring part ofstep down subsidiaires.

CH

J

Afcons

GS

ac

g
*
\

fulEMBEFSHIP
No, 11I-13i9
MUt\,|8464.

*
Yh

Total Comprehensive income/
(loss) allocated to non- controlling

interest

Accumulated non controlling
interests

Proportion of ownership interests

and voting rights held by non-

controlling interests

As at As at As atAs at As at As at
31.o3.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 3t.03.2025 31.03.2024

Subsidiary Place of
Incorporation
and Principal

place of business

31.03.2025

Neme r

3.3 l 4. l6 4.26,401.54India
25.27Yo 25.2't% 5,737.0sAfcons Infrastruc

(Refer note l)
ure Limited Group

s0.00% 50.00% 205.62 1 19.00 992.11 786.50G S Entemrises India
992.10 4,27,188.04Total

Particulars 31.03_202s 31.03.202,1

18,65,037.00

10,97,329.00
(2,75,46,1.00)

(9,88,t49.00)

t6,98,753.00
4,26,401,54

3,63,643.00

14,490.00
(1,37s.00)

l3,l 15.00

3,314.16

17.903.00

Cunent Assets

Non-Current

Net Assets

Summarised

(loss) for

increase/

paid

Current

Current

l-Controlling Interestsr

ement of profit and loss

ear

rsive income./ (loss)

nsive income/ (loss)

sive income/ (loss) allocated to NCI
NCI

h flows
rrease) in cash and cash equilvalents

['-

6,1 1,405.00

32,613.00
(t19.77)

32,493,23

5,737.05
(1,703.68)

31.03.202s 31.03.202,1Particulars

h-Controlling Interests

tement of profit 8nd loss

tear

nsive income,/ (loss)

rnsive income/ (loss)

rsive income/ (loss) allocated to NCI
rNCI

h flows
crease) in cash and cash eouilvalents

pnce sheet

bts

[ilities

2s,814.45
12.75

(20,791.19)
5,036.01

992.11

(0.68)

0.33

(0.76)
4t 1.99

411.23

20s,62

25,402.46

13.43

(20,791.1 l)
4,624.78

786,50

(73.72\

0.02

(r27.47)
36s.48
238.01

I 19.00

(loss) for

increase/

Assets

paid

rised

Cunent
Assets

,tat'm

*

Note l: The considered above are for 30th September, 2024 for Afcons Limited.

e



GOSWAMI INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45209DL20lzPT C24 1323

Notes to the Coilolidated Financial Statem.nt for thc Yerr End.d 3lst Mar.h. 2025

40
Nct Assls i.c. Total A!se$ mitrus Total Urbiliaic. Sharc in Prc6U(Lo$) Sharc in Other Comprehensive Income Shrrc in Total

At on 3lst March 2025 A! on 3lst lU.rch 2024 A. on 31st lttarch 2025 As on Slst ltlarch 2024 A! on 3lst ltlarch 2025 As onName of Enterpris€
('in Lekh.) (' in Lakhs) C in Lakhs) (' in Lrkhs) ('in Lakhs) (' in Lxkhr (' in lrkh.)

Prrcnl:
Goswdi lnfrat*h Privale I 18.84% (37,40t.33) a9.440/. 2,42,793.67 94.230/0 (2.80,241.2E) to6.290/" (3,27,260. I t) 0.08 91.730/" 1,64,2t7.O2 0.94 (2,80,202.0O) tt6.510/, (1,63,043.09)

0.00%

o.00%

o.ooo/o

-16.00%

.52.3ao/o

-52.04%

o.@yo

9A 430/0

0.00%
o.ooyo

0.000/.

3.150/0

(30,9t4.54)

(992.11)

5,036.01

16,488.76

16,382.54

625.770/1

0.0002

o.o00A

t.700/.

6.t80/1

6.2604

0.000/1

0.0002

-15E.48%

470.87%

0.0002

o.ooot

16,98,753.00

4,624.78

16,768.69

17,000.25

<4,30,22t.29t

<12,7t,2s0.94)

Subsidiary:
AfcoN lnft6tructure Limitcd
Group
Shapoorji Pallonji (Gwalior)

Private Limited
Shapoorji & ComPilY Private

Limitcd
M/s G.S Enterpris6
(Paflne6hip Fim)
Hem6 Comcre Private

Limited
Raaissce Commerce Privatc

Limited

ChiNhs Property Privale

Limited

Associrtct:
Honcho Propcrties Limited
Afco6 lnfrdtructue Limiled
Group

Joint Vcnaurc:
Shapoorji & Co.

Non Controtling lnterest in

lsub.idir.i.t

Consolidalion Elimination &
Adiustmenls

Limited

-7.630/.

O.0o'lo

o.N.h

0.00%

4.Uo/.

4.Uyo

o.oe/o

o.oovo
0.00%

0.N%

-t.930/o

t5.42./o

22,702.O0

5,135.67

(45,E4E. r4)

(0.?6)

t20.27

t24.t4

4.71o/o

0.36o/o

0.01olo

o.o4%

4.O50h

4.05%

4.OEo/o

0.030/o

-2.300/o

0.00%

-r.170/o

t.640/0

14,490.00

(1,097.E0)

(l?.35)

(127.47)

156.70

tu.63

259.79

0.03

3,597.89

(5,053.(X)

(89.05)

7,071.21

0.71

1.82

-o.73

0.60

0.E4

(0 El)

(l.sl)

350.00

(360.67)

294.44

899.40

4l1.99

(400.19)

(742.s6)

-o.420/o

0.00%

0.000/6

0.22%

t.6v/.

t.ttoh

0.00%

0.00%
0.000/.

0.000/.

-o.10%

414%

(1,37s.00)

365.48

2,694.I

3,033.E3

(164.73)

(735.e3)

-0.08

-0.02

0.16

23,052.00

(44,948.74)

6,030 r l

(360.67)

4tt.23

(279.92\

(6t7.72)

-9.3ayc

o.7ao/o

0.otn/o

4.l1%o

-2.M%

.2.29%

-o.t9yo

4.14%

o.06%
-5.060/"

0.00%

-2!5%

l3,l I 5.00
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GOSWAMIINFRA PRIVATE LMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March,2025

4l Interest in entities

Commitments contingent liabilities in respect of associate:

Limited Group has receiVed a demand and a show cause notice amounting to Rs. 23,900.00 lakhs and Rs. 24,464.00 lakhs respectively with
on account of royalty payable on Mumrm used in one of the projects. Subsequent to the show cause notice, the Group has obtained a stay order on

based on legal opinion, the Group expects that the claim is highly unlikely to materialise. The proportionate share of the Group is 6,123.34 lakhs.

43 The Group incurred losses amounting to Rs. 2,97,407.40 lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2O25 and as of that date, has accumulated losses of Rs. 46,712.02

there has been significant delay in payment of advance tax for financial year 2024-25 as repo(ed in emphasis of matter paragraph. These factorslakhs.

Notes:
I * The Afcons

respect to

the same.

been delayed

of income for

2 The Group implemented the decision given in the Supreme Court Judgement in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund

(ll) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-Ul(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated 20th March, 2019 issued by the

Employees'
purposes of

Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the

contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952 w.e.f. lst April, 2019. Basis the

assessment of management, which is supported by legal advice, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have significant impact in respect of earlier periods.

42 The Holding had issued debentures of Rs. 14,30,000 lakhs in financial year 2023-24. The Holding company holds significant shareholding in Afcons

Infrastructure (Afcons). The shares of Afcons were listed on BSE and NSE in November 2024. Pursuant to the said listing and to meet the existing lender

covenants as the Transaction Documents with respect to the said debentures so issued, the Holding Company sold a significant pan of ils shareholding in Afcons as

a selling Accordingly, during the year, Holding Company has sold its 15,44,68,205 equity share investment in Afcons Infrastructure Limited. As per the

covenants of debenture trust deed for the debentures issued by the Holding Company, the Holding Company had to apply all the proceeds up to INR 7,00,000 lakhs

to repay the debenture holders (including withholding taxes towards the payments made to debenture holders. The Holding Company realized less than INR
7.00.000 (net of transaction expenses) from the sale of the shares, hence, could not allocate proceeds for income tax for the transaction. It paid withholding taxes

towards the made to debenture holders of INR 23,200 lakhs. Due to the Afcons shares sale transaction, Holding Company has accounted total current tax

liability of Rs. ,745.63 lakhs during the current financial year. However, Holding Company has not paid advance tax installment for the quader ended 15th December

2024 and March 2025. Fu(her, as on date, Holding Company has not paid any income tax for financial year 2024-25. The Management of the Holding Company

has that as the above tax liability is substantial and as the Holding Company does not have sufficient cash flow to make the payment immediately, it has

payment of the tax liability. The Holding Company has also represented that the above mentioned tax liability will be paid at the time of filing of return

financial year 2O24-25 along with the requisite interest on the delayed payment.

indicate that or conditions exist, which may cast significant uncertainty on the Group's ability to continue is a going concem. Further, the Shareholders of the

has provided an intent, though not a commitment, to financially support the Holding Company through a support letter. Additionally, for theHolding
debentures by the Holding Company, Cynrs Investments Private Limited, has provided a credit support undertaking and a third party collateral of shiues held by

Cy.u. Private Limited in Tata Sons Private Limited. This provides more than adequate security cover for the debentures issued by the Holding Company.

ofAfcons Infrastructure Limited held by the Holding Company are also ofsignificant value and is substantially more in value than the liabilities ofThe balance

the Holding other than in relation the debentures issued by it. Further, the Holding Company plans to undertake a program to continue to monitor the Group's

ongolng capital requirements, ft*e steps to strengthen its liquidity position and initiate cost restructuring exercise. Based on the aforementioned factors, the

management that it is appropriate to preparc the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis.
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As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.202Particulars
Associales Associates

Share of Conl ingent liabilities
(a) Claims aea nst the Group not acknowledged as debts

3,627.10(i) Demands r: ,sed by tax authorities (lncome Tax, GST and S9q4991144)

439.03(ii) Demands r ilsed by Sales tax authorities
o.75uantee issued on behalf of subsidiarv(iii) l,abour gu

3,738.23(iv) Claims agr iinst the ioint operations not acknowledged as debts
12,105.51ims*(v) Royalty cla

962.90(vi) Fine and r )storation fees levied by Environmental Protection
t4,102.15(vii) Differenc : with sub contractors/vendors in regard to rates and quantity of materials

Share of Com mitments
14,572.47Capital Comm tments

49,548.14Total commit nents and contingent liabilities
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CIN:
Notes to the

44 The

TECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,2025

Financial Statements were approved by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company at their respective meetings held on 07th July,2025.

45 Figures of years have been regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with current years figures.
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